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COLAC OTWAY SHIRE COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the next SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COLAC OTWAY SHIRE COUNCIL will
be held at COPACC on 2 May 2018 at 4pm.

AGENDA

1. | DECLARE THIS MEETING OPEN

OPENING PRAYER
Almighty God, we seek your
blessing and guidance in our
deliberations on behalf of the
people of the Colac Otway Shire.
Enable this Council’s decisions to be
those that contribute to the true
welfare and betterment of our community.
AMEN

2. PRESENT

Cr Kate Hanson

Cr Stephen Hart

Cr Joe McCracken (Mayor)
Cr Chris Potter

Cr Jason Schram

Cr Chris Smith

Cr Terry Woodcroft

Robert Dobrzynski, Acting Chief Executive Officer

Errol Lawrence, General Manager, Corporate Services

Tony McGann, General Manager, Infrastructure & Leisure Services

Doug McNeill, Acting General Manager, Development & Community Services
Sarah McKew, Manager, Governance & Customer Service

Lyndal McLean, Acting Governance Officer

3. APOLOGIES

4. WELCOME AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

Colac Otway Shire acknowledges the original custodians and law makers of this land, their
elders past and present and welcomes any descendants here today.

| ask that we all show respect to each other and respect for the office of an elected
representative.
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All Council and Committee meetings are audio recorded, with the exception of matters
identified as confidential items in the Agenda. This includes the public participation sections
of the meetings.

Audio recordings of meetings are taken to facilitate the preparation of the minutes of open
Council and Committee meetings and to ensure their accuracy.

In some circumstances a recording will be disclosed to a third party. Those circumstances
include, but are not limited to, circumstances, such as where Council is compelled to disclose
an audio recording because it is required by law, such as the Freedom of Information Act
1982, or by court order, warrant, or subpoena or to assist in an investigation undertaken by
the Ombudsman or the Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission.

Council will not use or disclose the recordings for any other purpose. It is an offence to make
an unauthorised recording of the meeting.

The sole purpose of the Special Council Meeting is to consider:

e Atender for the construction of landslip stabilisation works, drainage and associated
roadwords along Stanway Drive, Separation Creek.

e A decision to make a submission to the Australian Electoral Commission regarding
the Report of the Victorian Redistribution Committee regarding the 2018 proposed
redistribution of Victoria into electoral divisions.

e The Third Quarterly Performance Report 2017/2018 including the outcome of the
mid-year review.

e A decision to release for public exhibition, seeking community feedback, the Draft
2018-2020 Rating Strategy.

e A decision to release for public exhibition, seeking community feedback, the Draft
2018-2019 Colac Otway Shire Annual Budget.

5. QUESTION TIME
At every Special Meeting, a public question time not exceeding 30 minutes will be held to
enable any member of the public to question Council but only on items included in the

Agenda of that Special Meeting.

Please remember, you must ask a question. If you do not ask a question you will be asked to
sit down and the next person will be invited to ask a question.

1. Questions received in writing prior to the meeting (subject to attendance and time).

2. Questions from the floor.

6. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
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Colac Otway

SHIRE

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT - CONTRACT 1805 - CONSTRUCTION
OF LANDSLIP STABILISATION WORKS, DRAINAGE AND ASSOCIATED
ROADWORKS, STANWAY DRIVE, SEPARATION CREEK

LOCATION / ADDRESS

OFFICER

TRIM FILE

ATTACHMENTS

PURPOSE

$C180205-1

Stanway Drive,

. GENERAL MANAGER Errol Lawrence
Separation Creek

Andrew Kavanagh DIVISION Corporate Services
F18/1233 CONFIDENTIAL No

1. CMW Geosciences Summary Report

Council approval is required to award Contract 1805 - Construction
of Landslip Stabilisation Works, Drainage and Associated Roadworks,
Stanway Drive, Separation Creek.

1. LOCATION PLAN / AERIAL PHOTO

AGENDA - MEETING OF SPECIAL COUNCIL - 2 MAY 2018 5



2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Tenders have been received for construction of landslip stabilisation works, drainage and associated
roadworks along Stanway Drive, Separation Creek. It is recommended that Council award the
contract to Geotech Pty Ltd.

This matter was considered by Council at the March 2018 Ordinary Council meeting. At that time,
Council determined that:

1. It needed to be answered that relevant approval or consent had been obtained from
Department Environment, Water, Land & Planning (DELWP) & Corangamite Catchment
Management Authority (CCMA) and;

2. Local residents had been consulted about the works.
These matters were addressed and detailed in the report considered by Council at the April Ordinary
Council meeting. At that time Council determined that:

1. Defers this item until the May 2018 Ordinary Council meeting to allow further discussions on
alternative treatments in Stanway Drive, Separation Creek.

2. Officers work with the immediately affected landholders to present their alternatives to
Council to address concerns.

Council officers had previously been provided with alternative treatment suggestions by property
owners in the vicinity of the works. These alternatives were:

1. Abenching treatment to the upper bank and rock and vegetation placed on the lower slope.
2. Drainage works.
3. Do nothing.
These alternatives have been assessed by Council’s consultants.
Option 1 is evaluated in the attached CMW Geosciences report and found not to be suitable.
Option 2 (drainage) will not alone treat the bank stability and is included in the proposed works.
Option 3 will not treat the bank stability issues.
These works are considered urgent as the geotechnical advice is that further land slips are likely
when the dried ground is subject to the first large rain event (usually April/May) or when significant
rain events occur, usually in September/October. Further land slips are likely to impact Stanway
Drive access and property. Given the advice received from Council’s geotechnical engineers that

future landslips could be expected if these works are not carried out there is a risk to life and
property which must be addressed.
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3. RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Awards Contract 1805 for Construction of Landslip Stabilisation Works, Drainage and
Associated Roadworks, Stanway Drive, Separation Creek to Geotech Pty Ltd at the lump
sum price of 51,452,086 (excluding GST).

2. Authorises the Acting Chief Executive Officer to sign the contract documents following
award of Contract 1805.

4. BACKGROUND / KEY INFORMATION

BACKGROUND
Council initially considered this contract award report at its meeting on 28 March 2018 and resolved:

1. That Council defers this item to allow a full discussion with affected community members in
Stanway Drive and to understand the alternatives that are being proposed. Also that we
seek from CCMA and DELWP written confirmation that no report or permits are required.

2. This is done so that we can have a report back to Council at the April 2018 Ordinary Council
meeting.

These matters were addressed in the report considered by Council at its meeting on 18 April, 2018.
Council resolved to:

1.  Defer this item until the May 2018 Ordinary Council meeting to allow further discussion on
alternative treatments in Stanway Drive, Separation Creek.

2. Officers work with the immediately affected landholders to present their alternatives to
Council to address concerns.

The townships of Wye River and Separation Creek were severely impacted by bushfire on Christmas
Day 2015 and a severe rain event in September 2016. The severe rain event resulted in flooding and
ongoing land slips along Stanway Drive in Separation Creek. Further land slips have subsequently
occurred.

Stanway Drive, with lluka Extension, forms the alternate emergency access link between Separation
Creek and Wye River.

Geotechnical investigation and design has resulted in a design to re-establish and stabilise the
embankments and prevent further land slips. Council’s geotechnical consultant has provided the
following advice:

Vegetation is yet to fully establish along Stanway Drive after the bushfires which increases
susceptibility to landslide for possibly another few years and further prolonged rainfall
through autumn and winter in combination with another triggering event like the September
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2016 intense rainfall event could be expected to result in similar landslide activity both in the
cuttings above the road and the fill embankment below the road.

It has been a relatively dry summer and soils are probably dry and desiccated plus the
regional groundwater system is relatively low hence there may be a feeling that not much
has been happening (which is correct) nor will happen. However it is worth pointing out that
the two most prevalent times for landslide activity in the Otways historically are in April after
a drying summer when heavy rain can quickly infiltrate the desiccated landscape and in
September/October when we have had groundwater fully recover thru prolonged winter
rainfall and we get heavy and/or intense spring rainfall which serves as the trigger for
movement (exactly as happened in 2016).

Design Reviews

Following the April Council meeting a design review meeting has been held with Council’s specialist
geotechnical consultants to review the design proposed, design options considered during the
evaluation and design phases and to reconsider the “do nothing” option and the solution proposed
by the property owner.

The consultants reinforced that the design proposed is based on a long term solution to the land
stability problem that exists. They assessed other solutions considered and the solution proposed by
the property owner was assessed to provide only short term erosion control measure that would not
ensure the ongoing stability of Stanway Drive.

The consultants have confirmed the proposed design solution as the most appropriate to address
the land stability, environmental and aesthetic outcomes required.

Other solutions considered by the designers were:
e Battering of Slopes
e Gabion walls
e Retaining walls
e Soil nails & mesh
e Planting and rock spoils (as suggested by property owner)

e Do nothing
These are addressed in the attached CMW Geosciences summary report.

As previously advised, Stanway Drive and lluka Extension provide the alternate emergency access
route (to the Great Ocean Road) for Separation Creek and Wye River residents.

The work to be performed under the contract is landslip stabilisation utilising rock beaching, soil
nailing, netting and erosion control matting and planting, underground drainage pipes and pits,
roadworks including kerb and channel and road pavement construction.

Planting of over 6000 indigenous plants in the rock gaps and soil nailed areas is to be undertaken
separately to this contract.

The works will be undertaken from the Stanway Drive road and construction equipment will not be
within the creek bed. The CCMA supports the project, the work adjacent to the creek and has
provided a written works permit for the work and provided a number of conditions to be met.
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The DELWP has also provided the necessary approvals and conditions in writing.

The contractor is required to undertake the works in accordance with the Wye River Separation
Creek Traffic and Environmental Management Plan and also provide a specific Construction
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for approval prior to commencing works. This CEMP will
be developed in conjunction with Council officers and include the above CCMA & DELWP agreement
conditions to ensure proper environmental management during the works.

The Request for Tender (RFT) for the proposed contract was advertised in the Colac Herald on Friday
2 February 2018, in the Geelong Advertiser on 3 February 2018, and in the Herald Sun on 7 February
2018. The RFT was also advertised on Council’'s website and via eProcure. Tenders closed on
Wednesday 7 March 2018.

Tenders were received from the following two (2) contractors:

Geotech Pty Ltd
Woodward Industries Pty Ltd

Tenders were assessed, taking into account the following selection criteria:

Price 45%
Experience and Track Record 25%
Resources and Capacity 25%
Economic Contribution to Colac Otway Region 5%

The tender evaluation panel nominated Geotech Pty Ltd as the preferred tenderer.

If successful in being awarded the contract Geotech Pty Ltd proposes to commence works mid May
2018, with a proposed completion date of 31 July 2018.
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FURTHER SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5. COMMUNITY CONSULTATION & ENGAGEMENT

During the design phase the community was given opportunity to comment on the proposed
treatment of the Stanway Drive land slips. Communication included a mail out to owners of
properties in the immediate vicinity of the works and advice on both the WyeSep Connect web page
and the Bushfire Recovery Facebook page.

One property owner expressed concern about the design solution and individual meetings have
been held with the owner to understand and consider his concerns.

Following the Council meeting on 28 March 2018 owners of 11 properties along and near Stanway
Drive have again been contacted by direct telephone call and if requested a follow up email
explaining the works proposed. A phone message was left for one property owner who had no email
address, but no call back was received.

All property owners contacted, except one, supported the works. The major concern at that time
was the need for improved drainage from above and along Stanway Drive. This is addressed through
the drainage works to be undertaken as part of this contract and also in lluka Extension. Residents
were also concerned about lluka Extension becoming a through road and some requested sealing of
Stanway Drive to overcome the dust issue. Not all supported sealing of the remainder of Stanway
Drive.

One property owner has raised concerns regarding the works and has proposed an alternative
design that involves benching slopes, loose rock beaching and planting. The resident considers that
this option would be better aesthetically and less cost to construct.

This alternative has been reviewed by two geotechnical consultants. Their advice is that the
alternate treatment would not be effective in preventing further landslips. It will not address the
issue of soil moving down the slope. It would only temporarily address localised erosion.

Subsequent to the above property owner contact written comments on the proposed works were
provided by residents to Councillors prior to Council’s April meeting. Owners/residents of 3
properties in the vicinity of the works do not support the proposed works. One property owner
advised of his support.

Details of issues raised with Councillors are provided below with officer comments.

Issue Comment

Proposed works are out of proportion to The engineered design has been scoped to address the

the site and to the problem. identified land stability issue and to minimise impact
on the aesthetics and environment.

Proposal results in intrusive landscaping, The proposed landscaping has been designed to

terracing and permanent modifications to | complement existing indigenous vegetation and

the creek. utilises over 6000 new indigenous plants.

Changes the character of a small bush The stabilisation works have been designed to ensure

track. that the alternate emergency access track (lluka
Avenue to Stanway Drive to Great Ocean Road) is
sustained for Wye River & Separation Creek properties.
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Issue

Comment

No less intrusive options have been
considered.

A number of design options have been considered
during the design process. Refer earlier in report.

Existing above ground temporary plastic
drains could be relocated and buried.

Permanent drainage in the bushfire area needs to be
concrete to reduce likelihood of fire damage in the
future.

A natural bush setting is transformed into
a managed landscape environment.

The proposed design and landscaping are considered
the best option to address this concern. It is
acknowledged that the outcome will be a change.

Why will part of Stanway Drive be
asphalted?

Part of Stanway Drive is being asphalted to manage
water infiltration into the area being stabilised. Further
discussion will be held with property owners regarding
the resident requests to seal the remainder of Stanway
Drive to the Great Ocean Road. Some residents are not
in favour of this.

How can machines work on the creek bank
without without destroying the creek bed?

All work along the creek bank will be managed under
an approved Construction Environment Management
Plan that will include all works permit conditions
provided by the Catchment Management Authority &
DELWP.

Has the landslip been measured?

The landslip and further slips have been inspected by
the geotechnical consultants on a number of
occasions. Refer geotechnical consultant advice earlier
in this report.

Disruption of works and effect on access.

Access to properties and disruption to residents is
required to be managed by the contractor.

Drainage uphill of Stanway Drive needs to
be resolved.

In addition to the drainage included in this project
further drainage works are proposed for lluka
extension and in Wye River as part of a separate
contract

6. ANALYSIS

ALIGNMENT TO COUNCIL PLAN OR COUNCIL POLICY

Procuring services through a tender process aligns with Council’s goal of providing value for money

services for our community.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

The Contractor is required under the contract to provide a suitable, approved environmental plan
which will actively manage environmental risks.

As stated previously the CCMA has provided a written works permit for the work near the creek.

The Flora and Fauna Assessment undertaken for Council during the design phase stated that some
protected flora may exist within the work area. A specific number for each species was not able to
be provided. Given the small area of the works site (estimated to be less than 800m?) and the fact
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the area has been disturbed by fire, the number of individual plants to be removed would be very
small.

Written approval has been received from DELWP for the works.
SOCIAL & CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS

Council’s Cultural Heritage consultant has assessed the proposed works and concluded the works as
described do not require a mandatory Cultural Heritage Management Plan (CHMP). The works are in
an area of Aboriginal heritage sensitivity but do not constitute a ‘high impact ‘activity.

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

LEGAL & RISK IMPLICATIONS

A Planning Permit is not required for the works.

The preferred tenderer, Geotech Pty Ltd has demonstrated a record of management of risks and
completion of contracts to specification and on time. Council can be confident that contracting with
Geotech Pty Ltd will manage exposure to any occupational health and safety issues and any non-
compliance issues with the contract.

Geotech Pty Ltd has provided details to confirm that it has an effective, suitable occupational health
and safety and management systems.

Geotech Pty Ltd has third party accreditation under 1ISO14001 Environmental Management Systems,
OHSAS 18001 OHS Management Systems, AS/NZS 4801 OHS Management Systems and 1SO9001
Quality Management Systems.

Given the advice received by our Geotechnical Engineers that future landslips could be expected if
these works are not carried out there is a risk to life and property which must be addressed.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCIAL ETC)

This project is funded under the Commonwealth Government NDRRA Program. The budget
allocation for the construction portion of the project is $1.6 million. At this stage the drainage
component of the project has not been approved by the Commonwealth. The price for this work is
$84,160.

Based on independent geotechnical advice the drainage component of the landslip remediation is
considered an essential element of the overall solution. As such if NDRRA funding is not approved
the drainage works will be funded under Council’s Urban Drainage Renewal Programme.
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7. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

DETAILS

Upon Council's approval the Contract will be awarded and works will be programmed to commence.
Geotech Pty Ltd proposes to commence works mid May 2018, with a proposed completion date of
31 July 2018.

COMMUNICATION

Letters of acceptance and contracts will be issued to Geotech Pty Ltd. The contracts shall be signed
by both the contractor and Council (Acting CEQ) prior to the commencement of works.

TIMELINE

Works are expected to be completed by July 2018.

8. OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST

No officer declared an interest under the Local Government Act 1989 in the preparation of this
report.
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CMWGeosclences

STANWAY DRIVE, WYE RIVER

To: Colac Otway Shire Council From: Allan Garrard

Attention: Neill Hocking/Kerim Sijercic Reviewed: Richard McKenna

Email: neill.hocking@colacotway.vic.gov.au Date: 24 April 2018

Cc: Tony Miner Reference: ~ MEL2017-0270AB, RevA
Subject: Stanway Drive Stabilisation - Design Advice Note 1

1 INTRODUCTION

This design advice note presents a summary of the main considerations and assumptions adopted for
the design of the Stanway Drive Stabilisation Works, Wye River, given the technical issues and site
constraints. The note is to form part of a response to issues raised by Colac Otway Shire Council in their
assessment of the proposed work, in the light of community feedback.

The purpose and requirements for his note were discussed at a meeting in Geelong on 23 April 2018
between: Kerim Sijercic & Neill Hocking (COS), Tony Miner (AS Miner Geotechnical) and Allan Garrard
(CMW Geosciences),

2 DESIGN CRITERIA / PHILOSOPHY

The design was conducted in consideration of the need for an engineered long term solution to the
stability issues experienced at Stanway Drive following bush fire and periods of heavy rain. A long term
solution is required to create and protect a reliable alternate emergency access route (Stanway/lluka
Extension) around Wye River in the event of future temporary closure of the Great Ocean Rd. The solution
will also maintain access to a number of properties.

A solution was needed which stabilised the slopes above and below Stanway Drive to protect the road
from the effects of slope failure. The solution also needed to provid erosion control measures for the slope
surfaces and improved drainage of storm water in the area. In addition, the Separation Creek flood flow
path needed to be maintained.

Early in the design process, a site visit revealed that the four distinct areas originally considered for the
stabilisation works were no longer relevant as the instability had progressed, with further soil slippage.
COS advised that the entire upper and lower slopes should be stabilised with a consistent solution. Also
early in the design process, we were advised that the main community concern was in not impacting the
mature trees in the area.

The design was conducted using normal geotechnical engineering principals as a long term solution with
a factor of safety of at least 1.4. CMW undertook detailed stability analysis as part of the design process
to understand the stability of the slopes without treatment and the increased stability following the
stabilisation works.

CMW Geosciences Www.cCmwgeosciences.com
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Stanway Drive Stabilisation - Design Advice Note 1 24 APRIL 2018

3 DESIGN OPTIONS CONSIDERED

A number of options were considered and discussed with COS with the main types of stabilisation
measures being:

+ Gabion or concrete retaining walls
+ Slope battering (upper slope only)
* Soil nailing & erosion control mesh
+ Reinforced soil wall

All options included improved drainage and revegetation to assist in stabilisation.

Slope battering of the lower slope was not viable due to lack of space in the valley. Slope battering of the
upper slope was deemed not preferred due to the need to remove mature trees and the need to keep the
earthworks within land owned by COS.

A reinforced soil wall solution was not preferred due to the large volume of soil which would need fo be
removed then replaced with crushed rock.

A Gabion wall or concrete wall solution was considered by CMW to be the best technical solution. A
sketch of Gabion wall solution was presented to COS but was rejected on the basis of aesthetics.

COS preference was for a consistent looking solution incorporating large stone beaching and CMW were
instructed to prepare a design on this basis. Natural rock beaching was considered by COS to be a more
aesthetically pleasing solution than walls and it was to be combined with soil nailing and mesh which
allows re-vegetation of the slopes as well as planting between the beaching rocks. The Catchment
Management Authority considered the beaching solution to be an acceptable outcome with regards to
the flood hydrodynamics of the creek.

The final solution incorporates a number of different types of treatment including beaching, soil nailing &
erosion control mesh, reinforced soil and drainage which is designed to suit the site conditions,
constraints and geological setting. Nole that the geclogical conditions change along the length of the site,
with shallow rock at the north end and thick colluvium soils at the southern end. The tender documents
for the works were prepared in such a way as to allow for flexibility in the construction to cater for the
geotechnical conditions encountered at the site during construction.

A “do nothing” option was not considered as doing nothing will not resolve the significant instability issues
at the site and the slopes would likely continue to fail. A “drainage only” option was considered but
drainage only would also not resolve the significant instability issues at the sile as the slopes have already
failed, meaning that soil strengths have reduced and tension cracks would lead ground water into failed
areas, exacerbating the problems.

4 ASSESSMENT OF ALTERNATE DESIGN PROVIDED BY RESIDENTS
CMW received a skeich of an alternative design by Email from COS on 9 April 2018.
At the time we commented that we could not fully assess this design without sections being prepared.

However, we understand that the alternative involves re-grading of the upper slope to reduce the slope
angles and provide berms and providing surface rip rap and vegetation on the lower slope.

Our initial assessment is that surface measures on the lower slope may provide some erosion protection
but will not stabilise the slopes and they are likely to continue to fail. Re-grading of the upper slope would
increase it's stability but would involve excavation and removal of a large volume of soil to beyond the
project land boundaries and would also involve the removal of many mature trees.

For and on behalf of
CMW Geosciences (East Coast)

CMW Geosciences 2
Ref. MEL2017-0370AB RevA
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Stanway Drive Stabilisation - Design Advice Note 1

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
./ & g
A%MQ 7%
. { !
Allan Garrard Richard McKenna
Senior Principal Director
Distribution: 1 copy to COS (electronic)

1 copy to Tony Miner (electronic)

Original held by CMW Geosciences (East Coast)

CMW Geosciences
Ref. MEL2017-0370AB RevA
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Colac Otway

SHIRE

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

PROPOSED REDISTRIBUTION OF FEDERAL
ELECTORAL DIVISIONS IN VICTORIA

$C180205-2
LOCATION / ADDRESS Whole of Shire
?)fgéﬁilsl?giﬂcm Robert Dobrzynski DIVISION Executive
TRIM FILE F18/3757 CONFIDENTIAL No
ATTACHMENTS 1. Public Meeting presentation - 19 April 2018
PURPOSE Inform Council Submission

1. LOCATION PLAN / AERIAL PHOTO

GORTON.

CoRANGAMITE
WANNON
WANNON,

Proposed alternative for
ICorangamite boundary marked
in yellow
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2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Increased population within Victoria has resulted in a determination by the Electoral Commissioner that
Victoria’s entitlement increased from 37 to 38 members of the House of Representatives.

A redistribution is required when a state’s entitlement to members of the House of Representatives changes,
the Electoral Commission has directed that a redistribution of Victoria commence.

The Redistribution Committee has now provided its report proposing the re-naming of 4 electoral divisions and
changing the boundaries of all of Victoria’s existing electoral divisions.

The Redistribution Committee proposes changing the boundaries of the existing Division of Corangamite the
effect of which would be to transfer Colac and Colac district to the Division of Wannon, transferring electors in
Moolap and all localities east on the Bellarine Peninsula to Corangamite (proposed Cox) and transferring
electors in Batesford, Belmont, Fyansford, Highton and Wandana Heights to the Division of Corio.

The Redistribution Committee further proposes renaming the changed Division of Corangamite Cox.

This report concludes that the Council should make a submission to the Australian Electoral Commission
objecting to the proposals for the Division of Corangamite provided in the report Proposed Redistribution of
Federal Electoral Divisions in Victoria and indicating:

e An alternative proposal changing the boundaries proposed by the Redistribution Committee for the
existing Division of Corangamite.

e The retention of the Division name Corangamite as a Federation Division of substantial history and
significance.

3. RECOMMENDATION

That the Council makes a submission in response to the Redistribution Committee’s report Proposed
Redistribution Of Federal Electoral Divisions In Victoria indicating:

1. The Council’s strong objection to the transfer of 12,041 electors in Colac and Colac Region from the
existing Division of Corangamite to the Division of Wannon.

2. An alternative proposal for consideration by the augmented Electoral Commission indicating the
boundaries of the Division of Corangamite which retains Colac and Colac Region and meets the
number of electors requirements of the projected enrolment quota within the deviations provided for
in the Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918.

3. The Council objects to the name change of the Federation Electoral Division of Corangamite proposed
to be re-named Cox and seeks the retention of the Division name of Corangamite as a Federation
Division of history and significance.

4. The strong community support as evidenced by media and the Public Meeting held which supported
the alternative proposal and retention of the Division name referred to above.
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4. BACKGROUND / KEY INFORMATION

BACKGROUND

As a result of population growth in Victoria, the State entitlement to members of the House of Representatives
at the next Federal Election has increased from 37 to 38 members.

As a redistribution is required when a state’s entitlement to members of the House of Representatives
changes, in accordance with the Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918 (the Electoral Act), the Electoral
Commission directed that a redistribution of Victoria commence.

The Redistribution Committee of Victoria (the Redistribution Committee) has made a proposed redistribution
of federal electoral divisions in Victoria. The Redistribution Committee’s report, including maps, is available
electronically on the AEC website (www.aec.gov.au/vic-redistribution).

Any interested person or organisation may make an objection to the proposed electoral boundaries or names
of electoral divisions contained in the proposed redistribution until 6pm on Friday 4 May 2018.

This report will consider the proposals within the Redistribution Committee’s report insofar as they affect the
Division of Corangamite and propose alternative boundaries and also proposes the retention of the name
Corangamite for the Division.

The report indicates that the alternative boundaries and retention of the name Corangamite for the Division
should form the basis of the Council’s submission objecting to the proposals within the Redistribution
Committee’s report.

KEY INFORMATION

As soon as practicable after the redistribution commences, the quota of electors for a State or the Australian
Capital Territory shall be determined by the Electoral Commissioner by dividing the number of electors enrolled
in the State or Territory by the number of members of the House of Representatives to be chosen in the State
or Territory at a general election to gain the quota of electors.

In making the proposed redistribution, the Redistribution Committee:

1. Shall, as far as practicable, endeavour to ensure that, if the State or Territory were redistributed in
accordance with the proposed redistribution, the number of electors enrolled in each Electoral Division
in the State or Territory would not, at the projection time, be less than 96.5% or more than 103.5% of
the quota enrolment.

2. Subject to (1) above, shall give due consideration, in relation to each proposed Electoral Division, to:

- community of interests within the proposed Electoral Division, including economic, social and
regional interests;

- means of communication and travel within the proposed Electoral Division;
- the physical features and area of the proposed Electoral Division; and

- the boundaries of the existing Divisions in the State or Territory.
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The current map of the Electoral Division of Corangamite is shown hereunder:
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Redistribution Committee Proposal:

The electoral boundaries in the renamed Electoral Division of Cox proposed by the Redistribution Committee

include the following changes to existing arrangements in the Electoral Division of Corangamite:

(i) Transfer from Corangamite of 14,918 electors from the western part of Golden Plains Shire and

northern parts of Colac Otway Shire to the Electoral Division of Wannon.

(ii) Transfer of 29,848 electors in Moolap and all localities east on the Bellarine Peninsula from the

Electoral Division of Corio to Corangamite.

(iii) To balance (ii), transfer of 25,553 electors in the localities of Batesford, Belmont, Fyansford,

Highton and Wandana Heights from Corangamite to the Electoral Division of Corio.

The changes proposed by the Redistribution Committee to the electoral boundaries of the Electoral Division of

Corangamite are represented on the map below:
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Where is the change?
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Alternative Proposal:

At the Public Meeting held on the evening of Thursday 19 April 2018, an alternative proposal to that proposed
by the Redistribution Committee was presented incorporating the following changes to the renamed Electoral
Division of Cox proposal put forward by the Redistribution Committee:

(i)

(ii)

(iiif)

Reinstate Colac and Colac region within the Electoral Division retained name of Corangamite,
retaining the entire Colac Otway Shire within the Electoral Division. Adds 12,041 electors to
Corangamite.

Retain the localities of Newcomb and Moolap proposed to be transferred to Corangamite within
Corio. Reduces electors within Corangamite by 1,234 electors.

Transfer from Corangamite to the Electoral Division of Wannon the localities of Bannockburn and
Golden Plains —south, so that the northern boundary of Corangamite is the Hamilton Highway.
Reduces electors within Corangamite by 9,045 electors.

Summarising the outcomes arrives at the following:

1.

Taking into consideration the tolerances of elector numbers available to the Redistribution Committee
in applying the quota of electors across Electoral Divisions, the maximum electors figure is 114,235
electors and the minimum electors figure is 106,509 electors.

The alternative proposal for the Electoral Division of Corangamite (proposed Cox) results in a projected
enrolment for the electoral division of 110,967 electors.

The alternative proposal for the Electoral Division of Wannon results in a projected enrolment for the
electoral division of 109,761 electors.

The alternative proposal for the Electoral Division of Corio results in a projected enrolment for the
electoral division of 110,737 electors.
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Colac Otway Shire Council’s alternative proposal for Electoral Boundaries for Corangamite are represented

on the map below:

April 2018 )
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At the Public Meeting convened by the Mayor on Thursday 19 April 2018, the meeting determined the
following position:

1. We the members present at this Public Meeting strongly oppose the proposed electoral boundary
changes as put forward by the Australian Electoral Commission (AEC) on the following grounds:

i. The proposed changes do not meet the AEC’s own criteria with regard to the ‘community
interest’ in that we have little or no affinity with the communities to our west as we currently
do to our east, in particular Geelong.

ii. All our government services, including important areas such as health and education, are
linked to Geelong with which we will soon have a completed duplicated highway from Colac
which will enable a vastly improved commuting between the two towns.

iii. We are currently well served by our hard-working Member of Parliament who has recently
opened a second electoral office in Colac. We will not have ready access to our Federal Member
if we are isolated in the far south-east corner of the approximately 36,000 square kilometre
electorate of Wannon.

iv. The proposal will split the Colac Otway Shire in to two different electorates creating the need
to negotiate such things as funding for the Shire’s needs with two different Federal Members of
Parliament. This situation will create a ‘them and us’ situation which is not at all desirable.

I therefore request the Colac Otway Shire Councillors to convey these concerns and our total
objection to these unacceptable boundary changes to the Australian Electoral Commission.

2. We further request that the Colac Otway Shire Council seeks the retention of the name Corangamite
for the Division as a Federation Seat which reflects a greater affinity to the nature of the Electoral
Division than the name of Cox.

3. That this meeting determines its strong endorsement of the Alternative Proposal for Electoral
Boundaries for Corangamite presented to the meeting by Colac Otway Shire Council.

Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918 Provisions:

Having satisfied the numerical imperatives set out in section 66 (3) (a) of the Electoral Act (the Act), the
Augmented Electoral Commission which is established by section 70 of the Act to consider objections to the
Redistribution Committee’s proposals must pursuant to the requirements of (3) (b) of section 66 take into due
consideration community of interest, means of communication and travel, physical features and boundaries.

Colac and district has a well-established and deepening community of interest with the Geelong region. The
inextricable linkages span economic, commercial, cultural, educational, sporting, advocacy and regional
development areas.

Colac Otway Shire is an active member of the G21 Strategic Alliance of Councils which has been enormously
successful in advocating priority projects and issues for the broader region. The Council also participates in the
Barwon Regional Partnership which has strong linkages into the State Government in establishing priority areas
of activity where government support is sought to promote the prosperity, sustainability and quality of life, in
addition to addressing specific social issues.

The current upgrades of the Princes Highway to National Highway standard will draw the two centres of Colac
and Geelong closer. This is in stark contrast to the C class road connections between Colac and Hamilton and
the lack of any discernible affinity between the communities of Colac and Wannon.

Whilst the numerical considerations of average elector numbers enrolled at the projected date are a significant
consideration, the Redistribution Committee would be in error not to take into serious consideration the
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undeniable strong relationship between the Colac area and Geelong and the almost total absence of any
tangible relationship with the Electoral Division of Wannon.

In light of the Alternative Proposal delivering the elector numbers at virtually the median between maximum
and minimum requirements, it is considered reasonable and indeed compelling that the Augmented Electoral
Commission endorse the Council’s objections to the Redistribution Committee’s proposal for Corangamite and
endorse the Alternative Proposal the Council puts forward.

Name Change Division of Corangamite:

The Redistribution Committee proposes changing the name of the Electoral Division of Corangamite to Cox in
honour of May Cox (1883-1953), for her lasting legacy in teaching swimming and lifesaving to Victorians.

The contribution of May Cox to Victoria and Victorians is not in dispute. However, the Redistribution
Committee does in its own words indicate within its report the significance of Corangamite as a Federation
Division name and that strong consideration would need to exist to substantiate a change from a Federation
Division name. The Redistribution Committee report, with respect does not prosecute a case that would
substantiate a change of such historical consequence.

The Council should support the motion passed at the Public Meeting and strongly object to the Redistribution
Committee’s proposal to change the name of the Division of Corangamite to Cox.
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FURTHER SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5. COMMUNITY CONSULTATION & ENGAGEMENT

The proposals contained within the Redistribution Committee’s report Proposed Redistribution of Federal
Electoral Divisions in Victoria has received significant attention in the media, resulting in a number of letters to
the editor and culminating in the Mayor convening a Public Meeting on Thursday 19 April 2018, where the
Meeting attendees determined their position on electoral boundaries and Division naming relating to the
existing Electoral Division of Corangamite.

6. ANALYSIS
ALIGNMENT TO COUNCIL PLAN OR COUNCIL POLICY

The recommended response to the Redistribution Committee’s aligns closely with the all themes of the Council
Plan in particular:

Theme 1 Our Prosperity
Goal1&3 Economic Growth & Partnership
Theme 3 Our Community

Goal1,5& 6  Socially Connected, Inclusive Community & Plan for Community
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

Not directly relevant to this matter

SOCIAL & CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS

Significant social and policy can accrue from the splitting of Colac Otway Shire across two diverse and
contrasting Electoral Divisions such as Wannon and Corangamite. Coordination of advocacy for priorities within
the split areas will involve added degrees of complexity and coordination.

The proposal from the Redistribution Committee to change the name of the Electoral Division from
Corangamite to Cox is both historically and culturally significant. The change does not appear justifiable upon
scrutiny. Corangamite is a Federation Electoral Division. The retention of Colac and Colac District within
Corangamite substantiates the retention of the current name.

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS

All evidence suggests that strong economic relationships exist between Colac and Geelong. Little evidence
appears that economic linkages are towards Wannon Division.

LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Significant risk exists that the Council will be disadvantaged in attracting Federal funding should the changes
proposed by the Redistribution Committee proceed due to the diverse nature of the Division of Wannon and
the lack of commonality with Colac Otway Shire Council area.
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RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCIAL ETC)

Significant resources would be required to facilitate advocacy across two Electoral Divisions to ensure that the
Council is competitive in lobbying for its priority projects.

7. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

It is proposed that the Council will provide a submission to the Australian Electoral Commission formally
objecting to the proposals put forward by the Redistribution Committee in its report Proposed Redistribution
of Federal Electoral Divisions in Victoria.

The Council convened a Public Meeting chaired by the Mayor on Thursday 19 April 2018 to seek community
views on the Redistribution Committee’s proposals. A motion was passed at the Public Meeting which forms
part of this report.

Council has been active in the media to support the case for retaining Colac and Colac District within the

retained Electoral Commission name of Corangamite, encouraging the public to forward their objections to the
changes to the Australian Electoral Commission.

COMMUNICATION

The Council’s submission objecting to the Redistribution Committee’s proposals for the Division of Corangamite
will be made publicly available.

TIMELINE

Objections to the Redistribution Committee’s proposals are required to be submitted to the Australian
Electoral Commission by 6pm on Friday 4 May 2018.

8. OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST

No officer declared an interest under the Local Government Act 1989 in the preparation of this report.

The author of this report has no declarable conflict of interest in the matter.
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Agenda

* Overview of the proposed boundary changes
* A possible solution?
* Questions/comments from the floor
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Crunching the numbers

* When considering each federal electorate

 Each electorate must have

as far as practicable, the number of electors enrolled in each electoral division in Victoria at the projection time
would not be more than plus 3.5 per cent, or less than minus 3.5 per cent, of the projected enrolment quota
(paragraph 73(4)(a) of the Electoral Act)

o As far as practicable, the number of electors enrolled in each electoral division in Victoria at the projection
time of Sunday 25 August 2019 must be between 106,509 and 114,235,

the number of electors enrolled in each electoral division in Victoria would not be more than plus 10 per cent, or
less than minus 10 per cent, of the current enrolment quota (sub-section 73(4) of the Electoral Act)

o The number of electors enrolled in each electoral division in Victoria must be between 96,259 and 117 ,649.
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Boundary changes

e \WWhat criteria can the Australian Electoral
Commission consider?

A Redistribution Committee must develop a set of proposals for dividing each state or territory into a number of
electoral divisions equal to its entitlement in the House of Representatives. In developing its proposals, the
Redistribution Committee must remain within the numerical quotas for the current and projected enrolment. The
Redistribution Committee shall also give due consideration to:

« community interests within the proposed electoral division, including economic, social and regional interests
« means of communication and travel within the proposed electoral division

« physical features and area of the proposed electoral division, and

« existing boundaries of divisions in the state or territory.
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Setting the Voter Number for each
Electoral Division

Enrolment quota at the projection time set by
the Electoral Commission as of 25 August 2019:

 Maximum number of electors 114,235

* Minimum number of electors 106,509
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Challenges for AEC

i.  Victoria’s population increase indicates an increase in House
of Representative seats from 37 to 38 requiring a
redistribution.

ii. Number of electors in Division of Cox (existing Corangamite)
are above the maximum number of projected electors
permitted, requiring a reduction of at least 5,593 electors, or
up to 13,319 electors.

iii. Number of electors in Division of Wannon below minimum
~ Gain required of at least 6,447 electors, up to 14,173 electors.
iv. Number of electors in Division of Mallee below minimum

@.
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Proposed AEC changes to Division of Cox

i. Transfer 14,918 electors from the western part of
Golden Plains and northern part of Colac Otway Shire
to Wannon.

ii. Transfer from Corio 29,848 electors in Moolap and all
localities east on the Bellarine Peninsula to Cox.

iii. To balance ii., transfer from existing Division of
Corangamite 25,553 electors in the localities of
Batesford, Belmont, Fyansford, Highton and Wandana
Heights to Corio.
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Alternative Proposal for Division of Cox

i. Include Colac and Colac region within the proposed Division
of Cox, retaining all of Colac Otway Shire in the Division.

+ 12,041 electors

ii. Retain the localities of Newcomb-Moolap proposed to be
transferred to the Division of Cox within Corio.

- 1,234 electors

iii. Transfer to the Division of Wannon the localities of
Bannockburn and Golden Plains — south from Cox. Proposed
northern boundary of Cox to be the Hamilton Highway.

- 9,045 electors

iv. A netreduction of electors is required in Cox of at least 5, 593

_electors or up to 13,319 electors.
-
Colac Otway
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Summary of Outcomes

i  Maximum number of electors 114,235
* Minimum number of electors 106,509

ii. Alternative Proposal for Division of Cox 110,967
electors

iii. Alternative Proposal for Division of Wannon
109,761 electors

iv. Alternative Proposal for Division of Corio
110,737 electors
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SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT

2017-2018

$C180205-3

LOCATION / ADDRESS Whole of Municipality = GENERAL MANAGER Errol Lawrence

OFFICER Margaret Giudice DIVISION Corporate Services
TRIM FILE F17/12085 CONFIDENTIAL No
ATTACHMENTS 1. Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 - 20180502
PURPOSE To endorse the Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 for the
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period 1 January to 31 March 2018.
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2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report provides information to Council and the community, combining progress on Council Plan actions, Planning
activities, Capital Works and Major Projects and the status of Council’s finances for the third quarter of the financial year
ending 31 March 2018. The financial report also includes the mid-year review report. As at 31 March 2018, the
organisation is on track to achieve the successful delivery of Council services for this financial year.

3. RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the Quarterly Performance Report 2017/2018 for the period 1 January to 31 March 2018.

4. BACKGROUND / KEY INFORMATION

BACKGROUND

The Council Plan for 2017-2021 was created subsequent to Council elections on 22 October 2016. The current format of
the report, combining progress on Council Plan actions, along with Planning activities, Capital Works and Major Projects
and the status of Council’s finances, has been in effect since September 2017.

KEY INFORMATION

The Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 (attached) provides Council with a progress report as at 31 March 2018
and is structured in several sections as follows:

e Introduction, Council’s strategic direction, Council Plan 2017-2021 themes, source and application of Council
funds.

e Overview for the quarter by each Division: Corporate Services, Infrastructure and Leisure Services and
Development and Community Services.

e Planning Performance Report

e Capital Works Performance Report

e Major Projects Performance Report

e  Council Plan Performance Report

e Financial Performance Report, includes the mid-year review report

As at 31 March 2018, the organisation is on track to achieve the successful delivery of Council services for this financial
year.
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FURTHER SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5. COMMUNITY CONSULTATION & ENGAGEMENT

Comprehensive community consultation and engagement was undertaken during the development of the Council Plan
2017-2021 and the 2017-2018 Budget.

6. ANALYSIS

ALIGNMENT TO COUNCIL PLAN OR COUNCIL POLICY

The Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 combines progress on Council Plan 2017-2021 actions, Planning activities,
Capital Works and Major Projects and the status of Council’s finances.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

Applied in preparation of the Council Plan and adoption of the Budget.

SOCIAL & CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS

Considered in the preparation of the Council Plan and adoption of the Budget.

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS

Considered in the preparation of the Council Plan and adoption of the Budget.

LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

S$138 of the Local Government Act 1989 requires financial reporting to be provided to Council on a quarterly basis. The
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires a report reviewing performance against Council
Plan actions to be provided to Council on at least a six monthly basis.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCIAL ETC)

There are no financial or resource implications as a result of this report.

7. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

DETAILS

Not applicable

COMMUNICATION

The community engagement strategy follows the recommendations of the Colac Otway Shire Council Community

Engagement Policy of January 2010, which details five levels of engagement — inform, consult, involve, collaborate and
empower.
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The method selected would be to inform. This is achieved by including documentation and notification to the public at
the Ordinary Council meeting.

TIMELINE

Not applicable

8. OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST

No officer declared an interest under the Local Government Act 1989 in the preparation of this report.
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Introduction

How to read this report Strategic Vision

This Council Plan Quarterly Performance Report e
assesses our progress against the Council Plan
2017-2021. The activities and initiatives in the
Council Plan are Council’s strategies for achieving our
community outcomes (Themes) and goals as we work
toward our strategic vision.

'Towards a prosperous
future’

The Councillors of Colac Otway
Shire commit to plan for growth
in business and employment for

Measuring Our Progress our towns and settlements; the
The Council Plan 2017-2021 comprises four key areas delivery of high quality services
of focus: Our Prosperity, Our Place, Our Community that meet community needs and
and Our Leadership & Management. Each area of demonstrate value for money;

focus has desired goals, actions and measures that
guide what we want to achieve for Colac Otway
Shire, all of which require assessment and reporting
of progress. community and the organisation

and to be leaders and work
together as a team with the

to achieve our goals for the Shire.

Council Direction set in the Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan is Council’s overarching strategic document responding to the issues faced by our
community. It sets out our goals, key actions and performance measures for the next four years.

The key issues faced by our community have informed the choice of major projects/activities that
Council has identified as its highest priority. Council has committed to complete these projects over
the life of this plan, supporting the achievement of our stated goals. The Council Plan does not contain
the detail of day-to-day operational activities, short term projects or recurrent work programs.

Community Engagement in the Development of the Council Plan

Our Council Plan was directly informed by a significant community engagement program, which
sought input from the community about their aspirations for the Shire. This was the most
comprehensive consultation program ever conducted in Colac Otway Shire and received a very
positive response.

Consultation included letters to more than 900 community groups, businesses and progress
associations, an online and paper-based survey, feedback from Community Conversation sessions
held around the Shire and pop-up listening posts that were held in Colac and Apollo Bay. These
sessions were well attended and we received invaluable feedback on the draft Council Plan and
various other matters of interest to the community.

During the development of the new Council Plan, social and cultural implications were carefully
considered along with attention to the funding available to carry out the many projects contained in
the plan. The Council Plan was adopted on 28 June 2017.
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Council Plan Strategic Themes

The Council Plan 2017-2021 includes strategic themes (otherwise known as 'long term community
outcomes'), Goals and actions for achieving these for the four year period. The Council Plan also
contains strategic indicators for monitoring achievement of the strategic objectives and a strategic
resource plan. The following are the four outcomes detailed in the Council Plan.

'rosperity Colac Otway Shire has a diverse economy, much of it built on the natural
environmental values of the area. The area has enjoyed successful dairy and
food processing industries for many decades; supports the timber industry;
has a growing tourism industry built on both a striking coastline and the
forests of the Otway’s; small, specialist food producers, many forming the
Colac Otway food trail; plus, a host of local retail businesses, arts and crafts
enterprises; and health and education services.

The Shire has two larger towns of Colac and Apollo Bay, and a number of
smaller towns. Each of these has unique attractions and supports local
cultures and communities. The Shire is strategically placed halfway between
Geelong and Warrnambool which provides opportunities for economic
development and a growing population supported by access to work.

Our Places Infrastructure assets such as roads, drainage and footpaths are important
because they help deliver services to the community. Roads and footpaths
provide the ability for people to access work, education and recreation.
Drainage provides protection to properties and allows for safe transport.

It is important for us to manage assets in a rational way so that we can
ensure they are sustainable over the long term so that those services are
provided to future generations.

Our Community Colac Otway Shire sustains a mixed population of tourists, businesses,
farmers, retirees and families, some of whom settled in the Shire recently
and some who can trace their families’ history back to the original settlers.
We also have a small population of aboriginal people. The land of the Shire
sustains different ways of living, from affordable housing options in the
towns, to spectacular properties with views of the forest and the sea.
Potential for population growth in the Shire will increase due to highway
improvements and proximity to the larger centres of Geelong and
Warrnambool. The Shire enjoys good services and infrastructure, supporting
families to connect and live well at all life stages. While the Shire is well
resourced compared with many other semi-rural shires, with the potential of
continued growth there needs to be good planning to have the right
infrastructure and services in place.

Our Leadership & There are many demands on the resources of Colac Otway Shire. The major

Management source of income, ratepayer funds, has been constrained through the

introduction of rate capping by the State government and an increasing

challenge for the community to continue to afford rate increases.

The environment of the shire is attractive and well-recognised. Its’ diversity

also results in involvement by many authorities and stakeholders, creating

the need for partnerships and clarity about the role of the shire. Recently
experienced incidents such as bushfire and floods impact on the community
and draw a significant amount of organisational resources, both in
emergency response but also in longer term planning and support to the
community. It is expected that such events will be more common as climate
change accelerates.

Attachment 1 - Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 - 20180502 50



Source and Application of Council Funds

Where does the money come from?

Colac Otway Shire is heavily dependent upon rate revenue for its income. Rate revenue during the
2016/2017 financial year made up 49 per cent of total income. Council’s revenue sources highlights
that 88 per cent of our income is derived from three income categories:

B Rates and charges 49%
m Grants - Operating 26%
= Grants - Capital 13%
W User fees 7%

m Statutory fees and fines 1%

¥ Other income 1%
¥ Finance income 1%
B Reimbursements 1%

Where does the money go?

Council funds more than 90 community services and programs. The following breakdown of costs
per service is generated from all funding sources to Council, not just Rates and charges:

m Capital works, maintenance of community facilities $47.38
and assets including parks, gardens and reserves

m Governance and administration $15.13
B Waste management $6.94
$6.45

m Aged, disability & community services

® Environment & emergency management $5.87
= Economic development and tourism $3.89
® Recreation, arts & culture, including COPACC $3.35
® Planning and building services $3.16
= Bluewater fitness and aquatic services 5313
= Family and children services $1.63
= Library services $1.45
= Local laws $1.63
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Overview by Division

Welcome to the Quarterly Performance Report. This report provides progress on the key actions in
the Council Plan for the period 1 January to 31 March 2018, along with a financial report for the
quarter against the 2017/18 Budget. The report also includes an overview from each Division for the
quarter, Planning activity statistics and an overview of progress on major projects.

The Council Plan 2017-2021, developed with significant community engagement, is the overarching
strategic roadmap of the aspirations of Council and the community and how we are going to get
there. In order to prioritise the actions that will be funded from Council’s limited resources the
Council Plan, supported by the organisation’s Corporate Plan and Budget, guides all work the Council
undertakes. The Council Plan outlines the community’s vision is for the Shire, while the Corporate
Plan details how that vision will be achieved.

Corporate Services
Finance

The quarter leading up to March 31% has been exceptionally busy again for the Finance Team,
amplified with the following team absences:
« Daniel Fogarty (Manager Finance) went on 6 weeks sick leave from early Feb through to late
March.

* Melissa Garner (Senior Financial Accountant) moved across to a new role, replacement yet
to be sourced.

« David Testa (Financial Operations Coordinator) resigned his position after 8% years finishing
in January 2018. Contractor replacement has been sourced but only begun mid-way through
the quarter.

Apart from the very busy business as usual work, the major functions carried out by the team were:

e The continuation of the new 2018/19 budget process including:
o Finalisation of the operating budget
o Finalising business cases for capital works & major operational works for 2018/19
o Finalised Fees and Charges
o Finalised rates and Charges
o Commenced work on the model Budget Document
¢ Continued work on the general ledger rebuild.
* Finalisation of the draft Council Rating Strategy.
* Begun development of a month end close process.

* Commenced review of the impact of new Revenue recognition and lease accounting
standards.

Governance & Customer Service

Governance

The Governance team has been attending, whenever possible, workshops and briefings pertaining to
the Local Government Bill Exposure Draft in preparation for Parliament’s consideration of the
legislation. Local Government Victoria had hoped for the ascension of the Bill by July 2017, as
phased implementation was forecast to commence at this time. However, a lengthening of the
public submission timeframe may result in delays. No communication from the Department has
been forthcoming about this matter.

A comprehensive review of Section 86 Committees has been undertaken involving extensive
consultation with volunteers from the numerous halls, reserves and the like across the municipality.

6
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At the April Ordinary Council meeting, Councillors will consider a recommendation for Council to
assist most Section 86 Committees to become incorporated associations, which officers believe will
create better outcomes for Committees and Council.

The Audit Committee held its quarterly meeting on 21 March 2018, at which the minutes from its
December 2017 meeting were passed. These will be put to the Council at its April Ordinary Council
meeting for noting.

Customer Service

The Customer Service team has experienced increased volumes of work as a result of Council
business and natural disasters in the shire and the region. In particular, the Corangamite bushfires in
March caused high volumes of calls and inquiries to Council.

Procurement & Tenders

The Business Unit that has been known as Contract Governance is now known as Procurement &
Tenders and is headed up by the newly-created position of Procurement & Tenders Coordinator. The
Coordinator will oversee these functions within Council to enhance the robustness of related
strategies, policies, processes and training. A Procurement Strategy is currently in development and
will be considered by Council later in the year.

Waste Management

As in all Councils across Victoria, the Waste Management Unit has had a very challenging period as a
result of global instability in the recycling industry. Threats of the industry’s collapse have been
averted thus far and Councils have been supported in recent months by the Municipal Association of
Victoria, the Department of Land, Water, Environment & Planning, and regional waste groups, with
Colac Otway Shire’s being the Barwon South West Waste and Resource Recovery Group.

Negotiations with Council’s recycler, SKM Industries, continue and Council is hopeful of an outcome
in the near future. Meanwhile, the timing of this instability has affected Council’s ability to budget
effectively for waste services in the 2018/19 financial year. While projection work has been done in
recent weeks as developments have been communicated, the capturing of this in the budget has
been difficult. Some adjustment through the waste levy or similar may be required in the 2018/19
financial year.

Landfill rehabilitation planning and works continue in Colac Otway Shire, with the main focus
continuing to be the Alvie Transfer Station.

People, Performance and Culture

e The 2017-2021 Corporate Plan has now been finalised and has 3 major components:
o Selected Council Plan actions, major initiatives and plans
o The Capital Works Programme
o Alist of all Strategies and Plans
Discussions have now commenced on reviewing the Plan for the work that will take place in
2018/19.

e Implementation of the recently approved 2018-2020 OHS Strategic Plan has now
commenced with OHS internal Assist Audits well underway which will identify any potential
OHS gaps that may require broader responses. In line with the recently formed Mental
Health Network, in excess of 20 Mental Health First Aid Officers have now been trained with
the Mental Health Network meeting for their first time in April, 2018.

* A review of the Council’s Business Continuity Plans has been undertaken in line with audit
recommendations. All key staff have been trained and desktop exercises were undertaken.

e The 2018-2021 People and Culture Strategy (draft) is nearing completion and is expected to
be completed by 30 April 2018. From there, further consultation will occur with the
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Executive, Leadership Group and staff regarding the 3 year Action Plan. It is proposed that
the Strategy will have 5 main themes;

o Supporting a values based culture

o The Employee Experience.

¢ Leading and Developing our People

o Valuing our People

o Collaboration, change and innovation.

e Areview of internal performance/corporate reporting systems and software has been
undertaken and managers are now drafting their 2018/19 business plans which will then be
loaded into reinvigorated reporting framework.

e The 2018 Staff Alignment and Engagement Survey has been undertaken and closed on 6
April. Survey results are expected by late May 2018.

e The recruitment of a new CEO is continuing with applications closed on 3 April, 2018.
Information Services

Information Communication Technology

e The development of the draft four-year ICT Strategy is approaching finalisation. Resultant
programmes of work are currently identified to be:

o Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity

o Digital Enablement of a Mobile Workforce

¢ Intranet & Extranet

Information Management - EDRMS

Desktop Computer Virtualisation

Multi-Site Network Connectivity

Unified Communications

Municipal Management Software Suite — Remediation
Civica Authority Major Upgrade = V7.X+

Accounts Receivable Workflow Digitisation
Geospacial Information System — Restructure
Customer Request Management System

Leisure Centre Management System

Statutory Planning and Building Workflow Digitisation
Works Management System Implementation

Benefit Though Collaborative Partnerships

Migration of ICT Systems to the Cloud

SOE Upgrade & Data Center Consolidation.

¢ 0O 0 0 ¢ 0 0C 00 0O C 0 o000

e Critical evaluation of both MAV and State telecommunications contracts is underway, with
essential business requirement analysis being conducted. Significant cost savings will be
realised once finalised.

 Asignificant number of small to medium projects are being finalised for the 2018-2019
financial year, in addition to operational business as usual obligations such as a notable
ICT helpdesk workload.

Information Management Service

A comprehensive departmental service review is underway, putting our operational processes and
records management strategies under the microscope. We have re-engaged with the MAV Records
Management Step Programme which provides a framework for attaining a greater level of legislative
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compliance and digital maturity in operation. The incumbent software package, TRIM, will undergo a
major upgrade over the coming twelve months.

Geographic Information System

A programme of work is being developed to significant develop our GIS capabilities, working closely
with associated business units such as Assets and Planning/Building representatives as key
stakeholders in the system.

A comprehensive data restructure is underway to unify information management in the areas of
centralised storage and retrieval to better inform business decision making.
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Infrastructure and Leisure Services
Arts and Leisure

Colac hosted an AFL JLT Community Series match on 11 March 2018 at Central Reserve between
Geelong and Essendon. The town was abuzz in the lead-up to, and on the day of the match. The
event was a massive success with a crowd of 9,115 in attendance, the highest recorded crowd for
any 2018 JLT Community Series match. Feedback from the AFL, participating clubs and attendees
was extremely positive, whilst the local business community also confirmed strong economic
benefits from the event.

During February, Colac also hosted the Geelong Football Club’s annual Community Camp. The 2018
camp included an open training session at the Colac Central Reserve, junior football clinics and
school visits. The Geelong players sang the praises of the Central Reserve’s playing surface stating it
was of AFL standard.

The Draft Creative Colac Otway — Arts and Culture Strategy 2018-2022 was endorsed by Council at its
January 2018 Ordinary meeting to be placed on public exhibition in accordance with Council’s
Community Engagement Policy 2013. Six submissions were received and have been considered. The
final strategy will be presented to a future Council meeting for adoption.

The Bluewater Leisure Centre Service Review has been completed which provides a clear work plan
to guide the future operations of the centre. A number of actions are already being implemented.
Facility use continues to improve with increased membership and swim school numbers experienced
during the quarter.

The Bluewater Leisure Centre hosted two regional junior tournaments during February and March
2018. In total, over 100 teams from across the state participated in the tournaments, attracting
more than 4,000 people to Colac. The tournaments provided a great economic boost to the region
across the two weekends.

COPACC held its 2018 Season launch on 3 February 2018 with approximately 200 people in
attendance. The launch provided a snapshot of the exciting and varied season program on offer in
2018.

COPACC again hosted another wonderfully successful Red Door production; with this time “Rock of
Ages” wowing patrons during February. Red Door presented eight performances in the COPACC
Auditorium with the majority of shows sold out.

Services and Operations

The team did a fantastic job of preparing Central Reserve, particularly the oval for the AFL match in
March. The condition of the oval on match day is a testament to the dedication and skill of our team
working together to achieve a terrific result.

Road reconstruction works are underway on Carpendeit-Bungador Road, with construction already
completed on Lorne-Colac Road, Denherts Track and Pound Road. The gravel resheet program is
progressing well with the remaining roads planned for May and June. The Australian Road Research
Board has been appointed to undertake a Service Review on the management and maintenance of
the unsealed road network. The recommendations should assist Council in providing an efficient
service which improves customer satisfaction of the drive experience on gravel roads.

The traders in Apollo Bay are appreciative of the footpath pressure washing along the main street.
The cleaning has rejuvenated the almost 20 year old footpath. The landscaping has been trimmed
with additional planting planned for spring.

10
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Engagement continues with the Apollo Bay Harbour User Group to resolve sand management and
other safety concerns in and around the harbour. An interagency working group has developed a risk
assessment to guide management of the noxious seaweed Undaria.

Disaster Recovery

We have a team of project managers funded by State and Federal Governments working on a
number of projects designed to help communities recover from the Wye River and Separation Creek
bushfire, as well as the flood event of 2016. Our part is to rebuild infrastructure that was destroyed,
or build new infrastructure to reduce future risks.

A number of projects have commenced or are poised for construction in 2017/18 including retaining
walls and stormwater construction in Wye River and Separation Creek as well as a number of major
landslip repairs around the Shire.

Works have commenced on six outstanding retaining walls, including the stabilisation of the lluka
extension slip. The table drain and culverts under driveway contract, a component of the
stormwater reticulation project in Wye River and Separation Creek, began in March and is
progressing well.

A contractor has been nominated for the Stanway Drive stabilisation project and is currently
awaiting Council endorsement.

Works packages for the stabilisation of land slips as a result of the September 2016 floods at
Lardner’s Track, Blue Johanna and Old Bay Roads have gone to tender and submissions will be
received on 11 April.

Capital Works

The team has continued to make good headway in delivering the 2017/18 Capital Works
Programme.

A full summary of performance for the program is contained later in this report but the key results
are:

1. Queen Street footpath construction is progressing well. The associated underground
drainage works are nearing completion. Road widening and footpath works will commence
once the drainage is in place.

2. Works under the Sealed Road Pavement Program (Roads to Recovery Funding) are
proceeding. Planned rehabilitations to Colac — Lorne Road, Pound Road, Dehnerts Track and
Nalangil Road have been successfully completed on time and to budget. Works are currently
underway on Carpendeit — Bungador Road, Weering School Road, Costins Access and Conns
Lane. The one omission from the planned program is Murray St, Apollo Bay which is
contracted but deferred until 2018/19 due to the availability of the contractor.

3. The Tourism Traffic and Parking Strategy has been awarded to the successful consultant and
is underway. This is an exciting and much needed strategy development that will guide us
through infrastructure improvements to provide for the ever increasing tourist numbers
visiting our coastal towns.

Asset Management
The Asset Management Plan Review Project is underway. We have attracted a State Government

grant to assist with the engagement of a consultant to help guide our staff in this much needed
project.
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We have transitioned our road inspection programme to the recently revised Council Road
Management Plan to accommodate significant opportunities for performance improvements in the
way we carry out maintenance.

A review of the Asset Management Policy and the Asset Management Strategy is scheduled to be
presented to Council in May. Asset Management Plans for our major asset groups, roads and
buildings are on track to be completed in June.

12
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Development and Community Services
Environment & Community Services

Emergency Management

The team has worked closely with the community in preventing and managing the impacts of fire.
The Fire Prevention Program has been undertaken rigorously to ensure maintenance of properties to
the prescribed standards. The vast majority of the community have done a terrific job, but where
people have failed to do the work necessary, compliance action has been taken.

Unfortunately a fire impacted the Dreeite community in January. Council activated an Emergency
Relief Centre and worked closely with the relevant agencies to support the impacted community.

The fires on St Patrick’s Day did not impact directly on the Colac Otway Shire region, but Council
once again activated an Emergency Relief Centre and provided support to Corangamite Shire to
assist them help their community to recover.

Animal Registration

Reminder letters have been sent to all dog and cat owners living in the Shire to remind them to pay
their registration fees by 10 April 2018. Animal registration is an important function performed by
Council to ensure both the safety of the community and animals.

Economic Development & Tourism

A comprehensive review was undertaken of Council’s Grants Program. The review considered
elements such as amount of grants, program objectives, consistency with the Council Plan,
application method and guidelines. The review also looked at the process and management of
Council’s applications for external grants to undertake projects. The review key findings
recommended changes to the grants program and Council supported a new program at its March
Ordinary Council meeting.

The Economic Development & Tourism Department’s Events Officer has assisted in the delivery of
20 regional events in the Shire for the quarter. Feedback from event organisers indicated that
approximately 24,610 people attended the events. These events provide a significant economic
boost to the region and attract many visitors to the area.

The Council’s Events Policy has been reviewed to align the Events Policy with Council’s Emergency

Management Guidelines. Changes made related to conducting events on Code Red declared days.

The Emergency Management Guidelines state that events scheduled to be held on Code Red days

are to be cancelled or rescheduled. The revised Events Policy was endorsed by Council at its March
Ordinary Council meeting.

Community Services

Community Engagement

3 half —day workshops have been held in March 2018 with many older people, and some not so old,
in the communities of Apollo Bay, Birregurra and Colac to discuss current and future needs for our
ageing community and issues around access, equity and inclusion. This is to be used for the review
and implementation of the updated 50+ Plan and the Access, Equity and Inclusion Plan and to align
them with the Council and Health and Wellbeing Plans.

Positive Ageing Ambassadors

Following an invitation and induction process of a number of older people throughout the shire we
now have nine Positive Ageing Ambassadors. Their role is, as older people and local leaders in their
communities, to maximize the involvement of older people in advocating for their needs to be

13
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integral in current and future planning for the Colac Otway Shire.

Regional Assessment Services (RAS) Coordinator - Community Home Support Programmes
Council has been refunded by the State Government to continue the role of RAS Coordinator who is
responsible for implementing consistent practices and processes in line with the My Aged Care
national model and in the context of retaining the benefits for the Victorian HACC system. This is to
support all registered service providers in the Barwon and South West Regions. This position is fully
funded by the State Government.

Planning, Building & Health

Colac 2050 Citizen’s Jury

The Colac 2050 Citizen's Jury met for the fourth and final day in February to consider how and where
Colac should grow to achieve a population of 20,000. The jury concluded with a briefing of
Councillors on the outcomes. The Jury report was considered and received by Council at the
February Council meeting, and is being used to inform the draft Growth Plan which is expected to be
completed for Council consideration in May.

Apollo Bay Harbour Precinct

Work has progressed to advance planning for redevelopment of the Apollo Bay Harbour Precinct.
Council endorsed at its December meeting a series of steps for commencement of an Expression of
Interest (EOI) and tender process to further explore the potential for private sector investment at
the harbour. Officers have worked with State Government representatives on this process, and have
commenced engagement of consultants to oversee the EOI and tender process.

Significant work has also occurred to clarify the future infrastructure investment needs for the port
operations, and separately, proposed improvements to compliment any private investment, such as
relocation of the depot buildings and construction of a boardwalk along the water’s edge. Advocacy
documents have been developed for this infrastructure to assist Council in attracting funding
commitments in advance of upcoming Federal and State elections.

Forrest Wastewater

Barwon Water, in partnership with Council and the Forrest community has continued to progress
the Forrest Wastewater Investigation Project to look at options for future wastewater management
in the town. A visioning exercise was held with the community in December 2017 as part of the
project community engagement program, which is being followed by a wastewater management
options information session on 29 April 2018 (it was deferred from March due to the active fires in
the region west of Colac).

Apollo Bay Tourism Resort

The proposed residential hotel and associated villas at Barham River Road, Apollo Bay is being
considered by an independent planning panel appointed by the Planning Minister, after the Minister
called-in the application. Council considered a report on the information provided with the
application at a Special Meeting in February, and this was followed by a Directions Hearing of the
Panel in March. The applicant has confirmed that the proposal is being limited to Stage 1, and not
including Stage 2. The Panel has directed that the applicant provide additional information for notice
to submitters for a 21 period before a date for the hearing will be scheduled.

Amendment C90 to Planning Scheme

Amendment C90 seeks to amend the flood based overlays in the Planning Scheme as they apply to
Colac, to implement the Deans Creek and Barongarook Flood Study. About 23 submissions were
received, and these will be considered by Council at the May Council meeting, to consider referring
them to an independent panel.

14
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Council Plan Performance Report

The implementation plan for the Council Plan was finalised as part of the Corporate Plan, the
organisational work plan. The review of the annual work plan for 2018/19 has commenced and will
be finalised by 30 June.

As can be seen in the graph below, the majority of actions are underway at the end of the third
quarter of the 2017/18 financial year and are expected to be completed by 30 June. Of the

11 actions not commenced, eight are not due to commence this financial year and three are
awaiting additional information or resources before they can commence. It is anticipated that the
latter three actions will be carried forward into the 2018/19 financial year. Five actions have been
completed.

Performance against the actions in the Council Plan commences on the following page. A new
feature of this quarter’s report is the introduction of a progress column containing comments where
relevant to provide greater clarity on individual actions.

Completed l 5

Not commenced 11
s ; Our Leadership
Status Our Prosperity Our Places Our Community & Management Total
Completed 0 1 2 2 5
Commenced 16 24 9 58
Not commenced 5 3 1 11
Total 21 28 13 12 74
15
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Progress against Council Plan actions as at 31 March 2018

Legend

Completed

Action is fully completed.

Progressing on schedule.

Not commenced  Activity has not started for this initiative. It is scheduled to commence later in the year or is not due to commence this financial year.

/ On Track
A Off Track

Action Sub Actions

Council Plan Theme: 1 Our Prosperity

Programmed work for 2017/18 is on track to be completed by 30 June 2018.

Work programmed for 2017/18 is delayed and is anticipated to be carried forward to 2018/19.

Department Status Progress

Council Plan Goal: 1.1 Plan Infrastructure, assets and land use with a long-term vision for

economic growth.

land is provided for
industrial and residential
use.

* Colac Economic Development, Commercial and Industrial Land Use
Strategy, 2017 provides direction for commercial and industrial growth.
Amendment C86 — rezones land as identified by the Strategy
(completed).

1.1.1 Provide direction Residential Planning, /

on how growth across e Colac 2050 Growth Plan will inform the residential demand and identify | Building and )

the Shire should proceed appropriate locations for future residential supply. Health Amendment C86 is

and ensure adeguate Industrial completed and forms part of

Planning Scheme.

The Citizens Jury report for
Colac 2050 was considered
by Council at the February
meeting.

A draft Growth Plan and
planning scheme
Amendment are being
produced for the May
Council meeting.
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1.1.2 Develop and

Sub Actions

Colac Otway Economic Development Strategy completed.

Department

Economic

Progress

v

implement a Colac Development
Otway Economic and Tourism 30‘3'3' Otway Economic
evelopment Strate
Development Strategy. *  Colac Economic Development, Commercial and Industrial Land Use Planning, procesf has commeri\:(ed.
Strategy, 2017 provides direction for commercial and industrial growth. | Building and
Health Colac Economic

Development, Commercial
and Industrial Land Use
Strategy completed &
planning scheme
amendment completed.

1.1.3 Conduct a review of | ¢ A residential demand and supply analysis was undertaken to inform the | Planning, This assessment is proposed

the housing stock in Colac 2050 Growth Plan (completed). Building and Commenced | for 2019.

Colac and establish a * Housing strategy will identify future housing need types based on the Health

Residential Housing population trends and community patterns in their choice of housing

Strategy to ensure (not commenced).

current and future stock

is suitable to attract new

residents.

1.1.4 Identify and Audit of existing public and private tourism infrastructure. Economic Not Not due to commence until

improve tourism assets Linked to 1.2.11 Development commenced | 2019/20.

across the Shire. Develop a plan to prioritise improvements and development of public and Tourism

assets and private opportunities.

1.1.5 Prepare an Links to 1.1.4 above Planning, Not Due to commence in

Infrastructure Master To be informed by the Great Ocean Road Tourism Traffic and Parking Building and Commenced | 2018/19 subject to Council

Plan for Apollo Bay and Strategy. Health funding.

Coastal Townships,

covering categories

including roads, car

parking, bus parking,

footpaths and storm

water drainage.
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1.1.6 Attract investment

Sub Actions

Develop economic impact assessments for key masterplans (Lake Colac

Department

Economic

Progress

v

Economic assessments
commenced for Forrest
Mountain Bike Park Strategy
and Apollo Bay Harbour
Precinct priority projects.
Prospectus for all priority
projects have commenced.

v

Council adopted the Planning
Scheme Review at the March
meeting, and the consultant
has commenced drafting the
planning scheme
amendment to implement it,
with exhibition likely in
2018/19.

to implement key master completed). Development
plans that will drive Develop clear prospectus’ and advocacy strategies. and Tourism
economic growth such as Apply for investment to implement.
the Lake Colac Foreshore
Master Plan.
1.1.7 Remove Undertake the Colac Otway Planning Scheme Review and Cutting Red Planning,
unnecessary planning Tape Project. Building and
triggers to streamline Stage 2 of this project will revise the current controls (as appropriate) to | Health
planning processes. streamline planning requirements and referral process (not

commenced).
1.1.8 Strengthen Development of a partnership plan identifying key stakeholders and the | CEO's Office

partnerships with
employers in the Shire.

commitment Council makes to regular engagement and partnership
projects i.e.: Chambers of Commerce, GORRT, G21, WestVic Diary,
Colac Otway Health and other key employers.

v

Liaison with Chambers of
Commerce, GORRT, G21,
Victorian Farmers
Federation, Regional
Development Victoria,
Department of Environment,
Land, Water and Planning,
and Parks Victoria
undertaken by the Acting
CEOQ. Partnership plan to be
developed on the advent of
the appointed CEO.

18

Attachment 1 - Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 - 20180502

64



Action
Council Plan Goal:

Sub Actions

1.2 Support a thriving economy and industries.

Department

establishment of tourist
accommodation.

Linkedto 1.1.4

1.2.9 Identify and e Develop the Economic Development and Tourism Strategy. Economic
promote Tourism Implementation of destination marketing plans. Development
pathways between Review and revamp Otway Tourism Advisory Committee (not and Tourism
attractions across the commenced).
whole Shire.
1.2.10 Identify and e Refertoitems1.1.2,1.1.5, 1.1.8 and 1.2.9 above. Economic
support employment in Development
tourism. and Tourism
1.2.11 Explore optionsto | «  Facilitating the planning permit application for Apollo Bay Tourism Planning,
facilitate new tourism Resort. Building and
accommodation. Health
Economic
e Facilitate investigations into opportunity for four star accommodation in | Development
Colac. and Tourism
Planning,
Building and
* Investigate opportunities for tourist accommodation along the coastal Health
hinterland followed by amendments to Planning Scheme to rezone land
to facilitate tourism based accommodation (not commenced).
e Linkedto1.1.4
1.2.12 Review Planning * Upon completion of the Investigation in 1.2.11 undertake necessary Planning,
controls for the coastal planning scheme amendments to facilitate tourism based Building and
hinterland and support accommodation in the coastal hinterland. Health

Not
commenced

Progress

v

Economic Development &
Tourism Strategy scheduled
for completion by 31 July
2018.

New Apollo Bay Destination
Marketing Plan schedule for
release by the Chamber of
Commerce.

v

v

The Minister has called in the
decision on the Apollo Bay
Tourism resort. An
independent planning panel
has been established to hear
submissions. A hearing is
expected before 30 June
2018.

A business case has been
prepared for consideration in
the 2018/19 budget re
opportunities for tourism in
the Otways.

Will occur after the Strategy
above is completed;
anticipated to commence in
2018/19.
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1.2.13 Review the Shire

Sub Actions

The Events Strategy is to be incorporated into the Economic

Department

Economic

Progress

Events Strategy and Development and Tourism Strategy. Development
partner with event e Linkedto1.1.2 and Tourism
organisers to assist them
preserve the amenity of
residents while running
successful events.
1.2.14 Facilitate the e Referto1.2.11,1.2.12and 1.1.4 Economic /
attraction of investment Development
in the development of and Tourism Actions 1.2.12 and 1.2.4 are
high standard not due to commence until
accommodation in Colac 2018/19 and 2019/20
and Apollo Bay, respectively.
complemented by high
yielding nature based
experiences.
1.2.15 Encourage and e Referto1.1.4,1.1.8and1.1.10 Economic To commence in 2019/20.
support existing owners Development commenced
of accommodation to and Tourism
upgrade, refurbish and
develop new
infrastructure to meet
visitor demand.
1.2.16 Review the Great | » In partnership with the Interagency Great Ocean Road Closure Events Economic /
Ocean Road Closure Committee review policy guidelines. Development
Policy. and Tourism
Council Plan Goal: 1.3 Strengthen partnerships with key stakeholders to benefit the whole
community.
1.3.17 Seek regional e Council to endorse priority projects and develop and implement an GM’s Office /
funds from State and advocacy strategy in preparation for State and Federal elections. Corporate
Federal Governments. ) X i Services Council endorsed priority
* Undertake a service review of Council’s grant programs and systems to _ projects. Prospectus/facts
ensure strategic and coordinated approach providing affective GM'’s Office sheets to be completed in
outcomes. Development & April.
Community
Services Advocacy strategy to be

completed in April for
targeted priorities.
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1.3.18 Develop and
maintain regional
partnerships and joint
advocacy.

Sub Actions

Active participation in identified key regional organisations such as G21,
Barwon Regional Partnerships, etc.
Linkedto 1.1.8

Department
CEO’s Office

Progress

v

Active participation through
regular engagement and
representation of Council
priority matters.

implement a Property
Strategy.

valuation, service provision, future investment and disposal of assets.

Project Delivery

1.3.19 Seek to influence Active participation in GROW, Beyond the Bell and Turning Point. Economic /

education providers to Linked to 1.1.8 Development

match local job and Tourism

opportunities with

available skills training.

1.3.20 Support programs | e  Linked to 1.3.19 - include the GROW activity in the Economic Economic /

to reduce youth Development Tourism Strategy Development

unemployment and and Tourism

promote employment for

disadvantaged groups in

partnership with

employers, G21 and the

GROW initiative.

Council Plan Goal: 1.4 Improve strategic planning and coordination of the Great Ocean Road.

1.4.21 Advocate for the e Active participation in the Victorian Government Great Ocean Road CEQ’s Office /

establishment of a Great Taskforce.

Ocean Road Authority. Active participation and
contribution reflecting the
Council’s priorities.

Council Plan Theme: 2 Our Places

Council Plan Goal: 2.1 Assets and infrastructure meet community needs.

2.1.1 Develop and * Strategic Plan to manage Councils properties covering issues such as Assets and Due to commence in

2018/19.
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Sub Actions

2.1.2 Develop and * Maintain relationships with G21, Regional Development Victoria,
maintain constructive VicRoads, State and Federal Government Departments.
partnerships to access
appropriate levels of
funding, coordination,
infrastructure and
services.

Department
CEO's Office

Progress

v

Strong relationships
established with G21,
Regional Development
Victoria. VicRoads, Southern
Rural Water, GORRT, Great
Ocean Taskforce, Wye River,
Skenes Creek, Kennet River
Community Resilience
Committee, Parks Victoria,
State Government Member
of Parliament and Federal
Government Member of
Parliament.

Commerce and Council
with the aim of aligning
strategic planning and
advocacy efforts for
Apollo Bay and district.”

2.1.3 Conduct an ongoing | «  Port of Apollo Bay service review. GM'’s Office
program of service Development &
reviews to guide Community
planning for Services
infrastructure.

2.1.4 Council to work s As per action. CEQ’s Office
with key stakeholders

such as the Otway Coast

Committee, the Apollo

Bay Chamber of

v

A review of all three
directorates has
commenced.

Detailed reviews for targeted
services also commenced
such as the Port of Apollo

7

Regular engagement
undertaken to develop
support for a single Master
Plan approach to urban
planning in Apollo Bay
reflecting a unity of purpose
on priority areas. Progress is
being achieved.
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Action
Council Plan Goal:

Sub Actions

2.2 Our places are managed for long term sustainability.

Department

2.2.5 Update the
Planning Scheme to
reflect changing
community needs and
priorities.

¢ Undertake the Colac Otway Planning Scheme Review and Cutting Red
Tape Project.

e Stage 3 of the project to rewrite the Municipal Strategic Statement (the
MSS) and amend respective Framework Plan. New policy directions in
the MSS will reflect the changing community needs and other social,
economic and environmental aspects influence land use planning at
local level.

e Llinkedto1.1.7

Planning,
Building and
Health

2.2.6 Ensure best
practice guides planning
and management of the
natural environment and
associated assets.

Implement the Councils Environment Strategy (2010-18)
Review and develop Councils new Environment Strategy 2018-26 (not
commenced).

e Implement the Councils Environment Strategy (2018-28) (not
commenced).

Environment
and Community
Safety

Council Plan Goal:

2.3 Towns and places are welcoming and attractive.

Progress

v

Council adopted the Planning
Scheme Review at the March
meeting, and the consultant
has commenced drafting the
planning scheme
amendment to implement it,
with exhibition likely in

2018/19.

Implementation of the
current plan is progressing
effectively. The review of the
Environment Strategy will
commence in the next
quarter, but it will not be
completed until later this
year. As a result
implementation will
commence in 2018/19.

2.3.7 Enhance the
attractiveness of towns
in the Shire for both
residents and
tourists/visitors.

* Implement the Colac Entrances and CBD Plan
e Linkedto1.1.4,1.1.5,1.1.6and 2.3.9

Assets and
Project Delivery

2.3.8 Advocate for
improvements to public
open space where the
State Government is the
land owner/manager.

¢ Build and improve relationships with State and Federal Government
agencies.
* Develop Priority Project Register and advocate for funding.

Arts and Leisure

Completed

CBD & Entrances Stages 1 &
2

v
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2.3.9 Develop and
implement a prioritised
program to review and
implement master plans,
community
infrastructure plans and
structure plans for small
towns across the Shire.

Sub

Actions

As per action.

Department
Planning,
Building and
Health

2.3.10 Incorporate
treatments into
infrastructure standards
that enhance community
perceptions of safety.

Apply for funding for enhanced street lighting and public security
measures.

Ensure that design of public spaces takes account of good design
practice in relation to safety.

Assets and
Project Delivery

Progress

v

Work has commenced on
consolidating a list of all
relevant Master Plans for
small towns. This will be
refined over the course of
2017/18.

2.3.11 Maintain Parks
and gardens, sports
reserves and
streetscapes.

Prepare operational plan for Colac CBD maintenance and cleaning.
Prepare operational plan for maintenance and cleaning of Apollo Bay
CBD.

Services and
Operations

All current designs, both
internal and external,
incorporate Infrastructure
Design Manual Standards.
Further enhancements to
follow in 2018/19.

2.3.12 Support
enjoyment of outdoor
experiences through the
provision of a network of
quality open spaces,

including paths and trails.

Linkedto 1.1.6 and 2.3.7

Review, update and implement the Integrated Water Management
Plan.

Arts and Leisure

Environment
and Community
Safety

Apollo Bay streetscape
pressure washed in
February. Colac CBD serviced
as required.

v

The Integrated Water
Management Plan has been
reviewed and the priorities
updated. Implementation of
the revised plan has yet to
commence.

24

Attachment 1 - Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 - 20180502

70



Action

2.3.13 Evaluate the
feasibility of a regional
wet waste facility to
manage waste from road
and drainage
maintenance.

Sub Actions

Prepare a feasibility study for a regional wet waste facility.

Department Progress

Clarification obtained from
commenced | Council about the desired
Service function of the wet waste
facility. Discussions have
commenced with the
Services and Operations
Department, who require

Governance and
Customer

the facility.

2.3.14 Continue to
support the Apollo Bay
community’s advocacy
for the development of a
public indoor heated
swimming pool in Apollo
Bay.

Assist the Apollo Bay Indoor Pool Group to refine proposal for the
provision of an indoor pool.

Arts and Leisure

v

Council Plan Goal:

2.4 Leadership in natural environment through good management practices.

2.4.15 Ensure best
practice guides planning
and management of the
natural environment and
associated assets, and
Council’s response to
climate change.

Deliver the Climate Resilient Communities Project for the Barwon South
West Region.

Seek funding for the ongoing support of regional collaboration on
climate change (not commenced).

Linked to 2.2.6

Environment
and Community
Safety

v

The Climate Resilient
Communities project will be
completed by June 2018.
Funding has been sought for
further support of regional
collaboration but no funds
have been secured to date.

2.4.16 Minimise coastal
erosion in partnership
with other stakeholders
and implement measures
to assist climate
adaptation.

Deliver the Local Coastal Hazard Assessment Project.
Seek funding for treatment of high risk areas (not commenced).

Environment
and Community

Safety The Local Hazard Assessment

Project is on track to be
completed by June 2018.
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2.4.17 Improve the
health and sustainability
of the natural
environment through
structured planning with
our partners.

Sub Actions

Active participation in regional and local environment forums e.g. G21
Environment Pillar, Lake Colac Committee and Colac Shire Weeds
Committee.

Department

Environment
and Community
Safety

Progress

Council continues to actively
participate in the listed local
and regional forums.

2.4.18 Deliver localised
planning to communities
to reduce fire risk.

e Annually review and deliver Council's Fire Prevention and Awareness
Raising Program.

Environment
and Community
Safety

Council’s Fire Prevention and
Awareness Raising Program
has been delivered

2.4.19 Implement
emission reduction
programs for Council
operations.

Implement Council’s Carbon Neutral Plan.
Seek further funding for emission reduction project.

Environment
and Community
Safety

effectively.

Action continue to progress
toward completion (e.g. Blue
Water Solar Array) to be
delivered by June 30 2018.

Funding has been secured to
do audits of Council Facilities
to identify further energy
saving opportunities.

2.4.20 Enhance the level

* Education campaign occurring in primary schools and via the

Governance and

v

protect biodiversity
through weed control
and revegetation.

Seek external funding for weed control and revegetation projects.

of resource recycling and Community Matters newsletter and Council’s Facebook page. Customer
reuse across the Shire. Service
2.4.21 Enhance and Annually review and deliver weed control and revegetation program. Environment

and Community
Safety

The majority of the Weed
Control Program has been
delivered and funding was
obtained from the State for
roadside weed control.
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2.4.22 Implement
Council’s Climate
Adaptation Strategy.

Sub Actions

* Asper action.

Department Progress

Environment
and Community
Safety

Implementation of the plans
actions has commenced with
organising training for key
Council staff to be
undertaken in May 2018.

Council Plan Goal:

2.5 Delivery of our capital works program.

2.5.23 Develop a system
of capital allocations
based on Asset
Management Plans.

* Not due to commence until 2018/19.

Assets and Not Not due to commence until
Project Delivery | commenced | 2018/19.

2.5.24 Develop a project
management framework,
covering proposals,
planning and delivery.

* Project Proposals to measure strategic alignment, asset renewal, service
need, number of years to deliver and funds required.

*  Planning to examine environmental impacts, availability of grant
funding, required consultation and planning permit requirements.

Assets and
Project Delivery

7

Project Management
Framework in development
based on Prince 2
methodology.

2.5.25 Develop a capital
works reporting
framework.

s System to be developed which reports to Council Executive
Management team as well as Council on a periodic basis.

e Systemis to track progress and forecast end of year results as well as
highlight significant variations from the Capital Works Program.

Assets and

Project Deliver
’ ¢ Framework for reporting on

Capital Works is created.
Further refinement ongoing.

2.5.26 Deliver the annual
capital works program.

e  80% of the program is to be delivered, when measured by either
number of projects or expenditure.

Assets and
Project Delivery

v

Council Plan Goal:

2.6 Emergency management is coordinated locally and on a regional basis.

2.6.27 Community based
planning to build local
understanding and
preparedness for
emergency events.

* Deliver community based fire and emergency management planning in
high risk townships.

Environment
and Community
Safety

v

Council has led the
community based bushfire
planning in Forrest and also
supported work being led by
the State Government in
Wye River, Separation Creek
and Kennet River.
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2.6.28 Education, joint
planning and
preparations undertaken
to prepare for climate
related threats and
emergencies.

Sub Actions

Maintain collaboration with neighboring Councils and key emergency
management organisations on joint planning and preparation for
emergency management.

e Linkedto2.4.15and 2.4.16

Department

Environment
and Community
Safety

Council Plan Theme:

3 Our Community

Progress

v

Council continues to work
with our neighbouring
Councils through the Cross-
Council Relief and Recovery
Meeting to organise joint
training initiatives.

Council Plan Goal:

3.1 Increase social connection opportunities and community safety.

3.1.1 Support community | ¢  Conduct a service review and implement findings of Council’s GM'’s Office Completed A comprehensive community

organisations through community grant programs to ensure align to Council Plan goals. Development & grants review has been

the community grants Community completed, resulting in a

program. Services new program being
designed. The new program
was endorsed by Council in
March.

3.1.2 Support community | «  Review and implement the Access Equity and Inclusion Plan, 50+ Plan Community /

clubs, groups and and Municipal Early Years Plan. Services

associations to provide Meetings within a number of

welcoming and inclusive communities have been held

environments for all to discuss our ageing

members of our population and Access,

community within Equity and Inclusion.

council facilities.

Council Plan Goal: 3.2 Connect people through events and activities.

3.2.3 Provide grant * Consider opportunities to enhance grant programs as part of Council’s GM’s Office Completed Council has endorsed a new

programs to involve local service review of its grant programs. Development & Grants Program which was

people in activities that e Llinked3.1.1 Community informed by a

facilitate their health, Services comprehensive review.

wellbeing and

enjoyment.

3.2.4 Supports * Provide relevant information to community groups on a regular basis. Arts and Leisure

community activities
through information
dissemination and
planning information.

v
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Action Sub Actions Department Progress

Council Plan Goal: 3.3 Opportunities for the community to participate in lifelong learning.

3.3.5 Provide *  Review the provision of library services. Arts and Leisure /

opportunities for lifelong
learning and community
connections through
library programs.

3.3.6 Support for « Continue to resource community services and culture and leisure to Arts and Leisure /
community groups. support community groups.
e Llinkedto3.1.2and 3.2.4 Community Requirements for
Services community grants will

include reference to gender
equity initiatives.

Council Plan Goal: 3.4 Provision of resources to support physical activity by the community.

3.4.7 Deliver programs e Enhance to Learn to Swim program. Arts and Leisure /
through the Bluewater * Enhance the offer of programs such as exercise classes.

Centre that promote » Improve the operation of retail and café services.

physical activity in the ¢ Investigate the feasibility of extending the hours of operation of the

Shire. gymnasium.
s Deliver actions that result from the current Service Review.

3.4.8 Build capacity of e Actively participate in the development and implementation of the G21 | Arts and Leisure
local sports groups in Healthy Eating and Active Living Strategy.
promoting healthy eating
and physical activity.

3.4.9 Encourage more * Review and implement the Access Equity and Inclusion Plan, 50+ Plan Arts and Leisure /

people to participate and and Municipal Early Years Plan.

be inclusive of others.

3.4.10 Participate in the e As per action. Community /

G21 Healthy Eating and Services

Active Living regional

priority project.

3.4.11 Consider health of | ¢  As per action. Assets and Not Strategy review forecast in
the community when Project Delivery | commenced | 2018/19.

formulating policy for
Council’s Property
Strategy.

29

Attachment 1 - Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 - 20180502



Action

Sub Actions

Department Progress

on a continuing basis to
guide asset planning.

Council Plan Goal: 3.5 Foster an inclusive community.
3.5.12 Increase advocacy | ¢  Review and implement the Access Equity and Inclusion Plan, 50+ Plan Community /
in partnership with our and Municipal Early Years Plan. Services
community to enhance e Linkedto3.4.9
cultural awareness,
inclusiveness, safety and
health, community,
family and education.
Counidil Plan Goal: ?.6 Community planning informs provision of Council services and social
infrastructure.
3.5.13 Update social e Develop and implement a Social Infrastructure Plan. Arts and Leisure | Not A
Infrastructure planhing Community Commeiced Development of the Social

Services Infrastructure Plan has not
commenced due to lack of
resources at this time.

Council Plan Theme:

4 Our Leadership and Management

Council Plan Goal:

4.1 Effectively manage financial resources.

4.1.1 Manage the short
and long-term financial
sustainability of the shire
through prudent
financial management.

* Detailed review the General Ledger.
* Review the Rating Strategy.
e  Establish more timely financial reporting processes.

4.1.2 Maintain the 10
year long term financial
plan.

* Review the Long Term Financial Plan to establish a more robust
document.

Financial

Seices Despite delays caused by lost
consultancy time due to
iliness and personal reasons,
the project is back on track
and will be completed,
barring further unforeseen
events occurring.

GM's Office

Corporate

Services Software and development

program purchased. Project
underway.
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4.1.3 ldentify new
income opportunities.

Sub Actions

* Explore opportunities to maximise Capital and Recurrent funding.

Department
CEO's Office

Progress

Priority Projects Framework
established as the basis of
ongoing advocacy to State
and Federal Governments
for funding. Further funding
for Bushfire Recovery
pursued. Funding achieved
for Apollo Bay Harbour.

4.1.4 Maintain low risk
audit rating for financial
sustainability.

* Asaresult of the Annual Audit process address risks as appropriate.

Financial
Services

Council Plan Goal:

4.2 Openness and accountability in decision making.

4.2.5 Ensure where ever

* Governance continues to monitor and provide improvements toward

Governance and

v

possible decisions are open and democratic decision-making. The introduction of overhead Customer

debated and made in projectors for Agendas and Minutes at Council Meetings is an example. | Service

open Council meetings.

4.2.6 Develop and * Implement new reporting framework. People, Completed New quarterly reporting
implement a program of Performance framework implemented in
regular reporting on key and Culture September 2017.
activities to ensure they

are focused on

implementing priorities.

Council Plan Goal: 4.3 Organisational development and legislative compliance.

4.3.7 Support e  Organisational Development/People Strategic Plan 2018-2021. People, /
organisational Performance

development to ensure and Culture Draft Strategy nearing

key organisational
capability areas support
the organisation to
deliver on Council
priorities.

completion. Staff
consultation will occur in
May.
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4.4.8 Manage our risk
exposure, including
providing a safe working
environment where
“Work Health and Safety
is everyone’s business”.

Sub Actions
e Occupational Health & Safety Work Plan 2018.

Department

People,
Performance
and Culture

Council Plan Goal:

4.4 Provide value for money services for our community.

Progress

v

50% of OHS internal audits
completed. Mental Health
Network established.

4.4.9 Implement a
program of ongoing
service reviews to ensure
our services are efficient
and effective and are
valued by the
community.

* Develop a service review program to implement a rolling program of
reviews.

* Review will be completed and prioritised as part of the budget process
(not commenced).

CEQ'’s Office

4.4.10 Enhance
opportunities for
increased local spending
of Council expenditure.

+ The reviewed purchasing and procurement policy, which included
improved local purchasing requirements, was adopted by Council on 27
September 2017.

Governance and
Customer
Service

v

Implemented comprehensive
service reviews, with
Searchlight engaging Council
operations in a continuous
improvement process. State
Government funding
obtained for detailed Asset
Management planning.
General Ledger rewrite in
progress. Long Term
Financial Plan development

4.4.11 Develop
partnerships to procure
services and materials on
a regional basis.

* Roll out adopted procurement policy.

Governance and
Customer
Service

underway.

v

Aspects to be covered in
tender process training
scheduled for this financial
year; annual review planned
to commence July 2018.
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Action Sub Actions

Policy to guide council
decision making.

Status Progress
Council Plan Goal: 4.5 Communicate regularly with our community and involve them in
decision-making.
4.5.12 Review the * Review current procedures and develop a new Community Engagement | CEQ’s Office Not Awaiting adoption of the
Community Engagement Policy. commenced | new Local Government Act,

expected during 2018/19,
which will have implications
for the content of the
Engagement Policy and
subsequent procedures.
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Planning Performance Report

The bar graph below represents the numbers of planning permit applications lodged with Council (all
applications — blue; VicSmart rated applications — dark blue), and the number of permits issued (green)
by month. The economic value of lodged planning permit applications is shown in red.
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The graph below shows the same information, comparing the number of received planning permit
applications and permits issued, across different financial years, as well as value of permits. This
indicates a consistent upward trend in building activity year on year.

- - — Planning Applications Received — VST Applc Xions Receved
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The following graphs indicates the average days taken to determine planning permit applications in the
reported quarter, with permits issued under the statutory timeframe in blue and permits issued over
the statutory timeframe in red.

Planning Permit Average Days VicSmart Permits Average Days

B Permits Under 60 Days B Permits Over 60 Days W Permits Under 10 Days B Permits Over 10 Days
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The following graph indicates the average days taken to determine planning permit applications in
2017/18, by month:

Planning Permits - Processing Days - 2017/2018
30

Jul Aug Sep Ot Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

® Planning Permits <60 Days M Planning Permits >60Days ® VicSmart Permits<10Days B VicSmart Permits >10Days

25
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The following graph shows the number of building permit applications received (blue) and permits
issued (green) by year, as well as the economic value of applications received (red line).
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The following graph shows the number of building permit applications received (blue) and permits
issued (green) by month, as well as the economic value of applications received (red line).
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Planning Permits of Interest

A proposal was received for a multi-lot subdivision of land at 45 Marriners Lookout Road, within the
Neighbourhood Residential Zone to the west of Seaview Drive (approx. 160 lots). This proposal is the
final stage of the subdivision of land on the south side of Marriners Lookout Road, which commenced in
the mid-1990s.

Permits were issued for seven dwellings in the fire affected parts of Wye River - four in Karingal Drive,
two in Durimbil Avenue and one in Koonya Avenue. Seven other permits were issued for single
dwellings elsewhere in the municipality. In addition, a few subdivision and multi-unit developments
were permitted within Colac.

A permit was issued for a 65m high telecommunications mast at 30 McNamas Road in Barwon Downs. It
is proposed to locate an NBN antennae at the top of the tower and Telstra panel antennae ata

50m height, with coverage extending over the Barwon Downs area. The application was submitted by
Telstra under the Mobile Black Spot Program and therefore was exempt from public notice. However,
Telstra advised in the planning application that it was going to give notice of the application via a sign on
site and public notice in a local paper (or a newsletter) to ensure the Barwon Downs community was
aware of the proposal.

A Men’s Shed was permitted at 19-21 Moore Street, Apollo Bay. The sole objection received to this
application was withdrawn following Council negotiation with the applicant to ensure that noise
mitigation measures would be undertaken.

A further permit was issued for the extraction of clay associated with the highway duplication and the
subsequent creation of a dam. An application to delay the construction of Mooleric Road, which was a
requirement of the permit for the quarry at 320 Mooleric Road, was withdrawn.

The Planning Committee approved a permit for a function room at the Wye River Hotel and a shop and
restaurant in Main Street, Beeac.

One application was refused during the quarter which was for the installation of a 20.8m high wind
turbine associated with a dwelling at 155 Evans Track. The refusal was due to the potential for the
proposed facility to have a detrimental impact on this sensitive landscape.

Building Permits of Interest

The following is a list of non-residential related building permits issued that are of community interest,
are of high value (>$1,000,000), or have been refused:

Address Description of Works Permit Approved Comment
37-39 Hesse Street Colac Construction of Church 15/01/2018 Baptist Church
(Stage 2 - To Completion)
32-40 Gravesend Street Colac  Installation of Scoreboard/Signage 09/02/2018 Upgraded for AFL
match

Building Enforcement of Interest
The following is a summary of building enforcement undertaken by the Shire’s Municipal Building
Surveyor over the quarter:

e 4 Building Notices

e 1 Building Order

¢ 1 Emergency Building Orders

¢ 1 Minor Works Orders
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The owner of a fire damaged house in Wilson Street was issued an Emergency Building Order under the
Building Act early in 2017 to demolish the building to achieve public safety, however the owner has not
complied with this direction. Whilst temporary fencing has surrounded the site to prevent public access,
the building needs to be demolished due to safety concerns. The owner has been advised that
prosecution could result from continued non-compliance with the order.

Planning Enforcement of Interest

The following is a list of Planning enforcement issues or current actions that are of community interest:

The hearing of an Enforcement Order application to the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal
(VCAT) seeking the removal of the unauthorized ‘blue buildings’ at Lavers Hill was recently adjourned at
the request of the respondent, with the matter now proceeding to VCAT for a hearing on 24 May 2018.
This application to VCAT was made in 2017, however it has taken some time for a hearing to be
scheduled.

Officers are pursuing compliance with directions to a land owner to remove a dwelling that has been
constructed without a planning or building permit in Yeodene. The owners had previously sought
planning approval for the dwelling, but it was refused on the grounds that the effluent disposal area for
wastewater was too close to a waterway — the site is within a declared water catchment, and the
application had been recommended for refusal by the water authorities. The owner has lodged a fresh
permit application, however it does not respond to the need for the wastewater system to be located
elsewhere on the site. The owner has been advised that further delay in complying could result in
prosecution (joint compliance action between the Planning and Building departments).

Several inspections/audits have taken place to ensure compliance and adherence to issued permits
throughout the Shire where it is believed that conditions are not being complied with.
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Colac Otway Shire Major Projects Program as at 31 March 2018

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Summary
YTD March expenditure of $1.59M compares with the Planned expenditure of $2.25M, or 71% of the YTD forecast.

The report includes a number of Disaster Recovery projects that have been collated as a program where expenditure is fully reimbursed.

This report now better reflects the correct owners and corrected information at the program level.

1.2 Planned Expenditure Monthly Forecast
Current Major ProjectsProgram Percentage Summary as at 31 March 2018

Planned Expenditure for Month $ 465,717 Planned YTD 2,251,096
Actual Expenditure for Month $ 171,114 YTD Actual 1,591,680
Expenditure for Month Performance % 37% YTD Expenditure
Performance Status:

Projects on Schedule Defined by Works Started (More than 90% of the Planned Number) >90%

Projects Behind Schedule (Works Started) by >80% and <90% of the Planned Number) 0% and <90%
Projects Behind Schedule Defined by Works Started (Less than 80% of the Planned <80%

Cumulative Expenditure YTD
$4,500,000 - —Planne — Actual
$4,000,000
$3,500,000 -
$3,000,000 4
$2,500,000 -
$2,000,000 -
$1,500,000 A
$1,000,000 -

$500,000 < + ﬁ !

S0 T v T T T v - v T T ]
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Monthly Spend $

1.3 Detailed Commentary

The report also shows that there area number of projects in the Major Projects program with inadequate budget, and excess expenditure of $0.62M will be reviewed by the Steering Committee to ensure expenditure is capped to the available budget.
Recommendations will be provided to Council describing details of projects to be either descoped or deferred.

This report covers the Major Projects Program, which includes the published 2017-18 Budget Allocation and funds carried forward from 2016-17 and included in the Revised Capital Budget Allocation.
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1.4 Highlights - Projects of Interest

Major Projects Program (Highlighed Projects) as at 31 March 2018 Current Phase Proposed Expenditure Planned YTD Planned YTD Actual YTD Actual Completion
Before Adjustments $ Expenditure After  Expenditure $ Expenditure $  Expenditure %  Expenditure %
Adjustments $
1. 00021706 - Advancing Country Towns (ACT) - Green Industry Feasibility Planning Works commenced 25,284 0 0 0
3. 00024124 - 2016-17 Major Project - IT Planning System Online Service Works commenced 44,741 44,741 460 460
4. 00024147 - 2016-17 Major Project - Sustainable Street Lighting Works commenced 71,000 71,000 28,177 16,452
5. 00023448 - Major Projects 2014-15 Service Reviews Works commenced 346,000 346,000 170,000 70,500
Totals 487,025 461,741 198,637 87,412

1.5 Projects on Hold, Cancelled, or New Additions.
The Steering Committee will consider recommendations by Project Leads in response to issues raised in Section 2.1,

1.6 Consideration for Recommendations
(Budgets variations if requested)

2. Financial Overview

2.1 Financial Summary by Program
Throughout the financial year, occasional approved changes to the Capital Works Budget are made, moving funds between projects or adding funds from various funding sources.

Approved 2017-18 Major Projects Program (CWP) Budget Budget $
The adopted 2017-18 Major Projects Budget Allocation Authority 3,855,548
- Add additional carry overs not included in the Original Major Projects Budget 1,173,622
2017/18 Major Projects Program Reported in Authority 5,029,170
Reconciles with Major Projects Budget from Works Program 5,029,170
Summary of Major Projects by Program by Category Proposed Expenditure Proposed Planned Expenditure  Current Budget $ Grants Current Budget Savings/  Notes
(Budget Adjustments) as at 31 March 2018 Before Adjustments $ Expense After Adjustments $ Available / After Grant (Over Exp) $
Adjustment $ (Not Available) $  Adjustments $
Recreation & Open Space 84,486 84,486 103,199 103,199 18,713
Furniture and Equipment Assets Renewal 16,500 16,500 63,500 63,500 47,000
Major Projects 2,853,542 (1,107) 2,852,435 3,796,852 (1,061,250) 2,735,602 (116,833) 1.2,5
Disaster Recovery Works 811,798 811,798 1,065,619 (253,880) 811,739 (59) 3,4
Council 2017-18 Major Projects Program 3,766,326 (1,107) 3,765,219 5,029,170 (1,315,130) 3,714,040 (51,179)
The Net Impact on Council Funds Surplus/(Deficit) (51,179)
Notes:

1. Forrest Mountain Bike Trail Implementation grant not received, project cancelled, restricted funds, effective budget reduction of $1,061,250

2. 00024428 - Open Air Cinema Event - Film Victoria (covered by grant of $13,500 received). Project completed previous budget - small amount of funds not spent. Budget increase adjustment of $13,500 removed.

3. 00024512 - Major Project - Emergency Wye River Bushfire Recovery- Revegatation Funding is not proceeding. Budget adjustment in BIS -5250,000. There are a number of projects where expenditure is fully reimbursed,
amounting to apporximately $236,000.

4. 00024512 - Major Project - Emergency Wye River Bushfire Recovery- Revegatation Funding. Possible double counting as this Budget adjuestment of -5250,000 results in an adjusted budget of $801,584 which agrees with the
propsed expenditure of $801,643

5.00024122 - 2016-17 Major Project - Strategic Waste Plan, Incorrect cost allocation, journal required.
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2.2 Mid-Year Review

The surplus indicated in Section 2.1 can be applied to other projects as determined by Council. Additional savings are expected as estimated costs are updated with tender prices.

Additional Projects for Consideration Est Cost $ Recommended
Nil Projects for consideration in the Mid-Year Review

Totals

2.3 Proposed Carry Forward to 2018/19

Projects that have been delayed and are impacting on anticipated expenditure, or that have received greater than expected external funding will request funds to be carried forward for use in the next financial year. Early identification of carry forward

funds ensures the optimum utilisation of cash resources. Funds from "Current Year' programs are generally not permitted to be carried forward .

Program Carry Forwards - Budgets to be carried forward to 2018/19

Nil Projects

Notes

Requested Requested This Total $
Previously $ Month $

Major Projects Proposed Carry Forwards

2.4 Planned Major Projects Expenditure

At the start of the financial year, the Works Program (WP) Expenditure Target is set. The Expenditure Target represents the Planned expenditure for the adopted works program programmed to be delivered this financial year.

Major Projects Program Including Proposed Carry Forwards in Section 2.2 YTD Actual Planned
Expenditure S  Expenditure $

Planned Capital Works Program Expenditure After Adjustments in Section 2.1 1,591,680 3,765,219

YTD Actual Expenditure as Percentage of Planned 42.3%

Estimated Capital Works to be spent by end of financial year compared to Adjusted Budget as Percentage 101.4%

Estimated Carry Forward Percentage compared to Adjsuted Budget as Percentage 0.0%

Estimated Surplus Carried Forward compared to Adjsuted Budget as Percentage -1.4%

2.5 Financial Overview and Expenditure Status Report by Program

This section gives a financial snapshot of each program in the Major Projects program. It compares the Year To Date (YTD) Target Expenditure against the YTD Actual Expenditure .

Major Projects Program as at 31 March 2018 Notes Proposed Expenditure Planned YTD Planned YTD Actual YTD Actual Completion
Before Adjustments $ Expenditure After  Expenditure $ Expenditure $  Expenditure %  Expenditure %

Adjustments $

Recreation & Open Space 84,486 84,486 56,486 a,534 I son T

Furniture and Equipment Assets Renewal 16,500 16,500 16,500 15,000 91% 91%

Major Projects 2,853,542 2,853,542 1,459,260 1,011,877

Disaster Recovery Works 811,798 811,798 718,850 518,268

Major Projects Expenditure Status 3,766,326 3,766,326 2,251,096 1,591,680

Notes
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3. Program Status Overview

3.1 Program Status Summary
The following table shows the progression of projects through the various project phases. Projects progress through some or all of these phases. The dates on which each project is expected to achieve each phase are set prior to the start of the financial
year, and are represented by the Planned graph.

Program status summary as at 31 March 2018 Project Planning Start Out to Tender/ Tender / Work Started Works Project PC
Quotation Quotation Completed Finalisation
Acceptance
Planned Number 70 70 63 56 37 22
Actual Number 69 65 59 53 19 17
Performance 99% 93% 94% 95% 51% 77%

YTD Project Scheduling Status

= Planned w—Actual

70 m———

40 -

Number of Projects

30 -+

20 +

10

0 4 } ! } } !
Project Planning Start Qut to Tender/ Quotation Tender / Quotation Acceptance Work Started Works Completed Project Finalisation

3.2 Program Scheduling Status Report by Program
The following table shows the progression of projects through the various project phases. Projects progress through some or all of these phases. The dates on which each project is expected to achieve each phase are set prior to the start of the financial
year, represented by the Planned phase. This compared with Actuals to show the relative performance below.

Summary of Major Projects Program by Category Project Planning Start  Out to Tender/ Tender / Work Started Works Project
(Actual Number of Projects / Planned Number of Projects) % as at 31 March 2018 Quotation Quotation Completed  Finalisation (After
Acceptance Defects Period)

Small Town Improvement Works < ¢ 8(
Furniture and Equipment Assets Renewal 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Major Projects 98% 93% 94% 95% 44% 69%
Disaster Recovery Works 100% 100% 100% 100% . 100%
Notes
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Colac Otway Shire Capital Works Program as at 31 March 2018

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Summary

The capital works program Year To Date (YTD) March expenditure of $12,496,705M is 117% of the $10,708,123 target.

The total estimated carry forwards is $3.95M, largely made up of the Apollo Bay Murray and Pascoe Street road and paving, and disaster recover work; detail below.

‘Work has commenced on the $1.4M Colac Queen Street drainage, footpath and road project. This project is expected to be completed prior to 30/6/18 dependant on the weather.

Progress was made on the Lake Colac Master program with the completion of the paving of the car park near the Colac rowing club.

Of the 275 capital works projects 3 projects will not commence, 8 projects will be commenced yet not completed and 5 projects have been cancelled

Please note the budget totals represented in the report include the Apolfo Bay g and Winifred Nance Kij garten projects; these projects combined are $3.49M. These projects will not be delivered this year.

1.2 Planned Expenditure Forecast
Current Capital Works Program Percentage Summary as at 31 March 2018

Planned Expenditure for Month & 2,083,752 Planned YTD Expenditure at end of the month § 10,708,123
B1S - Actual Expenditure & Commitments for Month § 1,163,931 YTD Actual Expenditure & Commitments as at end of the month 12,496,705
Expenditure for Month Performance % YTD Expenditure for Month Performance % 117%
Performance Status:

Projects on Schedule Defined by Works Started (More than 90% of the Planned Number) >90%
Projects Behind Schedule Defined by Works Started (More than 80% and less than 90% of the Planned Number) >80% and <90%
Projects Behind Schedule Defined by Works Started (Less than 80% of the Planned Number)

Notes
1. The definition of expenditure has been changed in this report to include both actual expense plus commitments, as a measure of the total committed expenditure to date, that will be expended.

Cumulative Expenditure YTD
=—Planned =——Actual + Commitments
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1.3 Detailed Commentary

This report covers the Capital Works Program, which includes the published 2017-18 Capital Budget Allocation and funds carried forward from 2016-17 included in the Revised Capital Budget Allocation.
As per State Government reporting guidelines, the published 2017-18 Capital Budget Allocation excludes the non-capital components of projects, such as funding for maintenance works carried out during the delivery of a Capital
Works project, and includes only those funds carried forward from 2016-17 that were forecast at the time the budget was set.

1.4 Highlights - Projects of Interest
Project

Current Phase Proposed Planned YTD Forecast $ mnmn_ YTD Actual Completion
di Before After H % %
o s o $
00024514 - 2016-17 Half Year Adjustment - Road Improvement Programme - Queen Work started 792,000 792,000 137,545 137,452 100% 17%
Street, Colac {Pound rd to Hearn 5t, as per Council resolution 22/2/17) Combined with
W/0 23517 (Stage 1 Cost $354,089) PM Costs $128,778
Disaster Recovery Works Work started 8,142,742 5,225,742 1,708,358 2,060,091 121% 39%
00024027 - 2016-17 Capital Works - Stormwater Asset Upgrade Programme, Tenders closed 279,539 279,539 279,539 4,518 2%
Thomson 5t duplication Apollo Bay Includes PM Costs
Totals 9,214,281 6,297,281 2,125,442 2,202,060 104% 35%
Notes
1.5 Projects on Hold, Cancelled, or New Additions.
The Executive will consider recommendations by Project Leads in response to issues roised in this Section.
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2. Financial Overview

2.1 Financial Summary by Program
Throughout the financial year, occasional approved changes to the Capital Works Budget are made, moving funds between projects or adding funds from various funding sources.

The published / adopted 2017-18 Capital Budget Allocation (p27, Colac Otway Shire Budget Report 2017/18) and in BIS 21,636,528
- Add additional carry overs not included in the published Buggel 3,232,585
2017/18 Council Works Program Reported in BIS 24,869,113
Reconciles with Capital Works Budget from Works Program 24,869,113

1. Bridges Program 623,171 623,171 690,000 690,000 66,829
2. Slips Program 1 378371 190,945] 287,426 393,210 393,210 105,784
3. Footpath Replacement Program 271,965 271,965 316,000 316,000 44,035
4. Footpath Extension Program 2,3 487,039 {63,000) 424,039 391,000 100,000 491,000 66,961
5. Kerb and Channel Replacement Program 107,904 107,904 135,000 135,000 27,096
6. Transport Infrastructure Sealed Road P; B 4,5 4,115,386 (879,633) 3,235,753 3,730,239 (494,486) 3,235,753 0
(R2R)

7. Transport Infrastructure Renewal Street Furniture Programme 221,856 221,856 230,000 230,000 8,144
8. Road Safety Device Programme 127,942 127,942 99,637 99,637 (28,305)
9. Local Roads Reseal & Major Patch Programs 1,228,589 1,228,589 1,200,000 1,200,000 (28,589)
10. Asphalt Overlay Program 83,781 83,781 100,000 100,000 16,219
11. Capital Works Transport Infrastructure Upgrade Strategic 6 1,756,399 1,756,399 1,672,000 75,000 1,747,000 {9,399)

P

12. Unsealed Road Resheet Program 1,399,012 1,399,012 1,400,000 1,400,000 988
13. Heavy Plant Replacement Program 7 1,455,023 1,455,023 1,027,236 427,787 1,455,023 [
14. Light Fleet uisitions and Sales 860,000 860,000 860,000 860,000 1]
15. Urban Drainage | Program 96,570 96,570 150,000 150,000 53,430
16. Stormwater Assets Upgrade Strategic Drainage Improvement 373,307 373,307 359,539 359,539 (13,768)
Programme

17. Open Space Renewal Program 184,554 184,554 180,285 180,285 {4,269)
18. Active Reserves Renewal Program 8 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 0
19. Small Town Improvement Works 0 0 7,975 7,975 7.975
20. Open Space Assets Renewal Playground Programme 9 203,817 203,817 250,000 (90,000} 160,000 (43,817)
21.CBD 2,075,532 2,075,532 2,102,490 2,102,490 26,958
22. Building Assets Renewal Programme 1,042,825 1,042,825 1,203,811 1,203,811 160,986
23, Furniture and Equipment Assets Renewal 15 839,740 839,740 764,296 764,296 (75,444)
24, Major Projects 10 899,918 899,918 3,781,125 (3,090,000} 691,125 (208,793)
25. Flood Recovery Works 11,12 2,828,815 (650,000} 2,178,815 1,125,270 1,053,545 2,178,815 [
26. Fire Recovery - Stormwater Drainage System - Wye River/Separation 13,14 5,313,927 (2,267,000) 3,046,927 2,150,000 896,927 3,046,927 ']
Creek

Council 2017-18 Capital Works Program 27,525,443 (3,950,578) 23,574,865 24,869,113 (1,121,227} 23,747,886 173,021
The Net Impact on Council Funds Surplus/|Deficit) 173,021
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Notes:

1. 00024731 - 2016-17 Capital Works - Flooding Event - Road Slip Programme - Barham River Road, Apollo Bay. Works were initially given to Services and Operations. This work has now go to tendered. Completion date unlikely

before the end of the financial year.
2. A$100,000 grant has been received for 00024418 - Capital Works 2016-17 - Footpath improvement Programme - Skenes Creek Pedestrian Safety Improvement (GOR - Muller Rd to Skenes Creek Rd).

3. Footpath extension works in Murray and Pascoe Streets Apollo Bay has been awarded however will not be completed until December 2018 which is outside this financial year.

4. The reconstruction works in Murray and Pascoe Streets Apollo Bay, have been delayed by the non-availability of contractors to complete the works this year. These works are funded by Roads
to Recovery, and expenditure is reimbursed from Council's R2R package allocation. The budget for these works has been reduced to reflect estimated claims from R2R this year. This program is
affected by carry forwards for works that will continue in 2018/19. Refer Section 2.3 for details of Carry Forwards.

5. The R2R Program includes a new project for Costins Access realignment to bypass a slip. The esti d cost including land acquisition, fencing, legal fees, design and construction is $230,000. The
existing roadway has been adversely affected by continuing hillside slips, and is no longer feasible to keep this accessible. A more effective solution is to realign the road to avoid slip.

6. 2015-16 Capital Works - Road Improvement Programme - Apollo Bay Parking Improvements - Planning Strategy study, Est Cost $150,000). Confirmation of additional grant funds of $75,000 has
been received, and budget allocation can be increased by $75,000.

7. Plant purchases are funded from reserve. Budget has been increased by additional funds from reserve.
8. Council has received a grant of $250,000 for the Lake Colac Master Plan Implementation in January and has been included in BIS. This makes a total of $500K.

9. The BIS Budget of 590,000 for Work Order 24706 is part grant received in advance; the total grant is $100,000. This grant is also included in Work Order 21863, based on Council funds of 560,000
giving a total project budget of $160,000. A minus grant variation of $90,000 is therefore included above.

10. Apollo Bay Kindergarten relocation to P12 was included in the Budget, but a grant of 53,090,000 has not been obtained. The project has been deferred pending available funding.

11. Flood Recovery Works are fully reimbursed by the Federal Government. The budget has therefore been increased to recognise estimated reimbursement of expenditure.

12. Some Flood Recovery Works were affected by the lack of available contractors to undertake all of the works this year, Carry forward funding for comp! of works is for the f ing
project: Road Slip Programme - Stanway Drive, Wye River
13. Fire Recovery Works are fully reimbursed by the Federal Government. The budget has therefore been increased to recognise d rei of dif

14, Fire Recovery Works were affected by the lack of available contractors to undertake all of the works this year. Carry forward funding for completion of works is required for the following projects:
- Wye River and Separation Creek Township - Reticulated Stormwater Drainage - Pits and pipes
- Cross overs and in situ concrete
- Reinstatement and legal point of discharge
Refer Section 2.3 for details of Carry Forwards.

15. Includes new project 00022709 - Capital Works 2015-16 - Website CMS purchase subscription method. YTD Costs $70,740. There is no budget in BIS for this item.

2.2 Mid-Year Review
The surplus indicated in Section 2.1 can be applied to other projects as determined by Council. Additional savings are as esti d costs are updated with tender prices.
Additional Projects for Consideration Notes Recommended  EstCost$
Priority
Nil Projects for consideration in the Mid-Year Review
Totals 0
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2.3 Proposed Carry Forward Commitments to 2018/19
Some projects will extend into the next financial year, and carry over of funding will be requested. Early identification of carry forward funds ensures the optimum utilisation of cash resources.

Program Carry Forwards - Budgets to be carried forward to 2018/19 Notes Requested  Requested This Total§
Previously $ ‘Month §
00024695 - 2016-17 Capital Works - Flooding Event - Road Slip Programme - Stanway Drive, Wye River 1 650,000 650,000
00024699 - 2016-17 Capital Works - Bushfire Recovery - Wye River and Separation Creek Township - Reticulated Stormwater Drainage - Pits and pipes 2 1,000,000 1,000,000
(Updated 31 Oct 2017)
00025058 - 2016-17 Capital Works - Bushfire Recovery - Wye River and Separation Creek Township - Reticulated Stormwater Drainage= Table drains and F] 869,000 869,000
00024816 - 2017-18 Capital Works -Sealed Road Reconstruction Program -Murray Street, Apollo Bay 4 594,680 594,680
PM Costs $6,531
00024815 - 2017-18 Capital Works -Sealed Road Reconstruction Program - Pascoe Street, Apollo Bay (Cost $299,000, allocation for design, project onging 5 284,953 284,953
R2R funding 2018/19
2016-17 Capital Works - Bushfire Recovery - Wye River and Separation Creek Township - Reticulated Stormwater Drainage — revegetation and LPOD $200,000 [ 200,000 200,000
Murray Street, Apollo Bay (Footpath Extension Program) 7 38,000 38,000
Pascoe Street, Apollo Bay (Footpath Extension Program) 7 25,000 25,000
00024731 - 2016-17 Capital Works - Flooding Event - Road Slip Programme - Barham River Road, Apollo Bay 8 90,945 90,945
00025059 - 2016-17 Capital Works - Bushfire Recovery - Wye River and Creek T hip - d Stormwater Drainage- Pits & Pipes 9 198,000 198,000
Capital Works & Major Projects Expenditure Status 3,950,578 0 3,950,578
Notes:
ah
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2.4 Planned Capital Works Program (Expenditure)

At the start of the financial year, the Works Program (WP) Expenditure Target is set. The Expenditure Target represents the Planned target for the adopted Capital Works Program Budget and
the works programmed to be delivered this financial year.

Planned Capital Works Program Expenditure After Adjustments in Section 2.1 12,496,705 23,574,865
YTD Actual Expenditure as Percentage of Planned 53.0%

Estimated Capital Works to be spent by end of financial year compared to Adjusted Budget as Percentage 99.3%
Estimated Carry Forward P ge comp. to Adji d Budget as P 2 16.6%
Estimated Surplus Carried Forward compared to Adjusted Budget as Percentage 0.7%

2.5 Fi ial Overview and Expenditure Status Report by Program
This section gives a financial snapshot of each program in the WP . It compares the Year To Date (YTD|

Bridges & Slips 1,001,542 910,597

437,134 803,102 88%
Roads & Footpaths 8,400,861 7,458,228 3,288,604 2,222,958 128% 57%
Roads, Footpaths & Plant (O & Senvi 3,714,035 3,714,035 1,676,588 1,244,636 [ 34%
Drainage 460,877 469,877 92,142 139,814 152% 30%
Recreation & Open Space 938,371 938,371 412,368 333,679 e 36%
CBD 2,075,532 2,075,532 2,075,532 2,095,773 101% 101%
Building Assets Renewal Programme 1,042,825 1,042,825 404,877 530,560 131% 51%
Furniture and Assets Renewal 839,740 839,740 282,513 540,239 191% 64%
Major Projects 899,918 899,918 330,006 525,854 159% 58%
Disaster Recovery Works 8,142,742 5,225,742 1,708,358 2,060,091 121% 39%
Capital Works Expenditure Status 27,525,443 23,574,865 10,708,123 12,496,705 117% 53%
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3. Program Status Overview
3.1 Program Status Summary

The following table shows the progression of projects through the various project phases. Projects progress through some or all of these phases. The dates on which each project is expected to achieve each phase are set prior to the

start of the financial year, and are represented by the Planned section below.

Program status summary as at 31 March 2018 Project Planning Start  Out to Tender/ Tender / Work Started ~ Works Completed  Project PC
Quotation Quotation Finalisation
2017/18 Capital Works Planned Projects 275 273 266 208 89
2017/18 Capital Works Projects Actual 274 268 252 210 95
Performance 100% 98% 95% 101% 107%

YTD Project Scheduling Status

®Planned ® Actual

250

200

150

Number of Projects

Project Planning Start Out to Tender/ Quotation Tender / Quotation Acceptance Work Started ‘Works Completed

Project Finalisation
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3.2 Program Scheduling Status Report
Successful delivery of a project to schedule involves meeting milestone dates set prior to the commencement of the financial year. Project milestones dates represent six projects phases , as applicable: Project planning and design,

tender, tender award/acceptance, construction start, construction ion, and project finall Project lexity is taken into ids when lishing milk dates. A project which falls behind in an earlier
milestone may still meet a later milestone date and then be on schedule again.
Program status summary as at 31 March 2018 Notes Project Planning Start Out to Tender/ Tender / Work Started Works Completed Project PC
Acceptance

Bridges & Slips 100% 100% 110% 100% 225% 150%
Roads & Footpaths 100% 100% 91% 127% 123%
Roads & Footpaths (Operations & Services) L 100% 99% _ 126% 109% 120%
Drainage 100% 100%
Recreation & Open Space 100%
CBD 100%

ildis 100%
Furniture and Equipment Assets Renewal 90%
Major Projects 100%
Disaster Recovery Works 100%
Notes (Work Started Red Highlights):
1.The Services and Operations works started of 72% may not be a cause for concern given that tender/quotation acceptance was 103%. Expenditure has been committed and it is more a question of

timing by when works Total i across Services and Operations programs as approx. $139,000.

a9

Attachment 1 - Quarterly Performance Report 2017-2018 - 20180502 95



Financial Performance Report
Overview

The year to date (YTD) actual result within the operating statement indicates a surplus of $2.49 million
compared to a budgeted surplus (YTD) of $15.991 million.

Operating Statement

The information in the table below shows income and operating expenditure for the period ending
31 March 2018. The five (5) columns of data provide information on the following:

e YTD actual results to 31 March 2018

* YTD budget to 31 March 2018 (i.e. estimated timing of income and expenditure)
e Original budget as adopted by Council

e Svalue variance YTD actuals compared to YTD budget

e % value YTD variance to YTD budget.
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For Period Ended 31 March 2018

Current
March March Annual YTD

YTD Actual YTD Budget Budget Variance
2017-2018 2017-2018 2017-2018 ($)*

Income

Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

User fees

Grants - operating

Grants - operating - Bushfire

Grants - operating - Flood

Grants - capital

Grants - capital - Flood

Contribuions - monetary

Net gainfloss) on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment

Share of net loss/(gain) of assaciates and joint
ventures

Otherincome

Total income

Expenses

Employee costs

Employee costs - Bushfire
Materials and services
Materials and servces - Flood
Materials and servces - Bushfire
Bad and doubtful debts
Depreciation and amortisation
Borrowing costs

Other expenses

Total expenses

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
* Please note: The identified lines have been reallocated to reflect the reporting in the Annual Statements.
** Guide to variances - Favourable / (Unfavourable)

The report provides year to date (YTD) summary of Council’s financial position and is a guide on the
timing of receipts and payments. Timing differences can occur during the financial year and where

29,225,305
647413
3,596,112
4,117,980
1,004,250

3,487,149

99,784

279,371

758,710
43,216,073

14,676,834
89,110
16,683,356
445816
322,099
4517
7.436,269
142 477
919,309
40,719,787

2,496,286

29,248,826
611,446
34749867
5,087,502
1,580,562
381,249
9,416,848
1749127
464,776

122,705

5,265
400,254
52,545 547

14,054,280
114,174
12,244 508
1,009,421
533,149
1,488
7,520,094
162,943
913,834
36,553,891

15,991,656

29,238,198
729,883
4,540,249
6.770.124
2,109,892
508,333
11.377.263
2,352874
643,395

159,455

7.022
616,356
59,053,044

18,841,911
152,237
16,644,895
1,335,270
708,339
2,000
10,026,854
226017
1,178,208
49115731

9,937,313

(23521)
35,967
121,125
(969,522)
(576,312)
(381,249)
(5,931,699)
(1,749.127)
(364,992)

156,666

(5,265)
358,456
(9,320,474)

(622,554)
25,064
(4,438,848)
563,605
211,050
(3.029)
83,825
20,466
(5475)
(4,165,896)

(13,495,370)

{0.1%)
59%
3‘5UFJD

{19.1%)
{36.5%)
{100.0%)
{63.0%)
(100.0%)
(78.5%)

127.7%

(100.0%)
89.6%
(17.8%)

{4.4%)
220%
(36.3%)
55.8%
30.6%
(203.5%)
11%
126%
{0.6%)
(11.4%)

variances occur on a YTD basis this does not imply that the annual budget will be affected.

A summary analysis of variances greater than 5% on a YTD basis have been prepared below.

Operating Revenue — Variance Analysis to YTD Budget > 5%

1. Statutory fees and fines: Over budget performance due to $25k of fire prevention
infringements not budgeted, an additional $15k of premise registration revenue (public health),

an additional 528k of planning and development fees, offset by $21k of lower local laws and

parking revenue and $17K of animal infringements revenue.

w N -

~ G W
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2. Grants - operating: Major variances include; 5604k Port of Apollo Bay operational funding from
Transport For Victoria not yet paid and $379k due to unsuccessful Forrest Mountain Bike Trail
funding.

3. Grants operating - Bushfire: This variance relates to timing differences and the payment of the
grants is expected to be received by the end of the financial year.

4. Grants operating - Flood: This variance relates to timing differences and the payment of the
grants is expected to be received in due course.

S. Grants capital: Major variances include; $2.9m due to unsuccessful funding for Apollo Bay
Kindergarten Relocation and Construction project; $1.4m timing issue on funding for Colac CBD
and Entrances project (paperwork for the release of this funding is currently being finalised
(Federal and State) and the amount is expected to be received by 30 June; and $1.78m timing
issue on funding for Roads To Recovery. Of this $1.78m, $1.3m has been received after
31 March with a further $500k of work to be carried forward to 2018/2019 due to contractor
availability.

6. Grants capital - Flood: This variance relates to timing differences and the payment of the grants
is expected to be received in due course.

7. Contributions — monetary: This variance relates mainly to the Capital works area and funding is
generally received at the completion of projects. The current shortfall specifically relates to
Birregurra Tennis/Netball Court Redevelopment $158k, Apollo Bay Kindergarten $113k, Colac
Sports Oval $60k, and the Irrewarra Netball Facilities Upgrade $38k.

8. Net gain/loss on disposal of assets: Proceeds from fleet sales have been received, however
profit/(loss) on sales are expected to be realised by the end of the financial year.

9. Share in joint ventures: Actuals are expected to be recognised at year end, phasing doesn’t
reflect this, annual budget is anticipated to be met at year end.

10. Other Income: This line item represents ancillary receipts which occur at varying times
throughout the year. Items that are currently contributing to the variance include:
e 5152k higher than anticipated cash balances resulting in increased interest income.
e 557k in WorkCover refund not budgeted for (this is to be reallocated against total
labour costs which will reduce the current unfavourable labour variance)
520k higher than anticipated reimbursement from insurers
$20k saleyards pen advertising sign fees not budgeted for.
$19k in higher merchandise revenue for Bluewater Fitness Centre
$18k election penalties received not budgeted for.
$10k higher reimbursement for private works
$62k other - including higher interest charges on overdue rates and charges (518k),
higher COPACC revenue for events and merchandise ($12k).

Where appropriate any recommended changes will be reported as part of the half year budget
review.
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Operating Expenses — Variance Analysis to YTD Budget >5%

11. Employee costs: This variance predominantly relates to the $420k capitalisation of employee
costs that have been incurred on projects that remain incomplete. The unfavourable variance
will be further reduced with the reallocation of the $57k WorkCover refund referred to in Note
10 above. The remaining unfavourable variance relates to a timing issue with higher leave
payments YTD. This variance is expected to be eliminated when all leave provisions are fully
reconciled at year end. For future reference, the introduction of a monthly close off and
reconciliation process will ensure these types of timing issues do not continue.

12. Employee costs - Bushfire: This variance relates to timing differences and the payment of the
employee costs is expected to occur by the end of the financial year.

13. Materials and Services: This variance predominantly relates to the capitalisation of materials
and services costs that have been incurred on projects that remain incomplete. We have $4.8m
of material and services costs to capitalise. This will result in a small favourable variance YTD.

14. Materials and Services - Flood: This variation is due to works not being completed as expected
predominately due to weather delays in construction. It is expected that these works will be
completed in due course,

15. Materials and Services - Bushfire: This variation is due to works not being completed as
expected predominately due to weather delays in construction. It is expected that over the
financial year these costs will be in line with Council’s budget.

16. Bad and doubtful debts: This variance relates to the write off of Port of Apollo Bay fees unable
to be collected over the past 4 years.

17. Borrowing costs: The variation relates to a timing difference for a loan repayment and the end
of year interest accrual, borrowing costs are expected to be in line with Council’s budget at year
end.

Borrowings Analysis

The following is the current schedule of Debt held by Council at 31 March2018:

CurrentYear Non-Current Meeting

Loan Description Loan Liability Loan Liability Schedule
9203 - Loan 7 - Roads, car parking etc ($1.65m) $33,937 $295,637 Y
9206 - Loan 10 - AB tfr statn, libra ($2m)(NAB) $60,902 $531,266 Y
9207 - Loan 11 - Lakeside, AB tfr s($1.1m)(NAB) $31,020 $421,789 Y
9208 - Loan 12 - Saleyards roof (51.178m)(CBA) $21,999 $892,047 Y
9209 - Loan 13 - Street light PV panels ($416k) $12,807 $229,034 Y
9210 - Loan 14 - Bluewater redevelop($1m)(Bond) S0 $1,000,000 Y
TOTAL $160,665 $3,369,773

Based on Current Levels of Borrowings the following are our current performance against key ratios:

Current Risk

Measure Calculation Explanation 30-Jun-17 31-Mar-18 5
Rating
Comparison of non-current liabilities (mainly
comprising borrowings) to own-sourced revenue. The
higher the percentage, the less the entity is able 1o
Indebtedness |Non-current liabilities / 2 iliti
e e A cover non-current liabilities from the revenues the 30% 32% o
e " B Own-sourced revenue is used, rather than total
revenue, because it does notinclude grants or
contributions.
) Measurement of the proportion of borrowings
Borrowings % |Interest bearing loans 5 i ¢
i againstrate revenue raised. The higher the % the
of rate and borrowings/rate 2 : ; 13% 12% Low
higher the proportion of available annual rate
Revenue (%) [revenue . . 2
revenue is being used to back borrowings.
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Cash Balance

The chart below shows projections of how Council’s cash balance is expected to perform over the
course of the 2017-18 financial year. The chart portrays:

e The Estimate — which is an estimation of what the cash balance is expected to be at the end of
each month based upon historical averages. The estimate will reflect recent years which include
one off major projects.

e The Actual - this is the actual balance at the end of each month of the year up to and including
March 2018.

o Restricted Cash — Local Government Victoria (LGV) have changed their interpretation of
restricted cash in the model accounts for 2017/2018. The Finance department are still
analysing this change to ensure our calculation is correct in the Annual Report. The
implications of this change will be disclosed in the Annual Report and updated in the
report for the quarter ended 30 September 2018. Consequently, restricted cash has
been removed from the below graph.

The graph below shows Council’s cash balance is within expectations and every opportunity is taken to

invest surplus cash to maximise investment returns. At the date of preparing this report (10 April 2018),
Council holds cash and investments of $26.7m compared to $26.4m as shown in the graph below.

Cash at Bank & Investments Balance

534,000
532,000 |
$30,000
= 528,000
526,000
W 524,000
522,000
520,000 -
$18,000 -
516,000
514,000 g Historic Cycle
$12,000 4 —m—hctual
510,000
58,000
$6,000 |
$4,000
52,000

Cash/Investment Amount ($,000

Month - Year

Rate Debtors

In the first half of the year, $29.2 million was raised in rates and charges including batches of
supplementary valuations generated by changes to council’s property base. At 31 March 2018, 81.2% of
the rates raised have been collected compared to the same period of the 2016-17 financial year of
80.2%.

The due date for ratepayers opting to pay in full is 15 February 2018. For ratepayers opting to pay via
instalments the first instalment was due 30 September 2017. The next instalments are due 28 February
2018 and 31 May 2018. Any ratepayer who has not opted for instalment payments must make the full
payment on 15 February 2018.

The take up of instalments so far in the 2017-18 year indicate that approximately 41% of ratepayers
choose the pay by instalments. This remains in line with the previous year.
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The following graph shows that current collection trends are closely following the 2016-17 collection

trends:
% of Rates Outstanding
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Defined Benefits Call Expense

Council has a potential financial exposure to the Vision Super Defined Benefits superannuation plan.
Under the Australian Prudential Regulation Standards (SP$160) defined benefits funds must meet strict
funding requirements. This funding requirement is measured by the Vested Benefits Index (VBI), which
shows as a percentage the ratio of investments held by the fund compared to the estimated benefits
payable by the fund at the same time. The latest available quarterly Vested Benefits Index for the Vision
Super Defined Benefits fund is listed in the table below:

Date osted Bene de

June 2015 105.8%

June 2016 102.0%

June 2017 103.1%
September 2017 103.8% (Estimated)
December 2017 106.4% (Estimated)

If the VBI falls below the nominated amount in any quarter then the Australian Prudential Regulation
Authority may require that the fund make a funding call on its members. Any funding call made must
return the fund to a VBI position of over the nominated figure within 3 years.

As at 31 December 2017, the estimated VBI for the sub-plan was 106.4%. This represents an increase
compared to that of 30 June 2017. This is mainly due to:

- good investment returns in the period to 31 December 2017 which has increased the asset
pool supporting the defined benefit liabilities of the sub-plan, offset by

- active member salary increases advised to Vision Super and pension increases in line with
CPI, which has increased the defined benefit liabilities of the sub-plan.
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2017/18 Mid-Year Review

The 2017/18 review has been conducted in a slightly different format to recent years. This year we
directed managers to review projects and major operational items focusing only on materiality.

The Guidelines that have been set for this year are to forecast income and expenditure that have a
variance of +/- 55,000 for both operating and capital works projects. This change in methodology has
streamlined the process for the most part and allowed us to focus on the items that impact Colac Otway
Shire’s financial position.

For surplus funds, there are these options available:

e Reserving the excess for future use
e Redirecting to new initiatives
¢ Funding further capital works if capacity is available

The timelines for the process were as follows:

Issue 31/12 financial data to Managers: Mid-January 2018
Manager meetings: Mid to end of January 2018
Collation of review outcomes: February 2018

Finance review outcomes: End of February 2018
Review Outcomes with EMT: Early March 2018

Report to Council via Quarterly Finance report: April Council meeting

NB* The Collation phase took longer than expected therefore the Executive Management Team review
occurred in Mid-Late March 2018. In addition, due to the timing of ANZAC day, the Quarterly Finance
report is scheduled for the Special Council meeting on 2 May 2018.
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Review Outcomes

As a result of the review we have identified that the following amounts are available for redistribution
from the following areas:

Source Item Excess/ Explanation
(Shortfall)
Standard Operations Movement (574,341) |There are a number of items across the business that contribute

to this shortfall including but not limited to:
- Fleet Services

- Planning

- Community Services (Ex OPASS)

Additional Funding Sources

Surplus Employee Costs 6124,846 |ldentified as excess to council requiremeants

Surplus Materials and Services 5209,308 |ldentified as excess to council requirements

Service Review funding $252,000 |Remaining amount after the Service Reviews that have been
conducted by SearchLight

Unused Project funding $160,000 |[Combination of a number of operating projects that are no

longer required, le Community Grants Programme Review as this
was conducted internally

Unsuccessful Grant Application for Projects 5400,000 |Surplus council cash as a result of failed funding requests.

Reallocation of Funds

Funding to be Carried Forward to the 2018-19 (5500,000) |Identified to assist with the funding of future project works in
Financial Year the 2018-19 Year

Reallocated Works based on Priority

Contracts and Long Term Planning Coordinator ($100,000) |This has been reallocated from the Business Improvement Area
to address councils need for structured future planning

Long Term Financial Planning Project (588,000) [This covers the additional software and consultancy required to
implement this project.
Authority System Analysis and Remediation ($50,000) [This project addresses a number of system limitations and

enhancements to be able to provide more useful information to
the organisation in realtion to the Assets side of the business.

AFL Game (550,000) [Costs directly related to the running of the AFL match.

Cororooke Open Space Audit (530,000) [To investigate the open space infrastructure of the Cororooke
area

24/7 Operation of Bluewater Gym ($36,000) |To make Bluewater's Gym accessable 24 hours a day

Response to the Audit of Forrest ($30,000) |To implement the findings from the audit of the Forrest area

Remediation of Forrest Caravan Park ($20,000) |To remediate issues with the Forrest Caravan Park's
infrastructure

Wye River Separation Creek Geotechnical Study | (530,000) |[Geotechincal Study of the area after the Bushfires

Analysis of Current Censis Data (5$9,000) |To create valued information for council from the last Censis.

|Economic Impact Study of Priority Projects ($30,000) |To create a plan around councils priority projects

Unallocated Surplus $98,813

Explanation of Review Outcomes

After analysing the information that has been presented over the past month we are able to establish
that there are a number of areas that have had movements in the forecast verses the original budget.
There are a number of factors that contribute to these changes, these include:

e Unforeseen legal costs in the Planning area;
e Areduction of throughput for the Livestock Selling Centre; and
e Alarge change in the amount of service we are providing in the Home Care services.

Although there is an increase in surplus overall there are a number of items where surplus is
quarantined. For example the surplus generated from the Home Care area is unable to be used for
other activities and will need to be transferred to a liability account at the end of the year.
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After some analysis of the information provided within the Capital Works area we can determine that
there is only one project that has been removed due to the inability to attract grant funding:

e The Relocation of the Apollo Bay Kindergarten which has a cash contribution of $150,000.

Overall in the Capital Works space based on the projections that are being used currently we look in a
good position to complete the programme (see Capital Works Performance Report).

At the time of the review, the Capital Works area has no available funds for reallocation other than the
item above.

In the Major Projects (Operating Projects) area, there is an available amount from the Forrest Mountain
Bike Trail for $150,000 due to the inability to secure the relevant grant that was expected. There are
several operational projects that are no longer a priority, these include:

Council Grant Programme Review $15k — this has been undertaken internally.
Remainder of the Service Reviews Funding $252K - this is considered superfluous to Council’s
needs to deliver this programme.

* A number of smaller projects are unable to be delivered either due to lack of resources or
change of strategic direction. The total of these projects is $145k.

Reallocation of Surplus Funds

As a result of the identification of surplus funds there has been a conscious decision to allocate some of
these funds to new projects and to carry forward for future use. The decision to carry forward $500k to
the 2018-19 Budget for use has been made with council through the business case process to aid the
funding of the programmes.

The other reallocation of funds relates to being adaptable to changes in the organisation’s needs. This is
highlighted by the new strategic direction relating to long term planning and sustainability. There are
two key items that related to this. These are:

e Contracts and Long Term Planning Coordinator

e Long Term Financial Planning Project.

There has also been a conscious decision to make use of these operational funds to complete and
implement a number of key strategies which have enormous community benefit. These are also shown

in the table above.

Please note that all of these additional projects are anticipated to be completed by 30 June 2018.
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Colac Otway

SHIRE

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

RATING STRATEGY 2018 - 2020

SC180205-4
LOCATION / ADDRESS Entire Council GENERAL MANAGER Errol Lawrence
OFFICER Errol Lawrence DIVISION Corporate Services
TRIM FILE F17/11815 CONFIDENTIAL No

1. Rating Strategy 2018-2020
ATTACHMENTS 2. "From Coastal Communities to Tourist Towns"
3. Rates Modelling Options

To present the Draft Rating Strategy 2018-2020 for the consideration

PURPOSE of Council for public consultation.

1. LOCATION PLAN / AERIAL PHOTO
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2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A draft Rating Strategy 2018-2020 is submitted for consideration by Councillors to be release for public consultation for
4 weeks from 4 May 2018 to 1 June 2018.

There has been quite a detailed consultation process seeking information and feedback from a whole range of
stakeholders. There have been a number of opportunities for stakeholders to have input into this process.

3. RECOMMENDATION

That Council:
1. Endorses the Draft Rating Strategy 2018-2020 (Attachment 1).

2. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to give public notice, in accordance with section 223 of the Local
Government Act 1989, that Council has prepared a Draft Rating Strategy 2018-2020.

3. Appoints a Committee comprising of all Councillors and chaired by the Mayor in accordance with section
223(1)(b)(i) of the Act, to meet on Wednesday 13 June, 2018 at 5pm, and hear any persons who in their
written submissions under section 223 of the Act have requested that they be heard in support of their

submission.

4. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to undertake any and all administrative procedures necessary to
enable Council to carry out its functions under section 223 of the Act.

5. Notes that written submissions will be accepted for a 4 week period closing 5:00pm Friday 1 June 2018.
6. Considers for adoption the Draft Rating Strategy 2018-2020 at the Council Meeting on Wednesday, 27 June

2018 at 4.00pm at COPACC, after consideration of any submissions received by Council at its Special
Committee Meeting on Wednesday, 13 June 2018.

4. BACKGROUND / KEY INFORMATION

BACKGROUND

Council is required to prepare a Rating Strategy that sets out the rating structure and how the rates burden will be
shared across the entire community. The current rating strategy expired on 30 June 2017. The proposed strategy will
apply for the 2018-19 and 2019-20 financial years.

KEY INFORMATION

Commencing in October 2016, the rating strategy process has been the subject of an online survey, a number of
Councillor Briefings, consultation with community groups and organisations, production of a Green Paper released for

public consultation and finally the release of the Draft Rating Strategy (White Paper) for public consultation.

Following is a chronological summary of the consultative process.
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Rating Strategy 23018-2020 Consultative Process

# | Date Action Who Consulted Summary / Comment
October | On line survey as part of Community Specific rates related question were included in survey.
2016 Council Plan preparation. 57 respondents that identified a number of themes
Council should consider.
10/05/17 | Council Briefing session Councll Referred to Macroplan Dimasi economic data and
possible scenarios.
26/07/17 | Council Briefing session Council Rating strategy was previously to be done in 2017-18.
agreed to incorporate
Rating Strategy with 2018- Also listed suggestions from Cr McCracken.
19 budget process
16/08/7 | Council Briefing session Council Agree to hold 2 community workshops.
agree to community
consultation plan.
Septemb | Targeted consultation with | Community 37 groups/organisations requested to identify issues
er 2017 | groups/organisation that believed rating strategy should address.
representing the broad 6 responded.
community
18/10/17 | Rating Strategy Community | Council Consider submissions from VFF, CORRA & Colac
Workshop #2 Business Inc.
(there was a long delay due consideration of CEO
appointment that resulted in CORRA and Colac
Business Inc. being unable to present)
27/10/17 | Article in Colac Herald Community Article entitled “Council snub insults groups” appeared
in Colac Herald.
8/11/17 | 2018 Rating Strategy Council Considered themes identified by the community &
Discussion (Green) paper identified “In scope” & “out of scope” issues.
approved by Council
10/11/17 | Green paper placed on Community Green paper emailed to 765 groups/organisation in the
public exhibition shire
Article in Colac Herald (10/11/17) and advertising on
local radio.
Submissions allowed to be submitted until 1/12/17 (i.e.
6 weeks).
10/11/17 | Article in Colac Herald Community Article entitled “ Ratepayers can comment” appeared
in Colac Herald
13/12/17 | Consider submissions to Council Briefing Session of Council considered the 7
Green paper. submissions received as result of Green paper.
7/02/18 | Council Briefing session Council Scenario raised questions from Councillors re:-
considered modelled - appropriateness of CIV $1M as basis of ‘major
options Commercial” rating category
- type of properties included in “Major
Commercial” rating category
- highest amount of rates payable for a property
in “Major Commercial” rating category
8/02/18 | Aust Tax Office ATO announced it would require Airbnb to submit its
announcement re Airbnb client list to the ATO for tax assessment purposes.
properties
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# | Date

Action

Who Consulted

Summary / Comment

22/02/18

Email from GM Corporate
Services to Councillors

Council

Responded to questions raised at Briefing sessions on
7/02/18 & recommended we should:
- retain the existing rating categories and
differentials and
- prepare arates model on that basis.

The reasons for this were:-

- it was not possible to identify a common factor to
identify properties to be included in a proposed “Major
Commercial” rating category

- the Australian Taxation office’s announcement on 8"
February of its intention to identify holiday rental
properties for taxation purposes, which would provide
us with a more accurate and defensible basis for
including properties in our Holiday Rental rating
category than was proposed in the rates model.

No further concerns/issues raised by Councillors.

15/03/18

Email from GM Corporate
Services to Councillors

Council

Submitted 4 options and the positive and negative
outcomes likely to accrue from each option.

Email recommended Option 1 (i.e. No change
to current categories & differentials) as preferred
option.

No concerns/issues raised by Councillors.

18/04/18

Council Briefing session
considered proposed
Rating Strategy document

Council

Document presented.
Some Councillor concerns were raised regarding
Councillor engagement process.

As identified above, to assist in informing the Rating Strategy, Council undertook three significant community
consultation exercises (in October 2016, September 2017 and November 2017) to ascertain community expectations.
The responses were aggregated into themes which were then taken into consideration as much as possible.

In addition Council obtained demographic data from Macroplan Dimasi, (specialist economist consultants) which was
used to supplement the information obtained from community consultation and support the development of rates

models.

Ultimately it is believed the current rating structure (i.e. the rating categories) is appropriate and the current
differentials between the categories allows for the fair and equitable sharing of the rates burden across the community.

It is considered this Rating Strategy sought extensive feedback from the community and has sought to incorporate these
views into the rating strategy as much as is feasible and legislatively possible. It has also complied with the State
Government’s guidelines for preparing a rating strategy as much as is possible.
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FURTHER SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5. COMMUNITY CONSULTATION & ENGAGEMENT

Please refer to the detail in Key Information.

6. ANALYSIS

ALIGNMENT TO COUNCIL PLAN OR COUNCIL POLICY
The report aligns to Theme 4 of the Council Plan.
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

No environmental implications were identified.
SOCIAL & CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS

No social & cultural implications were identified.
ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS

No economic implications were identified.
LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

No legal and risk implications were identified.
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCIAL ETC)

Should the Draft Rating Strategy not be approved for public consultation the current rating strategy will continue to
operate until such time as a new strategy is adopted.

7. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

DETAILS

If the Draft Rating Strategy is approved for public consultation it will be out for the consultation for 4 weeks from 4 May
2018 to 1 June 2018. After that time any submissions will be compiled and a Council briefing report will be produced for
discussion with Councillors.

Proposed Changes will be made to the Strategy with the view to adopting it on 27 June 2018.

COMMUNICATION

See Details above.
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TIMELINE

See Details above.

8. OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST

No officer declared an interest under the Local Government Act 1989 in the preparation of this report.
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Synopsis

Council is required to prepare a Rating Strategy that sets out the rating structure and how
the rates burden will be shared across the entire community. The current rating strategy
expired on 30 June 2017.

This strategy will apply for the 2018-19 and 2019-20 financial years.

To help inform the Rating Strategy, Council undertook three significant community
consultations exercises (in October 2016, September 2017 and November 2017) to
ascertain community expectations. The responses were aggregated into themes which were
then taken into consideration as much as possible.

In addition Council obtained demographic data from Macroplan Dimasi, (specialist
economist consultants) which was used to supplement the information obtained from
community consultation and support the development of rates models.

Ultimately it is believed the current rating structure (ie: the rating categories) are appropriate
and the current differentials between the categories allows for the fair and equitable sharing
of the rates burden across the community.

It is considered this Rating Strategy has sought extensive feedback from the community and
has sought to incorporate these views into the rating strategy as much as is feasible. It has
also complied with the State Government's guidelines for preparing a rating strategy as
much as is possible.
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1. Introduction

Council is required to periodically prepare a Rating Strategy. The purpose of the Rating
Strategy is to set the rating structure and how the rates responsibility will be apportioned
across the community. The current rating strategy expired on 30 June 2017.

The new rating strategy considered the following:
» Rating structure — is differential rating appropriate and are the current rating
categories relevant?
» Differentials — if differential rating is to be retained, are the differentials between the
categories fair and equitable?
» Other charges - should a Municipal Charge or other specific charges be utilised to

raise revenue and if so, to what extent?

Fairness & equity — what constitutes a fair and equitable sharing of the rates burden?

v

» Capacity to pay — should this be considered and if so how is it determined?

» Rate capping — what are the Iimplications and what is community
reaction/expectations to State Government imposed rate capping?

» Alternative rating options — are there alternatives?
» Hardship assistance — what assistance is available and is it at an appropriate level?

» Penalty interest — when is it charged and is this appropriate?

In the past two years, a number of events have occurred that have significantly impacted
sections of the community. In addition to general economic conditions affecting most people
within the shire, the shire was severely affected by the 2015 Christmas day bushfire in Wye
River — Separation Creek and the dairy industry crisis.

There also appears fo be an emerging community expectation that “capacity to pay” be
taken into consideration when rates are being determined.

As a result officers were keen to ensure the new rating strategy considered the concept of
capacity to pay as part of the deliberation in to how the rates burden should be apportioned
across the community. Having said that, it must be remembered that municipal rates are a
tax based on land value, not income. As such, determining capacity to pay on an individual's
income is not feasible as Council does not have personal income data, nor is it legal in the
context of rating powers.
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2. Legislative Authority

The Local Government Act 1989 stipulates that the primary objective of a Council is to
endeavour to achieve the best outcomes for the local community while considering the long-
term and cumulative effects of decisions. In seeking to achieve its primary objective, a
Council must have regard to a number of facilitating objectives, including:

« promoting the social, economic and environmental viability and sustainability of the
municipal district;

« ensuring that resources are used efficiently and effectively and services are provided
in accordance with best value principles to best meet the needs of the local
community;

+ improving the overall quality of life of people in the local community;

e promoting appropriate business and employment opportunities to ensure that
services and facilities provided by the Council are accessible and equitable;

« ensuring the equitable imposition of rates and charges; and

* ensuring transparency and accountability in Council decision-making.

(2.1) Equity

Section 3C (2) (f) of the Local Government Act 1989 requires Council to ensure rates are
levied fairly and equitably.

The Local Government Act does not define what is “equitable”, however as the rates are a
tax based on valuation of the property it is generally accepted that equity does not relate to
the amount of rates to be paid.

Overall, in considering what rating is “equitable” Council must consider all facets of the rating
structure, property valuation, budgetary requirements and differentials between rating
categories in order to meet the needs of the community.

(2.2) Basis of Rating

Section 158A requires Council to separately levy a rate or charge on each portion of land for
which it has a separate valuation.

Section 157 provides for Council to use the site value, nett annual value or capital improved
value as the means of valuing properties for rating purposes.

As such, the link between the valuation of a property and the amount of rates levied is legally
established. Rates paid are therefore are not a reflection of services provided or used.

(2.3) State Government Guidelines
In addition to the legislative authority, the State Government provided a Revenue and Rating

Strategy Guide in 2014. The guide suggests a key step in developing a rating strategy is the
consideration of the following principles:
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# Principle

Explanation

1 Wealth tax

Rates are a tax based upon the value of the property being rated and has
no correlation to the ratepayers access to or consumption of services.

2 Equity

That consideration be given to “horizontal equity” (i.e. that ratepayers with
similar valued properties should pay similar amounts) and “vertical equity”
(i.e. that ratepayers with higher valued properties should pay more than
those with lesser valued properties).

3 Efficiency

That consideration be given to the extent to which production and
consumption decisions by people are affected by rates.

4 Simplicity

The system should be easily understood by ratepayers and be practical to
administer.

5 Benefit

That consideration be given to the nexus between consumption/benefit
and the rates burden.

6 Capacity to pay

What factors are relevant to particular property classes in order to make
informed observations about their capacity to pay rates.

7 Diversity

Which groups in the municipality may warrant special consideration in
regards to their capacity to pay.

3. Current Rating Situation

Clearly, a key aspect of the rating strategy is to review the existing rating structure.

Like most municipalities in Victoria, this shire has a differential rating structure, which applies
a different rate in the dollar to different types (categories) of properties. The rating category
is a generic indication of how the property is being used (eg: for a residential, commercial,
holiday accommodation or farm use).

Also like most Victorian Councils, the Capital Improved Valuation of a property is used as the

basis of rating.

Revenue derived from the below rating categories comprises the general rates component of

an overall rates bill.

The current rating structure, rates in the dollar and differential are:

Differential
Rating Category Ratein$ | (from base

rate)
Residential - Colac/Elliminyt (Residential properties in the Colac, | 0-004422 100% (base
Colac East & West & Elliminyt township. rate)
Residential - Balance Shire (Residential properties located inthe | 0.003759 85%
municipality excluding Colac & Elliminyt)
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Holiday Rental (Houses/cabins that are made available for short 0.004422 100%
term holiday accommodation for a fee/tariff)

Rural — Farm 0.003405 7%
Commercial / Industrial — Colac/Elliminyt/Colac West (Commercial | 0.007297 165%
properties in the Colac, Elliminyt & Colac West Township

Commercial / Industrial - Balance Shire (Commercial properties 0.006191 140%
not located in the townships of Colac, Apollo Bay, Elliminyt or

Princes Highway Colac West

Most Council's in Victoria have similar differential rating categories to ours. The exception is
the Holiday Rental category, which very few if any have. Overall, all properties within the
shire generally fit into one of the above rating categories.

In addition to the general rates derived from the above rating categories, Council also levies
the following charges:

(3.1) Municipal Charge

This is a flat charge levied on all properties pursuant to section 159 of the Local Government
Act (as amended).

The Municipal Charge raises revenue to pay for a proportion of the administrative costs of
Council.

The total amount of revenue able to be raised from the Municipal Charge is 20% of the sum
total of revenue raised from the charge and general rates in that financial year. In 2017-18
the revenue from the Municipal Charge amounted to 10% of the total revenue from the
charge and general rates.

The only exemption from the Municipal Charge is for Singe Farm Enterprises which have
two or more assessments in the same ownership that are used for farming purposes.

In these cases, at least one Municipal Charge is required to be paid.

The Municipal Charge for 2017-18 was $184.64.

As part of its budget deliberations Council reviews the amount of the Municipal Charge.
(3.2) Waste Management Charge

This is a flat charge levied on all properties on the waste collection routes or those that have
requested to use the service pursuant to section 162 of the Local Government Act 1989.

The charge is levied to defray the costs of Council providing a kerbside domestic waste
collection service. As such it is a user pays charge levied on properties that derive benefit
from the service. The service is provided on a weekly basis for most properties with a
fortnightly service in Wye River.

The Waste Management Charge for 2017-18 was $298.00 per annum for the weekly service
and $198.00 per annum for the fortnightly service.

As part of its budget deliberations Council reviews the amount of the Waste Management
Charge.
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4. Valuations

A key determinant of the amount of general rates a property will pay is the valuation of the
property. The valuation used for rating purposes is the Capital Improved Valuation (or “CIV").
The CIV is an estimate of the market value of the property (being land and any capital
improvements such as buildings, fences etc.) as at the valuation date.

The valuation date is a set date at which all properties in the Shire are valued at. This
ensures all properties are valued relative to each other at the same point in the market cycle.

Valuations are reviewed every two years in accordance with the Valuation Best Practice
Guidelines prescribed by the Victorian Valuer General. The last valuation returned was the
2016 revaluation which was used for rating purposes in the 2016-17 and 2017-18 financial
years. The valuation date for this valuation was 1January 2016.

As from 1 July 2018, the Valuer General will become the valuation authority for all Councils
and valuations will be renewed annually.

Property owners are advised of their valuations on their annual rates notice issued in August
and there is a two month period in which objections to the valuation may be lodged. This
results in the valuation being reviewed by our contract valuer.

5. Rate Capping

Since 2016-17, Victorian Councils have been subjected to a municipal rate cap imposed by
the State Government. The cap provides for the amount of general rates and charges to be
capped at a percentage above the amount of rates and charges levied for the previous year.

The cap for 2016-17 was 2% and for 2017-18 was 1.75%. It has been set at 2.25% for
2018-19.

6. Payment Options

Council provides the following three payment options:

Option When due
Quarterly Instalment 1% Instalment due 30 September
2™ Instalment due 30 November
3" Instalment due 28 February
4" Instalment due 31 May
Payment by Arrangement Frequency of part payments by arrangement with full amount due
by 31 May
Lump Sum payment Full payment by 15 February
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7. Payment Methods

Rates and charges are able to be paid by the following methods:

online ( via BPay, Post BillPay and Formsport or via Council's website)

by direct debit

by cheque

in person by cash or credit card at Council’'s customer service centres at Colac
and Apollo Bay and at any post office.

VVvVYV

8. Penalty Interest

Penalty interest is charged on rates not paid by due dates in accordance with section 172 of
the Local Government Act 1989. The penalty rate of interest is prescribed by the State
Government.

Exceptions to this are:

* Late payments of instalment 2 and 3 for accounts where the quarterly instalment
option has been activated by the ratepayer. Our practice has been to allow missed
payments of these two instalments to not be charged interest as they will appear as
being due on the next Instalment notice issued.

« Rates being paid by arrangement where a part payment is missed.

In both these cases, rates are required to be paid in full by 31 May. Interest is charged on
any balance outstanding after this date in accordance with the requirements of section 172
of the Act.

The penalty interest regime used by Council minimises interest to the ratepayer as much as
possible and is considered appropriate.

9. Hardship Assistance

Council has a Rates Assistance to Rates Debtors in Hardship policy which seeks to provide
assistance to rates debtors who can show they have legitimate financial hardship.

The policy expects the rates debtor to be making an effort to be paying rates and provides
for:

v" all accrued interest to be waived, and
v"no further interest to be levied for a specific period of time.

The intention is that rate payments made will be reducing principal instead of being applied
to paying interest.
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10. Action Taken Leading to This Strategy

A review of the 2014-17 Rating Strategy commenced in July 2016. To enable informed
proposals to be developed, Council sought the assistance of Marcroplan Dimasi to compile
socio-economic demographic data relevant to the shire.

Macroplan Dimasi are specialist economist consultants who have vast experience in
compiling, analysing and interpreting demographic data for the government and local
government sector.

This data was obtained from a variety of sources and was as current as possible at the time
of collection. It did not however include data from the 2016 national census undertaken in
August 2016 as that data was not available when Macroplan Dimasi compiled the data in
November 2016. Macroplan Dimasi's final report, entitled “From Coastal Communities to
Tourist Towns” was provided to officers in February 2017. A further copy is attached to this
report.

(10.1) Demographic Snapshot

The data compiled by Macroplan Dimasi indicated the Shire had the following demographic

characteristics:

Data Findings

Population growth — « Shire's population growth rate has gradually decreased since 2008 to

historical & future be -1.2% (compared to Victorian growth rate of 0.5%).
Estimated population in 2015 was 20,255.
Duplication of the Princes Highway may lead to an increase in the
future.

Age profile « Shire population is on average older than regional Victoria.

Share of people aged 65 and over increased from 16.6% to 21.4% in
available data period.

« Future growth is expected in next 15 years due to factors such as
Princes Highway duplication extending to Colac and the Outer
Metropolitan Ring Road construction.

e There appears to be a possibility of housing affordability
initiatives/policies by State/Federal governments that may lead to a
population shift to rural areas.

Dwelling structure & + High proportion of detached dwellings
tenure type + Higher rate of unoccupied dwellings than regional average (believed to
be caused by the incidence of holiday houses).

Income * The Shire has significantly lower median weekly income than the
Victorian figure.

The average annual wage is approx. $42,000.

Council data suggests approximately 15% of the population are
pensioners.

Qccupation There were around 8,258 employment positions in the shire (as at the
2011 census).
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The breakdown of these is as follows:

- Managers 20.1%
- Labourers 16.8 %
- Professionals 14.1%
- Technicians/trades workers 12.8%
- Community/personal care workers 11.1%
- Clerical/administrative workers 9.5%
- Sales workers 9.4%
- Machinery operators/drivers 6.2%

The Shire’s unemployment rate in late 2016 was 4.5% - slightly less than
the Victorian rate.

Business by industry

As at June 2015, there were 2,259 businesses across 20 industry types.

The top five employing industries in terms of number of employing
businesses & turnover were:

- Agriculture/forestry/fishing

- Construction

- Retail trade

- Accommodation/food services
- Transport/postal/warehousing

The agriculture/forestry/fishing sector was dominated by enterprises that
are owner/family operated.

* Accommodation/food services sector is dominated by domestic
tourism with 385,000 overnight visitors injecting $151 million into local
economy.

A further 409,000 day visitors spend another $40 million.
About 88,000 international visitors spend a further $26 million locally.
Most of this has occurred along the coast.

Dwelling approvals

e Approvals for new dwellings in the Shire have remained relatively
stable over the past ten years.

Sales & prices

« Median sale price of houses has increased from $102,000 in 2001 to
$300,000 in 2016.

e The number of sales has decreased from 500-700 p.a. in 2001-07 to
300-500 p.a. since.

In summary, the Shire:

YV YYY

fishing sector);

Y

;v

has a static, ageing population base;

approximately 15% of the population are pensioners;

residents tend to own their home;

less than half of the Shire population are employed;

a significant number are self/ffamily employed (particularly in the agriculture/forestry/

there is a lower than average income (at $42,000 p.a.);

the number of new dwellings constructed has remained stable;
» house sale prices continue to rise - but less houses are being sold.
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(10.2) Community Consultation

In addition to obtaining demographic and economic data, since October 2016 there have
been three significant consultative exercises undertaken to investigate community views and
expectations in relation to municipal rates. These were:

When | Type of Consultation | Respondents | Responses
Undertaken

Oct On line survey as part | Fifty seven « Affordability is important

2016 of Council Plan respondents « Consider new levies e.g. to support the
preparation environment

* Support the farming sector

+ Farming sector rates are tax deductible and
they should contribute more due to their
size. Residential ratepayers need support.

+ Spend more on maintenance of assets.

* Look at new businesses like Airbnb and
ensure they are paying their fair share.

« Investing in smaller towns outside Colac is
important.

Sept Thirty seven Six + Retain differential rating structure.

2017 | groups/organisations | respondents |« Review differentials for farm, Holiday
representing Rental rating categories & create new
commercial, farming & Coastal category.
residential sectors « Farm differential to be 55% of base rate
requested to provide « rates payable for farms to be equal to
comment re issues to comparable commercial business
be considered in 2018 « single assessment for farms
Rating Strategy

* Review retaining Municipal Charge.

» Consider ability to pay/ apply “User
pays'/rates levied should be commensurate
with services provided.

Nov 2018 Rating Strategy | Three « Rates relief for property owners that

2017 Discussion (Green) respondents (5 undertake weed control.

Paper placed on public | submissions) |« People shouldn't pay for services they don't
exhibition use (i.e. more user pays)

(10 Nov = 1Dec 2017) + Rates levied should be commensurate with
Emailed to 755 services provided.

businesses & « Access to services should determine rates
community groups payable.

Whilst these consultative exercises indicated there are opposing views on the some specific
issues, the feedback was aggregated into the following themes:

#

Theme

Retain differential rating.

Review differentials between rating categories (eg: Farm, Commercial, Holiday rental, new

Coastal).

E [ N =

Municipal Charge — whether to retain it or abolish it.

Fairness & equity — consider capacity to pay / apply “user pays” model / value for money /

rates to reflect services used or accessible.

w

Rates relief for owners that undertake environmental land management.
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(10.3) Guiding Principles

These themes were considered by Council at a briefing session on 13 December 2017,
resulting in the following principles being agreed on to guide the preparation of the Rating

Strategy:
# Theme Principle
1 Retain differential rating That a differential rating structure be retained.
structure
2 Review differentials between That the differentials between rating categories be
rating categories modelled and reviewed.
3 Investigate retaining Municipal * That the Municipal Charge be retained and
Charge « Council seek to reduce the amount of the charge.
4 Fairness & equity That Council reaffirms:
* rates are a tax to raise revenue to provide services
across the entire Shire and
* itis not feasible to apply a full “user pays” model to
Council services or levy rates according to usage or
accessibility.
5 Rates relief for owners that That Council:
undertake environmental land « investigate an appropriate criteria for providing rates
management. relief for properties covered by a Trust For Nature
covenant
« that such support be a rebate at a rate per hectare.

11. Capacity to Pay — What is it and Who has it?

A common theme raised in community consultation over the years is that municipal rates
should be based upon a person's capacity to pay. This is also a “principle” the “Revenue
and Rating Strategy Guidelines 2014:" suggests should be considered by Council when
developing a rating strategy.

(11.1) What Is It?

The reality is however, whilst this seems a reasonable aspiration, people's financial
circumstances inevitably vary and are known only to the person concerned. Thus
implementing this aim presents significant practical difficulties.

As it is presumed “capacity to pay" is evidenced by income, the question then is whether
“gross income” or “nett income” should be the determinant of rates payable. This then has
implications in regards to equity of rating as some sections of the community (e.g. the
commercial, small business and primary sectors) have the capacity to minimise their income
for taxation purposes whilst other sectors (e.g. PAYE taxpayers) cannot minimise their
taxable income to the same extent.
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As Council does not have access to income data, it is not feasible to use income (gross or
nett) as a basis for municipal rating.

Overall, municipal rates comprise approximately 3.5% of all tax income in Australia, with a
rates bill generally amounting to approximately 3% of a ratepayer’s gross income.

Notwithstanding this, Council was keen to take capacity to pay into consideration when
apportioning the rates burden. As this can’'t be done on an individual basis, it was considered
the focus should be on the general capacity to pay of the rating category. This will be
influenced by a range of broad economic factors.

As the rating categories may contain a range of property types in a range of sectors, the
overall economic effect on some properties will vary. As an example, whilst the Commercial
rating categories will contain both retail and industrial properties, general economic
conditions may have a different effect on both types of property. This will affect capacity to
pay.

(11.2) Who has “capacity to pay”?

Based upon the Macroplan Dimasi data from 2016, the following is a broad view of factors
affecting our rating categories:

Rating Category Factors to Consider
Residential - e High proportion of owner/occupied dwellings.
Colac/Elliminyt *  Many occupants on lower than average PAYE wage or are retiree

and/or pensioners.

» Many owners are PAYE wage earners who are experiencing
sustained low wage growth and rising utility, insurance and health
costs etc.

* Record low mortgage rates — but these will rise

+ Rates are generally paid after tax and are not tax deductible.

Residential — Balance of e Low valued properties in townships such as Cressy, Beeac and

Shire Pirron Yallock, with owners usually in lower income group.

e Many owners are PAYE wage earners who are experiencing
sustained low wage growth and rising utility, insurance and health
costs etc.

+ High valued properties are located along coastal regions (Apollo
Bay, Marengo, Skenes Creek etc.).

+ High incidence of investment properties/holiday houses.

« Better financial returns from letting houses as holiday
accommodation resulting in scarcity of residential lease properties.

+ Residential lease rents expensive affecting quality of community.

* Wye River - Separation Creek affected by 2015 bushfire.

« Rates are generally paid after tax and are not tax deductible.

Holiday Rental « Category contains approx. 430 properties that are known to be
made available for holiday accommodation for a fee.

« Many other properties escape detection and are therefore under
rated. Introduction of Airbnb type model has made it increasingly
difficult to capture properties used for holiday accommodation.

* Varying degrees of commerciality but can gross a minimum of
$10-12,000 p.a.

*  Usually set up as business for tax purposes — rates are a tax
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deductible business expense.

Profit margins can be tight but profit not always primary issue -
usually not the owner's primary income.

Record low mortgage rates — but these will rise.

Directly benefit from the 385,000 overnight visitors spending $151
million into local economy.

Holiday accommaodation industry has peak seasons but has good
off peak trade.

Wye River - Separation Creek affected by 2015 bushfire but
properties not affected by the fire are still being made available for
accommodation at tariff range of $2,500- $7,500 per week in peak
season. Some high end Wye River properties are available for up
to $12,000 per week in peak season.

Rural - Farm .

Range of property types — mostly dairy, beef, potatoes, cropping &
sheep.

Dairy affected by dairy crisis (reduced income & “claw back”
payments)- though farm gate prices have since increased and
processors waived claw back payments in return for continuity of
milk supply.

Rising production costs — this is particularly an issue for small
farms.

Commadity prices rise & fall due to external influences.

Volume of rural land sales increased sharply from 2009 but
declined in 2014 and 2016 (with a spike in 2015) - suggesting
farmers reacting to low profitability from 2009.

Sector is not a large employer of non-family labour but does
contribute to other businesses, thereby indirectly creating
employment.

All/part of rates/utilities are a tax deductible expense.

— Colac/Elliminyt/Colac

Commercial / Industrial .

West .

There are a range of property types and sectors in this category
e.g. from small retail shops to AKD, Calco, Bulla etc.

Different factors affecting different properties.

Category contains businesses that are a considerable source of
employment (e.g. Bulla, AKD etc.).

Retail sector facing online & Geelong competition (affecting
profitability) — professional services sector less affected.

Rates are a tax deductible business expense.

Population base (i.e. market) not growing — may improve after
duplication of Princes Highway completed.

Need to retain competitiveness — to create / keep jobs.

Balance Shire

Commercial / Industrial - .

Mainly contained to coast (Apollo Bay) and some in small towns
(Birregurra, Forrest, Gellibrand, Beeac, Pirron Yallock, Cororooke
etc.)

Mainly food services, retail and large scale (i.e. motel/resort)
accommodation.

Directly benefit from the 409,000 domestic day visitors and 88,000
international visitors spending $66 million locally. Large passing
trade opportunities.

Duplication of Princes Highway should have positive affect.
Rates are a tax deductible business expense.

Provides employment in towns.
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From the above it appears

Rating Category | Factors to Consider

Residential - This rating category contains properties owned mostly by PAYE wage earners

Colac/Elliminyt and pensioners, who are experiencing sustained low wage increases and
rising domestic costs. Fortunately mortgage rates have been at sustained
record low levels, but this will not last indefinitely.

Residential - This rating category is similar to the above but includes dwellings not

Balance of Shire

occupied by owners that are not used for commercial or semi commercial
holiday accommodation purposes.

The category also includes Wye River — Separation Creek, which was
ravaged by the 2015 Christmas day bushfire. There are however very few
permanent residents in this township.

Holiday Rental

This rating category contains dwellings that are made available for holiday
accommodation on a commercial or semi commercial basis. The vast majority
of these properties are located in the coastal region. They are usually set up
as a business for taxation purposes and in peak seasons generally command
tariffs of $2,500-$4,000 per week (depending on quality of house etc.). Based
on the data, the holiday rental sector is prospering (or has the capacity to
prosper).

The category also includes Wye River — Separation Creek, which was
ravaged by the 2015 Christmas day bushfire. This affected holiday rental
earnings for those properties not damaged by the fire throughout 2016.

A challenge in relation to this rating category is it has become increasingly
difficult to identify all properties used for holiday
accommodation purposes to ensure they are correctly rated.

Rural - Farm

Dairy farmers have experienced a prolonged period of lower profit margins,
made worse by the decisions by processors to cut the farm gate milk price
and seek claw back payments. However, prices have increased since and
processors waived/refunded claw back payments. Overall, there is no
increase in sale of farms —suggesting that despite the dairy crisis and reduced
profit margins, there is no significant exodus from the industry.

Dairy industry figures for 2016-17 show the average dairy farm in south west
Victoria milks approximately 368 cows and produces approximately 525 kg of
milk solids/cow/year.

In the same period, beef and sheep have performed very well. Whilst cropping
had a bumper harvest in 2016-17, frost in November 2017 may affect the
2017-18 yield, but the effects on price is unknown at this stage.

Commercial /
Industrial —
Colac/Elliminyt/Colac
West

« The commercial/retail sector in Colac is not experiencing the same level
of prosperity as the coast.

« Small retail shops in particular are susceptible to competition from online
providers,

« Professional services, banks, supermarkets and larger businesses are
less susceptible.

Commercial /
Industrial — Balance
of Shire

The commercial / retail sector along the coast (basically Apollo Bay) is
prospering due to visitor numbers /passing trade.

Small townships away from the coast are not experiencing the same level of
prosperity
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From a capacity to pay perspective, the following table provides a summary of the rating
categories capacity to pay or absorb rates:

Rating Category | Why it has/hasn’t capacity to pay
Residential - Includes many residents on PAYE wages and pensioners
Colac/Elliminyt Average wage in shire is $42,000
Wages growth has stagnated for approximately 10 years
Employment more uncertain
Rates paid after tax
Residential — Includes many residents on PAYE wages and pensioners
Balance of Shire Average wage in shire is $42,000

Wages growth has stagnated for approximately 10 years
Employment more uncertain
Rates paid after tax

Holiday Rental

Predominantly located in the coastal region

High level of tourist stayovers (worth approximately $151 million per
annum).

Rates & utilities are a tax deductible business expense.

| Rural - Farm

All mainstream agricultural activities have performed well in 2016-17 and |

2017-18 after a period of lower returns caused by drought and the dairy
crisis, due to the fickle nature of the performance of this industry sector
and the seemingly disproportionate land values compared to industry
revenues, it is difficult to make a substantive case that this differential has
the capacity to pay more. This is recognised by the Shire with the current
discount on the rate in the dollar to 77%.

Commercial /
Industrial -
Colac/Elliminyt/Colac
West

Small retail businesses in Colac/Elliminyt (mostly in Murray St) are
suffering from on line competition.
Larger businesses not as susceptible to this.

Commercial /
Industrial — Balance
of Shire

Coastal commercial/industrial properties have the benefit of high levels of
passing trade/opportunities (worth approximately $66 million per annum).
Rates & utilities are a tax deductible business expense.
Commercial/industrial properties in rest of Balance of Shire not
experiencing same economic activity.

12. Rates Modelling

Rates modelling undertaken looked at:

» the appropriateness of the current rating categories
» the effect of changing rating differentials between rating categories

» the extent of changes to the amount of rates that would be payable as a result of

changes to the differentials.
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The valuation data used for rates modelling was data that was proposed, at that point in
time, to be the 2018 revaluation data. As the 2018 revaluation was being prepared at the
same time as the Rating Strategy, it was understood there may be some difference between
the proposed data and the final revaluation data that was due to be returned in April 2018.It
was anticipated the variance would not affect the Rating Strategy outcomes.

The modelling looked at apportioning the rates burden to the rating categories that appeared
from the economic data to have the capacity to pay. This aim was consistent with views
expressed by the community in consultative exercises undertaken.

This scenario required some re-categorising of properties and looked at:

= Creating a specific (new) “Commercial/lndustrial - Apollo Bay / Marengo / Skenes
Creek” category,

= Creating a new “Commercial/Industrial — Major” category, and

= |ncreasing the “Holiday Rental” rating category by including absentee owned
dwellings located in the southern end of the shire into the category.
The basis for this was an acknowledgement that a large number of properties used
for holiday accommodation were not included in the Holiday Rental category as they
were let out through various on line applications (eg: Air BnB etc) and were difficult to
identify for rating purposes.

Incorporating these changes proved problematic for a range reasons with the outcome being
many properties in a variety of rating categories would experience significant rates
increases. This was particularly so for absentee owned dwellings that would be included in
the "Holiday Rental” rating category.

Coincidentally, in early February 2018 (just after this modelling was done), the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO) announced they were requesting Airbnb provide them with a list of
their clients for taxation purposes. This appeared to create an opportunity for Council as it
was felt obtaining addresses of properties used to provide holiday accommodation from the
ATO would be a fairer and more definitive means of identifying properties to be included in
the “Holiday Rental” category. It would also lead to less complaints and administrative work
as it would ensure absentee owners that don't let the dwelling out for holiday
accommodation were not included in the "Holiday rental” category.

It is anticipated the ATO won't have this data until after tax returns for the 2017-18 financial
year are lodged. We will however pursue this matter with the ATO.

Modelling was also undertaken for the following scenarios using the current rating
categories. The modelled scenarios were:

# Description of scenario

1 No change to current categories & differentials

2 Reduce Colac Commercial by 10 % points / Increase Farm by 3% points

3 Reduce Colac Commercial by10 % points / Increase Commercial - BOS by 10% points &
4

Holiday Rental by 10 % points/ No change to Farm or Residential - BOS
Reduce Colac Commercial by10 % points & Farm by 7% points / Increase Commercial - BOS
by 10 % points & Holiday rental by 5 % points
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13. Proposed Rating Structure

Based on the above scenarios, it was ultimately decided Option 1 (i.e. retaining the current
rating structure and differentials) was the most appropriate as:

~ the current rating categories provided accurate generic descriptions of land use that
could be applied to all properties in the shire (e.g. all properties were either
residential, commercial/industrial, holiday rental or farm properties).

» the current differentials allowed for rates increases resulting from valuation
increases to be mitigated (i.e. evened out).

Thus it is proposed the following rating structure and differentials be adopted for the term of
the rating strategy.

Differential
Rating Category (from base rate)
Residential — Colac/ Elliminyt 100%
(Residential properties in the Colac, Colac East & West & Elliminyt). (base rate)
Residential - Balance of Shire 85%
(Residential properties located in the municipality excluding those in the
“Residential -Colac / Elliminyt” rating category)
Holiday Rental 100%
(Houses/cabins that are made available for short term holiday accommodation
for a fee/tariff)
Rural — Farm 7%
(Properties used for farm purposes as defined by the Valuation of Land Act
1960).
Commercial / Industrial — Colac/Elliminyt 165%
(Commercial properties in the Colac, Colac East &West and Elliminyt)
Commercial / Industrial - Balance Shire 140%
(Commercial / industrial properties in the municipality excluding those in the
“Commercial / Industrial ~Colac/Elliminyt” rating category.

Other Charges

In addition to general rates being levied on the basis of the above structure, it is proposed
Council retain the Municipal Charge and Waste Management Charge.

(13.1) Municipal Charge

As this is a set charge, it ensures low valued properties (that pay a low amount of rates)
contribute a meaningful amount towards the running costs of the shire.

(13.2) Waste Management Charge

As this charge seeks to recoup the contract cost of the kerbside waste collection service
from properties on the collection routes that benefit from the service, it is a “user pays”
charge. As such, it meets the community expectation that people who use/benefit from a
service should pay for it.
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14. Compliance with State Government’s Guidelines

As mentioned above, in 2014 the State Government provided guidelines for the preparation
of a rating strategy. In preparing this strategy, an attempt has been made to comply with the
principles outlined in the guidelines as follows:

#

Principle

Explanation

1

Wealth tax

Rates are a tax based upon the value of the property being rated and have no
correlation to the ratepayers access to or consumption of services.

Compliance:
The strategy has been prepared on this basis.

Equity

That consideration be given to “horizontal equity” (i.e. that ratepayers with
similar valued properties should pay similar amounts) and “vertical equity” (i.e.
that ratepayers with higher valued properties should pay more than those with
lesser valued properties).

Compliance:

“Horizontal equity” is achieved as properties in the same category and
valuation pay the same amount of rates.

The strategy attempts to provide “vertical equity” by using differentials to
equalise the amount of rates paid by similar types of properties that are in
different localities and/or have different valuations.

Efficiency

That consideration is given to the extent to which production and consumption
decisions by people are affected by rates.

Compliance:

How these decisions are affected by the amount of rates payable is unknown
and varies from person to person. The strategy attempts to equitably apportion
the rates burden across the shire and actively sought to avoid significant
increases to specific rating categories.

Simplicity

The system should be easily understood by ratepayers and be practical to
administer.

Compliance:
The rating structure (being based on generic land use descriptions) is believed
to be simple for the community to understand.

Benefit

That consideration is given to the nexus between consumption/benefit and the
rates burden.

Compliance:

This principle seems contradictory to principle 1 above. However, the use of
differential rates attempts to recognise that some areas (eg: Colac/Elliminyt)
have greater access to services than other areas and therefore pay rates at a
higher rate in the dollar.
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Capacity to | What factors are relevant to particular property classes in order to make
pay informed observations about their capacity to pay rates?

Compliance:

Council obtained economic data to assist in determining capacity to pay.
Ultimately a balance between this principle and principles 2, 3 and 5 had to be
found.

Diversity Which groups in the municipality may warrant special consideration in regards

to their capacity to pay?

Compliance:
See comment for principle 6.

15. Meeting Community Expectations

This Rating Strategy has attempted to meet community expectations expressed through the
community consultation exercises conducted over the past 18 months.

It is acknowledged that many people will judge the Rating Strategy by whether they pay less
rates or more. This is understandable because whatever the outcome it is almost certain not
everybody will be satisfied with the result.

The main themes that emerged from the community consultation and our response is
detailed below:

#

Theme

1

Retain differential rating.

Response:
The Rating Strategy has met this community expectation by retaining the differential rating
structure.

Review differentials between rating categories (e.g. Farm, Commercial, Holiday Rental, and
new Coastal).

Response:

The Rating Strategy has reviewed the differentials between rating categories and
determined they are appropriate, It is acknowledged some sections of the community will
feel their concerns have not been met by this action.

Municipal Charge — whether to retain it or abolish it.

Response:

Whilst there are differing community views on whether or not to retain the Municipal Charge,
Council’s view is it should be retained. Whether or not the Rating Strategy has met this
community expectation is a subjective opinion.
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4 Fairness & equity — consider capacity to pay / apply “user pays” model / value for money /
rates to reflect services used or accessible.

Response:

This is a complex issue. The “capacity to pay” issue is referred to above. Unfortunately a
true “user pays” model would result in the many services becoming out of the financial
reach of those the service is designed to assist.

Whether or not the Rating Strategy has met this community expectation is a subjective
opinion.

5 Rates relief for owners that undertake environmental land management.

Response:

This is considered to be outside the scope of the Rating Strategy. However, a preliminary
proposal to provide a rate rebate for land covered by Trust for Nature covenants is being
prepared.

References:

* “From Coastal Communities to Tourist Towns” - Colac Otway Rating Strategy study in 2016 by
Macroplan Dimasi Pty Ltd - February 2017

« “2016-17 Dairy Farm Monitor Annual Report- Victoria” by Agriculture Victoria and Dairy Australia

+ “Revenue & Rating Strategy Guidelines’- DELWP 2014
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_Study Context

The following report was prepared by MacroPlan Dimasi for Colac Otway Shire Council
{Council).

This report draws fogether the findings of Stage 1 research undertaken by MacroPlan
Dimasi, which reviewed Council's existing rating strategy and explored the application
of differential rating methods across a number of benchmark municipalities.

Stage 1 research examined local and regional economic and demographic indicators
and identified a number of alternative rating scenarios for Council consideration in
response to significant forecast growth in tourism across the Shire during the coming
decade.

This report presents a high level case for reshaping Colac Otway’s municipal rating
strategy to respond to increasing infrastructure and community service demands —
particularly in and around Colac and key tourism towns with high tourism visitation —
whilst ensuring regionol competitive advantage and sustainable outcomes for rural land
users.

Council has conducted its own community consultation to identify issues the community
may wish Council to consider in formulating a new rating strategy. The findings of the
consultation process will be incorporated into Stage 1 research and used to further
refine options as part of a future rating strategy.

Colac Oty Shire Councll
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1 Current State

What we know today...

Population

1. The peopulation of Colac Otway Shire increased only slightly during the past decade - from approx. 20,600 residents in 2006
to reach an estimated 21,168 people in 2016 - an increase of 568 residents {Chart 1. Population growth across the Shire has
increased on average by 0.27% p.a. well below the Victorian average of 1.8% p.a. during the past decade.

2. Colac Otway Shire has grown much slower than Geelong, Surf Coast and Colac Ctway Shires during the past 5 years, with
the vast majority {88%) of total population growth occurring in the areas of Elliminyt and Colac West.

3. Annuagl average population growth rates in Elliminyt (1.2% p.a.) and Colac West (1.1% p.a.) matched areas such as Lorme-
Aireys Inlet, Newcomb-Moolap and the northern rural parts of Golden Plains Shire during the past 5 years.

Dwellings

5. The total number of dwellings in Colac Otway Shire increased - from approx. 10,790 dwellings in 2006 to reach an estimated
11,790 dwellings in 2016 - an increase of 1,000 dwellings. This is broadly consistent with the total number of dwelling
approvals reported during this time.

6. The netfincrease in dwellings was almost twice the net increase in the number of residents during the past decade.

+ The mismatch between the number of permanent residents and the total number of dwellings in Colac Otway is an
indicator the Shire is home to a growing number of holiday rental homes, particularly in coastal areas along the
Great Ocean Road such as Apollo Bay. Kennett River, Wye River and Separation Creek.

+ InFY15-16 there were 428 holiday renlals reported by Council for rating purposes. The true number of holiday rentfals
may be higher, refleciing growing frends in room-sharing (e.g. AirBnB) and similar online short-sfay accommodation
rental services.

+ Dwelling occupancy rates of between 70%-75% are broadly in line with Momington Peninsula and well below
Geelong, Golden Plains, Moorabocel and Ballarat.

7. The median sales price for residential dwellings in Colac Otway Shire increased by almost 60% during the past 10 years, with
considerable fluctuations during the past 5 years, reflecting increased property transactions and relatively subdued dwelling
approvals during this time (Charts 2 and 3). This is below median residential sales price rises in Geelong (68%). Moorabool
{70%) and well below Surf Coast (94%) and Golden Plains (97%) during the same time (See Annexure).

Colac Otway Shire Councll
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1 Current State

Chart 1: Estimated Resident Population
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Table 1: Household Income & Wealth
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1 Current State

What we know today...
Tourism / Peak Population

8. Colac Otway Shire is located within an internationally significant tourism region, with the Great Ocean Road, Otway Ranges
and surrounding rural hinterland featuring as key regional tourist attractions.

9. Colac Otway Shire experiences major population peaks throughout the year, particularly during warmer months when there
are more events and festivals coinciding with school holiday periods.

10. This causes peaks in demand for restaurants, cafes, bars, retail shops, entertainment venues and a wide range of community
services. It also places strains on health services, highways and local roads and infrastructure.

11. There were approx. 310 tourism enterprises operating in Colac Otway in 2015, with the majority being small businesses with
few or no staff - see Table 1. Colact Otway has approx. 16% of all tourism enterprises operating in the Western Victoria tourism
region and accounts for approx. 18% of total tourism expenditure in this region, compared with Surf Coast at 31% of total
expenditure.

+  In2015 there were 409,000 domestic day visitors to Colac Otway resulfing in expenditure of $40 million in the region.
This compares with Surf Coast which reported 930,000 domestic day visitors resulting in $81 milion expenditure in the
region - Tables 3 and 4.

» There were 385,000 domestic overnight visitors to Colac Otway in 2015 resulting in 1,032,000 visitor nights and $151
million expenditure in the region. This compares with Surf Coast which reported 736,000 domestic overnight visitors
resulting in 2,319,000 visitor nights and $279 million expenditure in the region - Tables 3 and 4.

+ There were 88.000 international visitors 1o Colac Otway resulting in 255,000 visitor nights and $2é million expenditure in
the region. This compares with Surf Coast which reported 32,000 infernational visitors resulting in 155,000 visifor nights
and $15 million expenditure in the region - Tables 3 and 4.

12. Domestic visitors represent the largest share of fotfal visitors fo Colac Otway, with most domestic visitors staying an average of
3 nights in the region and spending an average of $420 per frip.

13. Whilst there are relatively fewer international visitors to the Colac Otway region, they spend more than $510 per frip and
Colac Otway attracts almost twice the number of international visitors as the Surf Coast region.

14. Many local businesses and holiday home owners have the potential to benefit directly and indirectly from peak population
flows, particularly those located in tourism hot-spots with significant tourism expenditure spill-over benefits.

Colac Otway Shire Councll
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Attachment 2 - "From Coastal Communities to Tourist Towns" 138



1 Current State

Figure 1: Colac Otway Tourism Region
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Table 2: Tourism Businesses Colac Otway (2015)

TOTAL
Non-employing 122
1 to 4 employees 96
510 12 employees 74
20 or more employees 18
Total 310
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Iable 3: Key Tourism Metrics - Colac Otway Tourism Region

Visitors ('000)

Nights ('000)

Average stay [nights)
Spend ($m)

Average spend per frip ($)
Average spend per night ($)

Average spend [commerciol
accommodation) per night ($)

Visitors to Colac Otway

Reason (visitors '000)
Holiday
Visiting friends or relatives
Business
Other

Travel party type (visitors '000)
Unaccompanied
Couple
Family group
Friends/relatives fravelling
together

Accommodation (nights "000)
Hotel or similar
Home of friend or relative
Commercial camping/caravan
park
Backpacker
Other

INTERNATIONAL

88
255
3
26
296
102

113

Table 4: Visitors - Colac Otway Tourism Region

DOMESTIC
OVERNIGHT

385
1.032
2

151
392
146

191

INTERNATIONAL

85
2

np
np

33
31
10

12

75
22

59

32
68

DOMESTIC
OVERNIGHT

286
66
np
np

53
129
98

92

139
251

223

np
408

DOMESTIC
DAY

409

40
99

DOMESTIC
DAY

251
100
np
np

TOTAL

882
1,287

217
246
137

172

TOTAL

622
168
np
np

87
160
108

104

214
273

282

np
476
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1 Current State

What we know today...
Rural Land Prices

15. During the past decade, median sale prices for all rural land types rose 24% across Colac Otway Shire (Chart 4), well below
Geelong (54%), Surf Coast (70%), Ballarat (80%) and Golden Plains {99%) during the same period (see Annexure).

16. The median sale price for vacant rural land fell slightly during the past 5 years (Chart 5), which was partly offset by rising
demand for vacant rural lifestyle /rural living zoned land {Chart 6). The downward trend in vacant rural land prices may
partly reflect recent challenges facing primary producers in Colac Otway Shire and surrounding areas.

»  Colac Otway Shire is located within the South-West Victorian dairy region. which produces approximately 2.1 billion
litres of milk per year from approximately 1,500 farms and 440,000 cows, accounting for 22% of Australia's milk.

* Inrecent years the dairy sector has experienced a number of pressures nationally and locally, which have coincided
with a sustained downward trend in farm-gate milk prices. Rising production costs, water shortages, changes in
wholesale pricing arrangements and international regulation of powdered milk products have significantly impacted
primary producers, particularly dairy farmers.

+  Most recently Murray Goulburn and Fonterra have announced step-up payments to dairy farmers to ease financial
pressures and solidify loyalty among suppliers. with dairy producers indicating a broad willingness to waive claw-back
debl in return for confinuity of milk supply. This may serve to offset a longer term downtrend in rural land prices.

17. In FY15-16, there were approx. 2,780 rural farm assessments identified by Council for rating purposes. Around 50% of these
were for livestock preduction, with the maijority relating fo beef and dairy cafile production.

18. There were 516 dairy cattle farms representing 19% of total rural farms and 23% of rates revenue from rural farms. There were
758 beef cattle farms representing 27% of total rural farms and rates revenue from rural fams respectively.

19. The average size of beef and dairy cattle farm properties is similar, while the average land value and CIV ($/hectare) for
dairy cattle properties is approx. 15% higher than beef cattle properties.

« The largest dairy cattle farm is 363 hectares and the smallest 10 hectares. The average size of a dairy farm in Colac
Otway is 78 hectares. The average land value for dairy cattle properties is $8,000/hectare and $10,000/hectare (CIV).

« The largest beef cattle farm is 852 hectares and the smallest 20 hectares. The average size of a beet cattle farm in
Colac Otway is 71 hectares. The average land value for dairy catile properties is $7.000/hectare and $8.500/hectare
(CIV).
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1 Current State

What we know today...

Rural Land Prices (cont.)

20. In FY15-16 there were 155 rural assessments with land areas greater than 200 hectares and almost 330 rural assessments with
land areas totalling between 100-200 hectares. There were around 1,940 rural assessments with a land area less than 100

hectares.
« Larger properties typically have lower average property values (i.e. site value and CIV on $/ha basis) across all rural
land use types.
*  During the past 5 years, the median sales value of rural lifestyle / vacant rural residential land increased significantly,
whilst the median sales value of rural farm land used for primary production has remained relatively stable.

When compared with Golden Plains Shire (for example), the trend in land values is the same for larger properties and
there are some broad similarities between farming use types and sizes when it comes to land values ($/ha).

21. There is little evidence based on a preliminary benchmarking analysis that larger farms in Colac Otway have higher average
relative property values or CIV when compared with neighbouring municipalities.
22. This means there is unlikely to be a case for reducing the cumrent discounted differential rate applicable to larger properties.
«  Reducing the differential rate discount applicable to smaller rural properties with higher marginal land values may
serve as a disincentive fo some farmers.

Further, given the importance of household expenditure and private fixed capital investment as a share of total
regional expenditure, there may be constrained capacity to pay higher rates among some rate payers, partficularly

farmers with lower average incomes.

Colac Otway Shire Councll
Ralrg Sirotegy 20 march 2017 Page 9
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1 Current State
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Chart 5: Sales Volume, Median Rural Price (Vacant Rural Land)
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1 Current State

What we know today...

Agriculture, Foresiry & Fishing

23. In terms of total economic output, agriculture, forestry and fishing accounted for $248.9 million or around 10% of total regional
economic output in Colac Otway. This was almost twice the output of retail frade at $100 million (Chart 7).

24. In terms of gross value add, agriculture, forestry and fishing accounted for $101.14 million, almost twice that of retail trade at
around $61.7 million (see Annexure).

25. The number of people employed in agriculture, forestry and fishing (995 or around 12% of total employed persons) was broadly
the same as retail trade (918 employed persons) — see Chart 8.

26. Wages and salaries paid in agriculture, forestry and fishing were $20.8m or around 4% of total wages and salaries paid. This
compares with retail trade at $39.43 million during the same time, almost twice that of agriculture, forestry and fishing (Chart 9).

27. Average wages and salaries per worker in agriculture, forestry and fishing were estimated at $20,900 per person, less than half
average wages and salaries per worker in retail, estimated at $42,962 per person.

28. Around 45 per cent of all employed persons in agriculture, forestry and fishing earn less than $600 (gross) per week (see

Annexure).

Chart 7: Output by Industry, Colac Otway
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2 Future State

In the future...

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

37.

38.

The population of Colac Otway Shire is projected to increase by 12% during the next two decades - increasing from
around 21,168 people in 2016 to reach 23,725 by 2036 — an increase of around 2,560 residents.

The long term average rate of population growth across the Shire is expected to be similar to Mornington Peninsula Shire or
Yarra Ranges Shire.

The forecast rate of annual population growth in Elliminyt (1.5% p.a.) and Colac West (1.0% p.q.) is broadly comparable
with forecast growth in Waurn Ponds (1.2%), Jan Juc - Bellbrae - Bells Beach (1.4%) and Dromana - Safety Beach (1.4%) and
Portarlington (1.5%) — see Figure 5.

The number of dwellings in Colac Otway Shire is forecast to increase by 17% to reach 13.790 dwellings in 2036 - an increase
of around 2,000 dwellings. Based on historic dwelling approvals this number may reach as high as 2.300 dwellings.

This is equivalent to the total number of new dwellings expected to be added to the township of Bannockburn in Golden
Plains Shire by 2036.

Whilst growth in the local residential population is not expected to be significant in future, it is likely that tourism visitation to
the region will continue to grow in the future. The total number of visitors to Victoria's Great Ocean Road tourism region has
been growing by an average of 4.2% per annum during the past 5 years.

Recent major infrastructure projects such as the Geelong Ring Road, duplication of the Princes Highway between Geelong
and Winchelsea and freeway duplication to Colac due for completion in 2019 will continue to facilitate greater
connectivity between Melboumne, Geelong and the Colac Ofway region.

Major State Government infrastructure investments such as the Outer Metropolitan Ring Road (see Figure 4) which may
commence during the next 10 years will bring more tourists and investment into Victoria's south-west region and stimulate
increased requirements for infrastructure and a range of services across a number of tourist hot-spots and regional areas,
especially Colac and Apollo Bay which form an important part of the Great Ocean Road tourist trail.

The infrastructure Victoria 30-year Plan makes a number of recommendations to make roads supporting major industries
and tourism more sustainable, which may include the Great Ocean Road.

The most transformative of these involves taking a more strategic approach to maintaining roads overall, which would
include consideration of which roads need to be maintained and to what standard and the most appropriate allocation of
responsibility for roads between state and local government, including the potential for infrastructure charging mechanisms
(noting the implicafions of cost shiffing).

Colac Otway Shire Councll

Ralrg Sirotegy 20 march 2017 Page_12

Attachment 2 - "From Coastal Communities to Tourist Towns"

144



Figure 2: Projected Population Change by LGA, 2016-20446
In the future...
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The Grear Ocean Rood Tourism Region recorded 3,259,000 visitors in
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Source: infrastructure Victoria
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Figure 4: New and Upgraded Transport Links in Melbourne

In the future...
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Pop 2016 - 2,742

Pop 2026 - 3,127
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Pop 2016 - 2.954
Pop 2026 - 2.901
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Otway
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3_Current rating system

Council’s current municipal rating framework
3%9. Total Councilincome from rates and charges was $27.613m in FY15-16 or approx. 60% of total income.
40. Totalincome from rates and charges in FY15-16 comprised:

— General residential rates - $13.695m (49.6%).

—  General farm rates - $5.587m (20.2%)

— General commercial / industrial - $3.095m (11.2%)

- Municipal Charge - $2.488m (9.0%).

—  Garbage Charge - $2.726m (2.8%).

— Special rates and charges - $22,000.

41.  Municipal rates and charges are currently estimated using the method oullined in Table é, with differential rates applicable
to residential improved (growth areas), business/industrial and commercial (growth areas), non-farm vacant land, vacant
non-developable land (growth areas) and farm land including farm land in growth areas.

Table é: Colac Otway Municipal Rates Summary (FY15/16)

No. of Assessments

Rate Type Rate in the $ (2015-18) (2015-16) CIV (2015-16) Rate Differentials
Colac Residential 0.004513 5.520 1.302.856.000 100%
Balance of Shire Residential 0.003836 5,245 1.847.193,000 85%
Rural Farm 0.003565 2,782 1.566.108.000 79%
Holiday Rental 0.004513 415 227.587.000 100%
Colac Commercial/industrial 0.007444 623 275,806,000 165%
Balance of Shire Commercial/industrial 0.006318 338 169.606.000 140%
Municipal Charge $178

Source: Colac Otway Shire Council 2017

Colac Ohway Shirg Council
Ralrg Stretegy 20 march 2017 Poge_16

Attachment 2 - "From Coastal Communities to Tourist Towns" 148



4 Benchmarks

Municipal comparisons

42. A comparison of Colac Otway Shire rates and charges income during FY 15-16 with other municipalities demonstrates the
following, noting variations in underlying property and land values and the rate-in-the-dollar applied (see Figure 6):

- General residential rates represent approx. 46% of total rates and charges income. well below surrounding
municipalities of Geelong (56%). Ballarat (59%). Moorabool {59%) and Surf Coast (61%).

- Municipal charges including garbage charge and special rates represent around 19% of total rates and charges
income, in line with Geelong (19%) but well above Ballarat (12%), Moorabool (12%).

- Commercial and industrial rates represent approx. 11% of total rates and charges income, well gbove Moorabool
(6%). Surf Coast {7%). and below Geelong (18%) and Ballarat (25%).

- Rates applicable to farm land represents around 20% of total rates and charges income, well above Geelong (1%).
Ballarat {2%), Surf Coast (4%) and Moorabool (11%) and broadly in line with Golden Plains {18%).

43. This comparison demonstrates those municipalities with relatively large urban populations tend fo generate more revenue
from rates applicable to residential and commercial properties with a relatively lower portion of revenue derived from
municipal charges and rates applicable to farm land.

44. This partly reflects more intensive residential and commercial developments within these areas relative to rural land.
However, Ballarat, Moorabool and Surf Coast represent municipalities with relatively large rural areas, which also derive a
higher overall share of rates revenue from residential, commercial and industrial sources.

45.  Momington Peninsula Council has a large number of regionally dispersed townships as well as emerging urban fringe hot-
spofs such as Dromana, Hastings and Crib Point. These areas continue to attract new residents and tourism visitation,
benefiting local commercial businesses in these areas and increasing demand for community services and infrastructure.
Mornington derives 78% rates revenue from residential and 5% from commercial/industrial activities.

46. Llikewise Yarra Ranges Shire Council remains a large rural municipality with a growing urban fringe in areas such as Lilydale,
Chirnside Park, Mooroolbark, Yarra Glen, Healesville and surrounds. Many of these areas, particularly tourism areas such as
Healesville continue to attract residents and visitors, placing increased demands on lacal community infrastructure and
services. Yamra Ranges Council derives 88% rates revenue from general rates.

47. Tourism will continue to be a major driver for commercial business activities in key coastal locations within the Colac Otway
Shire, which will support increased commercial business investment and infrastructure in these locations.

Colac Qtway Shire Councll
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Municipal comparisons...

Figure é: Municipal Rates by Source Comparison FY15/18

Colac Otway Geelong Ballarat Surf Coast
Municipal Other Other
4% %

Golden Plains Mocrabool Mornington Peninsula Yarra Ronges

Source: Vigrious
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Municipal comparisons...

Rate Capping

All of Victoria's 79 councils will be operating
underrafe caps from 1 July 2016,

The capped increases apply to the general
rates and municipal charges only.

The rate cap may be applied differently
depending on whether property is classed
resiclential. commercial or rural. These type of
rates are classified as differential rates.

Six councils have been given Essenial Services
Commission {ESC) approval to adopt rate caps
higher than 2,5%.

According to Table 7, Colac Otway Shire
ranked 44" most affordable Council on a
per assessment basis in FY15-16 - when
comparing average rates and charges
and waste management fees relative to

other Victorian municipalities.

Table 7: Average rates, municipal charges FY15/14 (all Councils)
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Municipal comparisons

Differential Rates
Table 8 (below) compares differential rates currently applying in Colac Otway Shire and benchmark municipalities.

W,

Otway Shire of 165% is broadly in line

%) and Ballarat (247%, 25

to business / commercia
as high as Surf Coast (195%), Geelong |-

The differential rate applicable
with Moorabool (160%) but no

The differential rate applicable to farm land in Colac Otway Shire {79%) is not as low as Ballarat (70%) Moorabool (78%) or
Hepburn (65%).

Table 8: Municipal Differential Rates Benchmark Comparison, Selected Municipalities

Colac Otway Ballarat Geelong Sy Moorabool Surf Coast SnSIROgn
Plains Peninsula
Diff Diff Ditt Diff

Cents/ $ Diff Diff Ditf

Rate (Cents in § CIV)

I

0.4513 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
0.7446 165% 247% 209% 100% 160% 75% 100%
0.7446 165% 257% 278% 100% 160% 190% 100%
0.3565 79% 70% 100% 90% 78% 100%
145% 200% 260% 200% 140%

Source: Various
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5 Opportunities
Implications for Colac Otway Shire Council municipal rating strategy

48. The majority of the Shire's population growth is expected to take place in Elliminyt, Colac East/West and Colac Cenftral
regions, partly reflecting the impacts of the Freeway duplication and enhanced regional connectivity between Geelong
and Colac.

49, Atleast 13% of projected population growth is expected to cccurin Otway Great Ocean Road, which is also likely to
experience increased demand for retail and commercial premises and a variety of infrastructure and services to support
forecast growth in tourism visitation.

50. Principles underlying a reshaped municipal rating strategy to be explored further, may include:

—  An equitable and efficient municipal rating framework capable of providing the funding capacity to deliver the
scale of services and infrastructure required to address peak population demands and encourage sustainable
communities across the shire.

- Expenditure on infrastructure and community services to potentially increase above the ESC ‘rate cap’ - in line with
higher than average population growth across the municipality and surrounding regional areas.

—  Emerging 'tourist towns / growth area’ locations fo be self-funding in terms of any requirement for new community
infrastructure and/or services but ensuring long term residents and older residents / pensioners are not paying for
urban fringe infrastructure.

—  Funding for rural infrastructure projects and small townships to be maintained in the future.

— Agricultural land should remain competitive for agricultural purposes.

51. Setting a municipal rating strategy that will encourage sustainable communities across the shire and address population
peaks requires a simplified, staged approach including:

- Increasing the general residential rate into a short-term (next 12-24 months) to provide funding capacity whilst
exploring the potential for a three-tier residential differential rate

- Carefully examining evidence of the economic benefits derived by holiday rental owners, commercial, industrial
and rural rate payers by monitoring peak population flows, traffic counts, car parking and incomes during this fime.

— Implementing a new more sophisticated and evidence-based differential rating system in the next 2-3 years.

Colac Otway Shire Councll
Ralrg Strotegy 20 march 2017 Poge 21
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Scenarios...
52. Colac Otway Shire should to explore the following scenarios, depending on timing and staging considerations:
Next 12-24 months

— Increase the general residential rate for 12-24 months to provide additional short-term funding capacity and
resources to examine evidence for a new evidence-based differential rating system.

—  Exomining evidence of the economic benefits derived by holiday rental owners, commercial, industrial and rural
rate payers by implementing monitoring systems to measure peak population flows, traffic counts, overmnight/short-
stay visitors, waste collections. business furover, incomes and employment counts (where this informalion is
available) during this time.

—  Develop an evidence-based municipal rating strategy that is equitable and efficient, addressing peak tourism
population demands whilst delivering services and infrastructure supporting sustainable community outcomes
across the shire.

In 2-3 years

—  Seek a variation to the ESC rate cap to allow Council to continue fo generate additional funding for urban
infrastructure and services to complement funding derived under the new ICP framework.

—  Based on the above framework, infroduce a four tier residential differenfial rating framework addressing the
following groups:

a. Primary residential - properties occupied by permanent residents living in the municipality.

b. Secondary residential — investment properties occupied by non-resident rate-payers primarily as a second
dwelling or holiday home.

c. Tertiary residential — holiday rental properties occupied primarily by short-stay vacationers.
d. Vacantresidential land.

- Intfroduce revised differential rates (using the evidence collected above) applicable to commercial, industrial and
rural land / vacant rural-residential land across the shire,

—  Introduce paid car / bus parking in coastal townships in the first instance (such as Apollo Bay) during peak periods
e.g. start December to end April.

Colac Otwary Shirg Council
Ralrg Strotegy 20 march 2017 Poge 22
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Sign-Posts/Triggers
53. Other potential sign-posts or friggers for consideration, similar to other municipalities may include:
Sign-Posts/Triggers
— Applying a general residential rate to rural farm houses (curtilage) as in Momington Peninsula.
—  Monitor farm incomes / tumover over a period of years fo identify and report on areas of siress and/or growth.
- Monitor peak population, fraffic flows using traffic counters and business turnover for a period of years and report.

- Considering the revenue reguirements required to build a streng foundation to fund maijor infrastructure and
services as communities evelve to become major tourism towns.

—  Explore parameters that would underpin a self-funding model! for coastal tourist towns supporting increased
requirement for new community infrastructure and/or services in these locations, whilst minimising costs / impacts for
smaller townships, older residents and rural land users.

—  Identify minimum service standards for smaller townships and/or ‘low growth' areas to ensure infrastructure and
services are maintained in these areas.

= Maintain rate affordability for pensicners and ensure the competitiveness of farm land.

Colac Oty Shire Councll
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Annexure
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Colac Otway's Gross Regional Praduct is estimated at $1.161 billion. Colac Otway represents 17.02
% of Great South Coast's GRP of $46.820 billion, 0.31 % of Victoria's Gross Stale Product (GSP) of

$374.435 billion and 0.07 % of Australia's GRP of $1.655 trillion.

Al: Colac Otway Municipal Rates Summary (FY15/16)

GRP Expenditure Method
Household Consumption
Government Consumption

Private Gross Fixed Capital
Expenditure

Public Gross Fixed Capital Expenditure
Gross Reglonal Expenses

plus Regional Exports

minus Domestic Imports

minus Overseas Imports

GRP

Population

Per Capita GRP

Per Worker GRP

Saurce. Lintest REMPLAN data incorporating Australion Bureou of Statistics’ (ABS] June 2016 Gross Stare Product, 2013 /
2014 Nationol input Output Tables and 2011 Census Place of Wark Employment Data

Colac Otway
$968.647 M
§294.996 M
$371.985M

$78.117 M
$1,713.745M
$853.369 M
-$1,265.788 M
-$140.728 M
$1,160598 M
20,347
$57,040
$140,186
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A2: Business Count by Turnover, Colac Otway

720 Zero to $50k

I 550k to less than $§100k
I 5100k to less than $200K
§200k to less than $500k
560 B $500k to less than §2m
Il $2m or more

Businesses (No.)

Jun-12 Jun-13 Jun-14 Jun-15
Year
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A3: Occupation, Colac Otway

Occupation

Not stated - Inadequately described
Labourers

Machinery Operators And Drivers

Sales Workers

Clerical and Administrative Workers
Community and Personal Service Workers

Technicians and Trades Workers
Professionals
Managers
Total
Sourte; Latest REMPLAN data incorpomting Australi

eou of Statistics’ (ABS} 2011

72l
1,365 I
+s0 I
7eo I
77¢ I
925 I
107+ I
B ————————————————
ey |

8,279

af Work Employment |

Ad: Occupation by Industry, Colac Otway (Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing)

Not stated - Inadequately described 0
Labourers 144 I
Machinery Operators And Drivers 35 Il
Sales Workers sl
Clerical and Administrative Workers wl
Community and Personal Senvice Workers 0
Technicians and Trades Workers Y |
Professionals 0
Managers B S |
Total 995
p Australian Bureow of Statistics s Ploce of Work Employment Dato
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AS5: Gross Weekly Income by Industry, Colac Otway (Agriculture, Forestry, Fisheries)

Negative/Nil income s [N
51-5199 5o I
$200-5299 55 I
$300-§399 o+ I
§400-§599 176 I——
$600-§798 266 |
$800-5999 120 |
$1,000-51,249 o7 I
$1,250-51,499 47 I
$1,500-51,999 2¢ I
$2,000 or more 2 I
Not stated/Not - -
applicable
Total 995

Source: lotest AEMPLAN date incorp ahan Sureow of Statistics’ (ABS) 2011 Census Place of Work Employment Dato

Aé: Unemployment Rote, Coloc Otway

’ == % - Colac Otwary
% - Victons
8 o % - Australis

Rate %

ter 2016

Mae-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mas-15 Sep-15 Mar-16 Sep-16
June13 Dec-13 Jun-14 Dec-14 Jun-15 Dec-15 Jun-16
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A7: Median House Prices (Transacted Properties), Selected Municipalities

700,000.00

600,000.00

400,000.00 /

300,000.00

Median Price (5)

200,000.00

100,000.00

0.00
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2C 22013201420152016
Golden Plains - CGreater Geelong Ballarat
— N OOrabool —Colac Otway Surf Coast

—hOrNington Peninsula ——Yara Ranges

irce: BP Dota
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AB: Median Sales Prices (All Rural Land Transactions), Selected Municipalities

1,400,000

,200,000

000.000

800,000

Median Price ($)

400,000

200,000

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

— G 0lden Plains

— MM OOrQHoO! —

= NMornington PeninsulQ ==Y arra Ranges

Source: BP Dota

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
=B allarat

ac Otway w—Surf Coast
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A%: Median Sales Prices (All Rural-Residential Land Transactions), Selected Municipalities

£00,000.00

800.000.00

700,000.00

600,000.00

500,000.00

400.000.00

Median Price ($)

300.,000.0

0

200,000.00

100.000.00

0.00
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— Golden Plains —Ballarat
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A10: Socio-Demographic Profile
Regional Victoria

Census 2011 Colac Otway Shire avg.
Per capita income $26,724 $28,382
Var. from Non-metro Vic benchmark -58%

Median household income $47.528 $49.140
Var. from Non-metro Vic benchmark -3.3%

Avg. household size 2.4 24
Age distribution (% of ulatiol

Aged 0-19 25.4% 25.9%
Aged 20-34 15.6% 16.8%
Aged 35-54 26.6% 26.7%
Aged 55-64 14.0% 13.3%
Aged 65-74 9.6% 9.3%
Aged 75-84 6.2% 57%
Aged 85+ 2.6% 23%
Average age 40.9 40.1
Housing status (% of households

Owner (total) 76.1% 74.0%
* Owner (oufright) 43.4% 39.6%
» Owner (with mortgage) 32.7% 34.3%
Renter L 23.0% 25.2%
Other 059% 0.8%
Birthplace (% of population)

Australian bom 92.1% 89.0%
Overseas born s 11.0%
* Asia 1.0% 1.8%
* Europe 5.1% 7.1%
* Other I 1.8% 21%
Family type (% of households)

Couple with dep't children 41.9% 41.9%
Couple with non-dep't child. 6.2% 6.5%
Couple without children 26.0% 25.6%
One parent with dep't child. 8.4% 9.8%
One parent w non-dep't child. 3.2% 3.1%
Other family 0.8% 0.8%
Lone person 13.4% 12.3%

Source: ASS Census 2011

Col hire Council

¢ 20 march 2017 Poge 33
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ATTACHMENTS 1. Draft Budget for Public Submission

To consider endorsement of the Draft Budget 2018/19 and release

PURPOSE for public exhibition to seek community feedback.

1. LOCATION PLAN / AERIAL PHOTO

5

Cressy {
. Bannockburm

Winchelses
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2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report outlines the draft budget for release for community comment and public submissions.

The draft budget has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations and has been
prepared using the Victorian Councils model budget template.

The outcomes from the draft 2018/19 budget are:

Increase in the base average rate of 1.50% (excluding waste collection charges) equating to 78 cents per
property per week.

No changes to current service levels with funding for Service reviews.

Delivery of a reduced capital works program to facilitate the lower than cap rate rise, lower level of Capital
Grants and reflecting no disaster recovery works in 2018/19.

Reduced operating costs including:

0 Effective decrease in employee costs after removing mandatory Enterprise bargaining agreement
increases and additional fully funded roles;

0 Lessthan CPlincrease in Materials and Services
Maintenance of our long term financial sustainability.
Flat overall increase in User Fees and Charges (after removing funding increase in OPASS services)

No additional borrowings.

3. RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1.

Endorses the draft budget 2018/19 for the financial year (Attachment 1) for the purposes of Section 127 of the
Local Government Act 1989.

Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to give public notice, in accordance with section 223 of the Local
Government Act 1989, that Council has prepared a Draft Budget for the 2018/19 year.

Appoints a Committee comprising of all Councillors and chaired by the Mayor in accordance with section
223(1)(b)(i) of the Act, to meet on Wednesday 13 June, 2018 at 5pm, and hear any persons who in their
written submissions under section 223 of the Act have requested that they be heard in support of their
submission.

Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to undertake any and all administrative procedures necessary to enable
Council to carry out its functions under section 223 of the Act.

Notes that written submissions will be accepted for a 4 week period closing 5:00pm Friday 1 June 2018.
Considers for adoption the draft budget 2018/19 at the Council Meeting on Wednesday, 27 June 2018 at

4.00pm at COPACC, after consideration of any submissions received by Council at its Special Committee
Meeting on Wednesday, 13 June 2018.
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4. BACKGROUND / KEY INFORMATION

BACKGROUND

The Annual Budget is an essential planning and resource tool produced each year. The development of a considered
budget is vital to the ongoing operational and financial viability of Council. The budget sets out the expected income
and expenditure of both operational and capital activities for the coming year and also incorporates Council's rating
strategies. As the rating strategy is being considered concurrently with the 2018/19 budget, the budget document
reflects the proposed rating strategy 2018-2020 only.

The budget is a transparent account of Council's operations in line with good governance. The budget documentation
forms part of a comprehensive public accountability process and reporting that includes:

e The Council Plan

The Strategic Resource Plan

The Annual Budget

Internal and External Audit

Annual Report

Process of preparation of the draft budget 2018/19

The draft budget for 2018/19 has been developed in collaboration with Councillors over many months. The preparation
has been thorough and comprehensive and has been focussed on delivering the services our community needs whilst
also being mindful of costs. The process has identified savings and opportunities to maximise our ability to maintain our
essential assets.

This year, the process for the preparation of the draft annual budget has included:

e For the first time, an upfront community consultation process to capture the communities project priorities and
expectations, allowing us to put these priorities and expectations at the forefront of our business case
deliberations;

e Analysis of funding options including external grant funds;
e A comprehensive review of the fees and charges;
e A comprehensive review of income and expenditure;

e A comprehensive review of all proposed capital and project works including the development of a priority
projects list as determined by our Councillors;

e The 2018/19 draft budget has been prepared taking into consideration the work undertaken in creating the
rating strategy for 2018-2020.

The 2018/19 draft budget has been prepared in line with the priorities outlined in key strategic documents including the
2017-2021 Council Plan and the Strategic Resource Plan.

The draft 2018/19 budget has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989
and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.
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KEY INFORMATION

Strategic Resource Plan/ Financial Strategy

The draft budget 2018/19 incorporates the updated 2017-2021 Strategic Resource Plan. The Strategic Resource Plan
(SRP) is a four year plan of the financial and human resources Council requires to implement the actions and deliver the
objectives set out in the Council Plan 2017 — 2021.

In pursuit of its objectives, the Strategic Resource Plan embodies the following objectives for Council over the next four
years including:

Ensuring that Council’s financial resources are directed to achieving the desired outcomes, strategies and
initiatives articulated in the Council Plan.

Ensuring that Council’s expenditure on services and capital works is balanced with the revenue it receives.
Maintaining a viable and sustainable cash position, ensuring Council liquidity position.

Maintain debt levels below prudential guidelines.

Continuing to pursue ongoing grant funding for strategic capital funds from the State and Federal governments.
Ensuring critical renewal is funded annually over the timeframe of the SRP.

Ensuring a careful use of reserves to fund projects and programs that are consistent with the purpose envisaged
when the reserve appropriation was originally made.

The following are some of the key variables used in forecasting the SRP period:
. Forecast rates increases of 2%
o Increases in recurrent grants in line with CPI
e Increases in Materials and Services in line with CPI
e  Capital works driven by CPI increase from the previous year*1

e  Everything in line with basic economic forecasts (i.e. CPI)

1* We have used this basic forecast for capital works pending the completion of the revised long-term asset
management and long term financial plans.

Draft Budget 2018/19 - Summary

Key highlights of the draft budget include:

Increase in the average rate of 1.50% (excluding waste collection charges) equating to 78 cents per property per
week.

No changes to current service levels with funding for Service reviews.

Delivery of a reduced capital works program to facilitate the lower than cap rate rise and reflecting no disaster
recovery works in 2018/19.

Reduced operating costs including effective decrease in employee costs after removing mandatory Enterprise
bargaining agreement increases and additional fully funded roles.
Maintenance of our long term financial sustainability.

Flat overall increase in User Fees and Charges

No additional borrowings.
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Operational Budget

The following are some key highlights to the operational budget:

e User Fees and Charges has increased by 1.8% as a result of the following key movements:

0 $0.25 million increase in OPASS funding (represented by 4 new resources under employee costs, see

below)

0 $0.05 million decrease in forecast revenue from Bluewater compared to 2017/18

0 $0.04 million decrease in forecast revenue from the Saleyards due to reduced stock throughput
0 $0.05 million decrease in forecast revenue from Asset related permits (i.e. asset protection permits)

e Increase in Operating grants as a result of the lower base figure in 2017/18 as a result of the prepayment of the

Victorian Grants Commission grants in 2016/17

e Major decrease in Capital grants largely due to the one-off items in 2017/18 (i.e. Disaster Recovery, CBD and

entrances project, Apollo Bay Kindergarten, etc.)

e Effective flat movement in terms of employee numbers as follows:

223.80

(4.7) 0.0
0.0 (4.0)
219.1 219.1

e Effective Decrease in Employee Expenses as follows:

18,981,715

19,216,910

235,195

(192,237) 192,237
0 (210,000) (210,000)

0 (328,816) (328,816)
18,789,478 18,678,094 (111,384)

e Below CPlincrease in Material’s and Services

16,449,893

15,596,411

(853,482)

0 0 0
(903,382) 0 903,382
15,546,511 15,596,411 49,900

e Decrease in Other expenses largely due to the Decrease in valuation costs (see corresponding decrease in User
Fees and Charges Income) relating to the centralising of valuations to the State Government
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Infrastructure Renewal

Asset renewal gap continues to be a topical issue at Colac Otway Shire given the large amount of Infrastructure Colac
Otway is responsible for and the limited revenue generation capability. This year’s budget highlights some of those
challenges given the program no longer includes fully funded disaster recovery works. Accordingly the program is now
sitting well below the asset renewal gap ratio targets of 150% (see below).

In light of this, Council is currently undertaking long term financial planning and asset management projects to better
inform our long term planning and future budgeting to ensure our financial sustainability.

Services and facilities

The following are some highlights of service delivery in the proposed 2018/19 Budget:
e Brief description of key services being maintained

e COPACC
e Reference to Council plan action item achievement
e Increased maintenance of drainage network Shire wide in response to recent flooding events
e Deliberate strategy to bring our IT environment up-to-date
e Investment in a safer community and safer work practices
0 Establishment of 2 neighbourhood “safer places” at Barwon Downs and Beech Forest
O Security upgrades in the Colac CBD

0 Implementation of the EziTracker software to help keep track of Council officers working in remote
locations

e Investment in upgrades to waste transfer stations

e  Support for the development of Apollo Bay pool and ongoing budget commitment to the operating costs of
the enhanced facilities

e Ongoing commitment to emergency management
e Increased service delivery of aged care services (with 4 new headcounts fully funded & budgeted for)

e Renewed funding for Regional Assessment Coordinator

e Undertaking a program of service reviews over the next few years utilising external experts to run the program

e Through the development of a LTFP we will be better informed for the long term to use this long term view to
drive what services we are delivering

Capital Works and other Projects

The 2018/19 draft budget includes a number of projects, including but not limited to:

e Sealed Road Reconstruction program $1,476,000
e Unsealed Road Re-sheet program $1,400,000
e Local roads reseal program $1,200,000
e Building Renewal Program S 660,000
e Bridge Rehabilitation program S 650,000
e Road improvement program $ 555,000
e Lake Colac Masterplan Implementation Stage 1 (Priority Project) S 500,000

e Strategic Local Roads Renewal (Priority Project - $675,000 over 3 years) $ 275,000
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The total projected Capital Works in the draft budget amounts to $11.1 million. With Council’s budgeted depreciation
being $10.35 million this does not cover the ratio of 150% as per the resolution from 26 February 2014 Council Meeting;

“Capital replacement expenditure to be not less than 150% of depreciation where capital replacement expenditure areas
comprise components as listed in the 2012-2013 Colac Otway Shire annual report and additional areas as may be added
from time to time.”

It is worth noting that this is a rule of thumb measure only and at the conclusion of the Asset management Planning and
long term financial planning processes we will have a more accurate view of asset renewal requirements.

Reserve Transfers

Long Service Leave Reserve

During 2012-2013 Council received a call from the industry superannuation fund to maintain the liquidity of the Defined
Benefits Superannuation scheme. This call of approximately $3.18 million was paid during the 2012/13 period. To pay
that largely unexpected call, Council reduced the works programme for 2012/13 and utilised funds set aside for
employee Long Service Leave.

Council has committed to repay the employee Long Service Leave reserve within eight (8) years and the draft budget
includes an amount of $201,424.50 to continue this.

Landfill Rehabilitation Reserve
In keeping with our approach towards prudent financial management, Council continues to set aside funds for future
commitments towards landfill rehabilitation in order to save ratepayers significant amounts in the coming years.

Loan Borrowings
The budget for 2018/19 allows for no new borrowings to be made.

Council is budgeting to repay $0.65 million in loan principal during 2018/19 and will once again put away another
$100,000 of funds to meet the scheduled repayment of $500,000 to $1,000,000 (depending on Council’s decision
whether to rollover $500,000) on the Bluewater Bond in the 2019/20 financial year.

Rating

Council's total rates and charges will increase to $29.9 million to enable the delivery of services and infrastructure to the
community. The budget proposal is for an increase in the average rates and charges of 1.50% (general rate and
municipal charge) for the 2018/19 financial year, significantly below the announced rate cap of 2.25%.

We have also undertaken an exhaustive and detailed review over the past 18 months of Council’s rating strategy in
order to prepare the new document for the 2018-2020 period. In this process we have engaged in an extensive
community consultation process and Council officers and Councillors have worked together to translate this into the
new rating strategy. The 2018/19 draft budget currently reflects the proposed rating strategy; please refer to the
separate agenda item covering this proposed strategy document.

When taking into account the rates and charges figures (& property numbers) listed in the budget document, the
average assessment (excluding Kerbside bin collection charges but including Municipal Charge) is $1,765.91 reflecting
the 1.5% increase per the rate capping calculation.
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Waste Charge

The kerbside collection charge has been reviewed in light of service costs. It is proposed to increase the kerbside
collection charge to be increased as follows:

e Weekly charge has increased from $298 to $304.50 or 13 cents per week.

e Fortnightly charge has increased from $198 to $204.50 or 13 cents per week.
In light of the waste recycling crisis, Council has taken the proactive step to undertake a full review and analysis of its

garbage and waste charges. At this point in time the proposed increases do not represent a full cost recovery. The
outcomes of this review will influence any future decisions in this area.
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FURTHER SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5. COMMUNITY CONSULTATION & ENGAGEMENT

The draft 2018/19 budget has been subject to extensive community consultation with the introduction of an upfront
consultative process surrounding potential community projects. A period of approximately 5 weeks was set aside to
undertake a series of drop in sessions and an online survey via Council’s website to capture the community’s
expectations and priorities. This information was used to inform decision making around Council’s capital, operating and
priority projects.

This upfront community consultation approach is reflective of Council’s desire to put the community at the heart of all
decision making.

In addition we will be running the legislated 28 day process between 4 May 2018 and 1 June 2018 where the community
will be invited to make written submissions on the draft budget document.

6. ANALYSIS

ALIGNMENT TO COUNCIL PLAN OR COUNCIL POLICY

Aligns with Theme 4 of the Council Plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

No environmental implications were identified.

SOCIAL & CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS

All budget decisions take full consideration of any social or cultural implications

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS

The long term financial sustainability of Council drives all financial decisions made during this budget process.

A detailed understanding of both the micro and macro-economic environment in which our community currently
experiences was essential in deciding key outcomes of the budget process.

LEGAL AND RISK IMPLICATIONS
Any contractual obligations are met by the draft budget.

Local Government Act 1989: (Act)

e Section 127 - "Council must prepare a budget"
Section 129 - "Public notice"
Section 130 - "Adoption of budget or revised budget
Section 223 - "Right to make submission"

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCIAL ETC)

Refer to the draft budget document.
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7. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

DETAILS

The exhibition of the draft budget will be publicised and feedback sought through the following mechanisms:
e Published on the website and ability to provide written feedback via the website;

e Budget documents will be available from customer service locations in Colac and Apollo Bay for viewing and
written submissions will be accepted at these locations.

COMMUNICATION

The release of the draft budget and processes for providing feedback will be widely publicised in the local media and on
the website.

TIMELINE

The exhibition period runs from 4 May 2018 to 1 June 2018.

1 June — Exhibition ends

13 June — Council consider submissions

27 June — Council consider endorsement of the Budget 2018/19 at its Ordinary Meeting

Submissions must be made in writing by Friday 1 June 2018 and Council will consider any submissions (accompanied by
a request to speak to these submissions) received at a Special Committee Meeting on Wednesday 13 June 2018 at 5pm
prior to the final Budget being considered for adoption on Wednesday 27 June 2018.

Anyone wishing to be heard in support of their submission must advise Council of their intention to do so in the written
submission provided by Friday 1 June 2018.

8. OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST

No officer declared an interest under the Local Government Act 1989 in the preparation of this report.
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The information contained in this document is for general guidance only. It is not professional advice and should
not be used, relied upon or treated as a substitute for specific professional advice. Given the changing nature of
laws, rules and regulations, and the inherent hazards of electronic communication, there may be delays,
omissions or inaccuracies in information contained in this document.

The model budget, including financial statements, has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. While we
have made every effort to ensure that the information contained in this document has been accurate and
complies with relevant Victorian legislation, each Council remains responsible to ensure that the budget they
prepare is compliant with all statutory requirements.
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Mayor’s Summary

As a Council, we are charged with balancing the needs and expectations of our communities with our
projected revenue — derived both within the Council and from other levels of Government.

| am very pleased that we have been able to prepare a draft budget that once again proposes a rate
rise well under the State Government’s rate cap.

In 2018-19, property owners in Colac Otway Shire will, on average, see a rate rise of 1.5 per cent -
which is a third less than the cap and therefore below the vast majority of Shires.

Our officers have worked hard to keep the rate rise to a minimum, while still preparing a draft budget
that reflects being financially responsible remaining mindful of the impact rates are on ratepayers.
With far less necessity to focus on capital works associated with bush fire and flood recovery, the
capital works budget has almost halved to $11 million. Council has taken the decision to focus these
works on renewal of assets as opposed to building new assets. This decision will still see more than
$6 million spent on roads, bridges and drainage.

This budget means we can maintain a low-risk position, while still progressing with over $1.1 million of
priority projects that you, the community, want.
Key budget highlights include:

e $275,000 to address the infrastructure gap through our Strategic Local Roads Renewal;

e« $257,000 for Council's joint Energy Efficient Lighting project with G21;

« $250,000 for Stage 1 of the Lake Colac Foreshore Master Plan;

« $200,000 for Stage 1 of the Apollo Bay Harbour Precinct Development;

e $100,000 for toilet design as part of the implementation of the Memorial Square Masterplan;

and
« $100,000 for Stage 1 design of the Forrest Mountain Bike Strategy.

As we continue to move forward with this budget and subsequent budgets, our focus will continue to
maintain services, facilities and important community infrastructure so that our Shire continues to be
a wonderful place to call home, to conduct business and to visit.

We started the draft 2018-19 budget process earlier than in previous years to provide more
opportunity for community input. Our focus remains on the community and the ratepayers who
continue to make a significant contribution. We will work diligently to ensure that rate revenue is
spent wisely on your behalf.

Cr Joe McCracken
Mayor
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Executive Summary

Colac Otway Shires Budget for 2018/19 seeks to maintain our services and infrastructure as well as
deliver key projects and services that are valued by our community and aligned to outcomes set out in

the Council Plan 2017 to 2021.
This Budget projects a surplus of $0.69m for 2018/19, however after allocating to the relevant
reserves (See section 4.3.1) and providing for principal repayment of borrowings and the capital

works program it is a balanced budget.
Note the Operating Surplus reflects a financial year without disaster recovery funding as at the time of

this budget preparation there was no further disaster recovery works forecast.

1. Key things we are funding

a. Ongoing delivery of services to the Colac Otway Shire community funded by a budget of
$47.4m. These services are summarised in Section 2;

b. Continued investment in capital assets ($11.10m) primarily for renewal works (8.5m) &
Upgrade works ($1.8m). The Statement of Capital Works can be found in Section 3.5 and
further details on the capital works budget can be found in Section 4.5;

c. The 2018/19 Budget also allocates funding to major projects and initiatives as set out in
Section 4.5. However this year Council undertook to create a priority projects list established

by Councillors to reflect those projects of highest priority to the community, that list is made up

of:
i. Strategic Local Roads Renewal
ii. Lake Colac Foreshore Master plan implementation — Stage 1
ii. Memorial Square Masterplan Implementation — Stage 1
iv. Apollo Bay Harbour Precinct Development Plan — Stage 1
v. Memorial Square Toilets Design
vi. Forrest Mountain Bike Strategy Implementation — Stage 1 design
vii. Stronger Communities Program (# of smaller projects)
viii. Relocation of Apollo Bay Kindergarten to the P12 College site
ix. GROW.
x. Colac Integration Water Cycle Management Plan

2. The Rate Rise
a. The average rate will rise by 1.50% which is 0.75% below the maximum level set by the

Minister for Local Government 19 December 2017 under the Fair Go Rates System of 2.25%;

b. Key Drivers
i. To fund ongoing service delivery — business as usual (balanced with greater service
demands from residents);
ii. Tofund renewal of infrastructure and community assets;
iii. To cope with growth in the population of Colac Otway Shire residents;
iv. To cope with cost shifting from the State Government;
v. To operate within the boundaries set under the Fair Go rates System (Rate Capping).
c. Thisis a revaluation year, the majority of the movement in property values relates to
revaluations (no impact on revenue) as opposed to growth in properties in the shire

(increases rate revenue);

d. The Fortnightly kerbside bin charge increases to $204.50 and the weekly kerbside bin charge
increases to $304.50. A review is currently underway to determine cost recovery however this

increase in charge still does not result in cost recovery.
e. Referto Section 4 for further information on rates.
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3. Key Statistics

« Total Revenue: $48.06M (2017/18 - $55.43M)
« Total Expenditure: $47.36M (2017/18 - $47.89M)
* Accounting Result: $0.69M Surplus (2017/18 - $7.54M Surplus) (Refer Income

Statement in Section 3.1)
« Total Capital Works Program of $11.10M (2017/18 - $21.64M)
o $6.92M from Council Cash
o $0.00M from borrowings
o $0.00M from asset sales
o $1.84M from external grants
o $2.34M from reserves

4. Budget Influences

External Influences
The preparation of the budget is influenced by the following external factors:

* The Victorian State Government introduced a cap on rate increases from 2016/17. The cap for
2018/19 has been set at 2.25% (2017/18 - 2.0%);

« Consumer Price Index (CPI) increases on goods and services of 1.9% through the year to
December quarter 2017 (ABS release 31 January 2018). Still below the Reserve Bank of
Australia's target CPI of 2-3%;

« Changes to the cost of disposing of recycling. Note at the time of preparation of the budget no
impacts have been included as additional costs are not yet known;

« Cost Shifting occurs where Local Government provides a service to the community on behalf
of the State and Federal Government. Over time the funds received by local governments do
not increase in line with real cost increases. Examples of services that are subject to Cost
Shifting include school crossing supervisors, library services and home and community care
for aged residents. In all these services the level of payment received by Council from the
State Government does not reflect the real cost of providing the service to the community;

* Councils across Australia raise approximately 2% to 5% of the total taxation collected by all
levels of Government in Australia. In addition Councils are entrusted with the maintenance of
more than 30% of all Australian public assets including roads, bridges, parks, footpaths and
public buildings. This means that a large proportion of Council's income must be allocated to
the maintenance and replacement of these valuable public assets in order to ensure the
quality of public infrastructure is maintained at satisfactory levels;

+ The Fire Services Property Levy will continue to be collected by Council on behalf of the State
Government with the introduction of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012; and

« Transitioning to the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) impacting the resources
required in the Council's Older Persons/Health and Community Care Services.

Internal Influences
As well as external influences, there are also a number of internal influences which have a significant
it;nlpact on the preparation of the 2018/19 Budget. These matters and their financial impact are set out
elow:
+« The outcomes of the renegotiation of Council's Enterprise Bargaining Agreement covering the
Strategic Resource Plan period;
* QOutcomes of Service reviews;
* The cyclical nature of plant renewal and varying financial resources for maintaining the
currency of Council's plant;
« The impact of core knowledge lost due to high turnover over the previous 3 years;
« Outdated IT systems and environment
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1. Link to the Council Plan

This section describes how the Annual Budget links to the achievement of the Council Plan within an
overall planning and reporting framework. This framework guides the Council in identifying community
needs and aspirations over the long term, medium term (Council Plan) and short term (Annual
Budget) and then holding itself to account (Annual Report).

1.1 Planning and accountability framework

The Strategic Resource Plan, part of and prepared in conjunction with the Council Plan, is a rolling
four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that Council requires to achieve
the strategic objectives described in the Council Plan. The Annual Budget is framed within the
Strategic Resource Plan, considering the services and initiatives which contribute to achieving the
strategic objectives specified in the Council Plan. The diagram below depicts the planning and
accountability framework that applies to local government in Victoria.

Time horizon Planning Reporting Timing
Jan - Jun
Council plan
objectives
trategic indicators
Feb - Jun
Strategic resource plan
> Financial ments
> Statements of n
financial rces
Mar - Jun
Jul - Sep

Annual report

> Report of operations
> Financial statements
> Performance statement

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

The timing of each component of the planning framework is critical to the successful achievement of
the planned outcomes.
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1.2 Our purpose

Our Vision “Towards a prosperous future”

The Councillors at Colac Otway Shire commit to plan for growth in business and employment for our
town and settlements; The delivery of high quality services that meet community needs and
demonstrate value for money; and to be leaders and work together as a team with the community and
the organisation to achieve our goals for the shire.

Our Values

* Respect — Be open and consistent in our dealings with people and respect their views.

« |Integrity — We will work in an open and transparent way, ensuring our processes, decisions
and actions are ethical, responsible and honest.

¢ Goodwill - We will have an attitude of kindness and friendliness and build a good relationship
with our customers and community.

e Honesty — We will be consistent, keep our promises, admit our mistakes and clearly
communicate our decisions.

o Trust — We will act honestly, openly and fairly to build levels of trust.

1.3 Strategic objectives

Council delivers activities and initiatives under major service categories. Each contributes to the
achievement of one of the four Strategic Objectives as set out in the 2017-2021 Council Plan. The
following table lists the four Strategic Objectives as described in the Council Plan.

Strategic Theme
1. Qur Prosperity

Description

We work together to improve the prosperity of our people, businesses and
community partners by working to promote our beautiful shire as an attractive
place to invest, live and work.

2. Our Places

Our places are well-planned. We work with local and government partners to
plan healthy, safe environments which promote community life and enhance
well-being. Our infrastructure assets are managed so that they are sustainable
for the long term.

3. Our Community

We work to know our community and to understand their needs and aspirations.
We plan our assets and services to meet community need and to foster a culture
of good service and partnership with others.

4. QOur Leadership &

We will work together with our community to create a sustainable future. We will

Management deliver value for money for ratepayers in everything we do and we will achieve
long term sustainability and transparent community leadership.
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2. Services and initiatives and service performance outcome
indicators

This section provides a description of the services and initiatives to be funded in the Budget for the
2018/19 year and how these will contribute to achieving the strategic objectives outlined in the
Council Plan. It also describes several initiatives and service performance outcome indicators for key
areas of Council’s operations. Council is required by legislation to identify major initiatives, initiatives
and service performance outcome indicators in the Budget and report against them in their Annual
Report to support transparency and accountability. The relationship between these accountability
requirements in the Council Plan, the Budget and the Annual Report is shown below.

r
Strategic objective Services Indicators (outcome)
> tiat M g Report of
Strategic indicators Initiatives Major initiatives operations
r
Strategic objective Services Indicators (outcome) Service indicators
> Major initiatives
Strategic indicators Initiatives Major initiatives 1) Governance &
management checklist
Strategic objective > [ Services Indicators (outcome)
Strategic indicators [ Initiatives Major initiatives Performance
statement
p= -
Strategic objective ) Services Indicators (outcome) Service indicators (outcome)
Strategic indicators Initiatives Major initiatives F'Mn?" lndicalots 5 =
Sustainable capacity indicators

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning
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2.1 Strategic Theme 1: Our Prosperity

We work together to improve the prosperity of our people, businesses and community partners by
working to promote our beautiful shire as an attractive place to invest, live and work.

Services

Service area Description of services provided

Building Cantrol This sendce provides for planned building dewelopments 1o meel prasent and future community <
requirements. (145)

189

Ewvents This senice provides for active community i in the pi ioning of and support for 237
community entertainment and events, including funding for Festival and Events grants 31

234

Economic Development  This senice facilitates a healthy and resilient economy by providing effective leadership, adwecacy, and 658
partnership, by working with busi and the co ity. The senvce also facilizates Councils 3)

community grant program. 655

Tourism This senice provdes economic benefit by promoting the Shire as a location for Wsitors to enjoy, explore 54
and return to. Visitor information is provided wia Council's two Visitor Information Centres and via media (369)

585

Apollo Bay Harbour This senice manages and maintains the Apollo Bay Harbour for the enjoyment of the community. 1.485
{1,001}

485

Colac Liestock Selling  This senice provides a vital link in our rural infrastructure by provding a marketplace for buying and selling 34
Centre livestock. (S66)
(172)

Statutory Planning This senice fulfils Council's statutory obligations in being the responsible authority for the management 1.063
and regulation of land use and dewlopment, with the aim of achieving sustainable cutcomes in the (309}

interests of current and fulure generations 754

Strategic Planning This senice ensures that land use planning is undertaken to meet the sustainable long term needs of 665
current and fulure generations (103}

562

Major Initiatives

Major Initiatives Expenditure

$'000
Forrest Mountain Bike Strategy Implementation - Stage 1 Design 100
Colac 2050 Growth Plan - Planning Scheme Amendment 5
Implementing the Planning Scheme Revew to cul red tape 105
Commencement of the Apollo Bay Harbour Precinct Development Plan 200

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

LGPRF Sarvice Performance Outcome Indicators
The following indicators outlines how we intend lo measure achievemenl of senice objectives

Indicator Performance Measure Computation

Council planning decisions upheld at VCAT(Percaniage of [Number of VCAT decisions that
planning application decisions subject to review by VCAT  did not set aside Council's
and thal were nol sel asice) decision in relation 1o a planning
Statulory planning Decision making application / Number of VCAT
decisions in relation to planning
applications] x100

NB: Indicators shown above are based on the 2016-17 reporting period these may be subject to change

*refer to table at end of section 2.2 for information on the calculation of Service Performance Outcome
Indicators.
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2.2 Strategic Theme 2: Our Places

Our places are well-planned. We work with local and government partners to plan healthy, safe
environments which promote community life and enhance well-being. Our infrastructure assets are
managed so that they are sustainable for the long term.

Services

Service area Description of sarvices provided
Sustainable Asset This senice provides for sustainable planning, development and use of Council's assets with the aim to 1]
Management maximise community ulility in the present and for future generations. 0
Emergency Management This senice prowdes for Council's preparedness 1o support agencies and the communily in the event of an 220
amergency. 0
e}
Enuronment This servce provides for management of our natural enviconment 1o the betterment and enjoyment of all a17
members of our community. 111
806
Fire Presention This senice promotes community safety by aiming to aliminate potential fire risks within our community. 17
(18}
2)
Infrastructure Senices This senice prowdes for the physical assets required by the community to maintain a happy, healthy and 6,500
sustainable lifestyle. (479}
$.020
Parks, Gardens and This senice prowdes for the maintenance of open space for the enjoy of all ity T 1,491
Reseres Q
1,491
Street Lighting This senice actively promotes community safety by providing a clear and safe environment in our towns 1
after dark, a
111
Waste Management This senice prowdas for the efficient and effective control of waste products produced by our community. It 3428
includes the provision of wasle collection senices as well as for disposal to landfil 3,199}
29
Major Initiatives
Major Initiatives §'000
Sealed Road Reconstruction Programme 1,476
Unsealed Road Resheel Programme 1,476
Development of Neighbourthood Safer Places at Barwon Downs and Beech Forest a3
Service Performance Outcome Indicators
Service Indicator Performance Measure Computation
Roads Satistaction Satisfaction with sealed local mads ‘Community satisfaction rating
(Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council out of 100 with how Council has
has pedomed on the condition of sealed local roads ) pedormed on the condition of
sealed local roads
Emdronment Greenhouse Emission Reduction in the proportion of greenhouse gas emissions  [Sum of emissions for council
Target for the Colac Otway Shire Council buildings, street lights and council

fleet / total council greenhouse
gas emissons] x100
Waste collection Waste diversion Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill [Weight of recyclables and green
(Percentage of garbage, recyclables and green organics  organics collected from kerbside
collected from kerbside bins that is diverted from landfill]  bins / Weight of garbage,
recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins]
x100
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2.3 Strategic Theme 3: Our Community

We work to know our community and to understand their needs and aspirations. We plan our assets
and services to meet community need and to foster a culture of good service and partnership with
others.

Services

Service area Description of services provided

Ans & Culture This service is P ble for the mar and provsion of ans and cullural senrdces to the 1,176
community. This senice is responsible for the running of the Colac Otway Perdoming Aris & Cultural (57711

Centra 599

Recreation This senice prowides for active i and the of healthy lifestyles by providing 351
for suitable sporting and recreational facilities. 1]

351

Bluewater Leisure Centre  This senice actiwly promotes a healthy lifestyle for our community by directly provding swimming and 1.W
gymnasium facilities (1,243)
601

Local Laws This senice provides for community safety and healh by prowviding for a for which 861
affect our community well-baing. {518]

344

Public Health This serdce promoles a healthy and safe lifestyle by actively promoting and policing public health issues. 453
(185}

28

Older Persons & This senice provides support 10 older and di d bers of our y in order to sustain quality of 3,324
Disability Services life for all our residents, (2.724)
599

Children and Family This senice provides support 1o our children, families and youth to encourage and nurture their growth and 941
Senices development. (715)
26

Library Senice The library senice provides resources and oversight to the Corangamite Regional Library Corporation for 99
the provision of information, education, recreation and enrichment for the community. 541

45

Major Initiatives

Expenditure

Major Initiatives

Regional Assessment Senice Coordinator 174
Memorial Square Masterplan Impiementation 130
Concept design and quantity surveying for relocating Apollo Bay Kindergarten to the P12 School 100
Enhanced capacity to undertake essential safety measures under the Building Act 80
E capacity to i D W M. Plan 80

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

Indicator Performance Measure Computation

Active library members (Percenlage of the municipal [Number of active library
population that are active library members) members / municipal population]
[Number of children who atlend
the MCH senice at least once (in
the year) § Number of children
enrolled in the MCH senice]
x100

Libraries Participation

Participation in the MCH sendce (Percentage of children
enmlled who participate in the MCH senice)
Matemal and Child Health Participation Participation in MCH senice by Aboriginal childran
(Percenlage of Abonginal children enrolled who participale
in the MCH senice)

[Number of Atariginal children
wha altend the MCH senice al
least once (in the year)/Number
of Abariginal children anvolled in
the MCH senice] x100

Aqualic Facilities Wilisation Utilisation of aquatic facilities Number of visils to aqualic
(Number of isits to aquatic facilities per head of municipal facilities / Municipal population
population)

Colac Otway Shire Draft Budget — 2018/19 12

Attachment 1 - Draft Budget for Public Submission

192



2.4 Strategic Theme 4: Our Leadership & Management

We will work together with our community to create a sustainable future. We will deliver value for
money for ratepayers in everything we do and we will achieve long term sustainability and transparent
community leadership.

Services

Expendilure
Sarvice area Description of services provided (Revenue

Councillors and Chief This area of govemance includes the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive Officer, Business Improvement

Executive Office Officer and Public Relations Tearn and associaled support which cannot be easily attributed to the direct 1]
senice provision areas. 1321

Finance, Property and This senice has the responsibility to generate revenue for Council via rate, levies and charges and to 2125
Rates provide sustainable and accountable financial management of Council's resources. {69331
{4, EZI

Cuslomer Senice This senice has the responsibility to provide the first point of contact between Council and the public 828
through Council's Customer Sanice Centres. The senice provides overall corporale customer senice to the n

wider ity and assists all areas of Council with the provision of ponsibility. 827

Corporate Senices This senice has the responsibility to maintain strong govemance and administrative systems and to 409
Management ensure thal these syslems are responsive, accountable and transparent to internal users and community (22)
neads. 14

Contract Management This serice provides oversight and govemance on contractual and procurement senices undertaken by ?3?
Senvice Council o
1_31

Information Senices This serwce provides management and govemance of information flows, slorage and relrieval within the 2,789
organisation in accordance with appropriate legislation and standards., 2

2788

People. Performance &  This senice prowdes and develops a culture of high performance, productivity and accountability across the 744
Culture organisation. o
744

Risk Management This serice has the responsibility to identify, record and manage all business risk associaled with 442
Senvices Council's activities. This senice manages Council's insurance portfolio. @
442

Major Initiatives

Major Initiatives Expel

Information Technology Infrastruciure Upgrades

Enhanced Financial & Statutory Reporting Capability project 127

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

Service Indicator Performance Measure Computation

G S i Salisfaction with Council decisions Community satisfaclion rating
(Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council out of 100 with the performance
has performed in making decisions in the interests of the  of Council in making decisions in
community) the interest of the community
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2.5 Reconciliation with budgeted operating result

Net Cost
Total Ex penditure (Revenue)
$°000 $'000 $'000
[Our Prosperity 3,293 5,791 (2.498)
Our Places 8,875 12,683 (3,807),
Our Community 3713 9749 (6,016)
[Our L & M 1,834 8,71 (6,957)|
ITotal services and initiatives 17,734 3r.013 (19,278)|
[Depreciation & Finance Costs 10,350
Deficit before funding sources 28,084
[Funding sources:
[Rates & charges (excluding Waste) (26.943)
Capital grants (1.835)
[Total funding sources (28.778)
(Surplus)/Deficit for the year (634)
Less
[Capital Grants 1,835
Capital Contribution 0
Underlying (Surplus)/Deficit 1.141
Less
Additional rates funded CAPEX beyond Depreciation (1.084)
|Transfers to Resenes from Operating Budget 10.033
[Transfers from Resenves to Operating Budget (10,774}
Loan Principal Repayments 649
Increase/(D § in Imvesiment in a5

Surplus)y/Deficit Funds

Colac Otway Shire Draft Budget — 2018/19
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3. Financial statements

This section presents information in regard to the Financial Statements and Statement of Human
Resources. The budget information for the year 2018/19 has been supplemented with projections to
2021/22 extracted from the Strategic Resource Plan.

This section includes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Comprehensive Income Statement
Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Capital Works
Statement of Human Resources
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3.1 Comprehensive Income Statement
For the four years ending 30 June 2022

Strategic Resource Plan
Projections

Budget Budget

2017/18 201819 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income
Rates and charges 4.1.1 30,523 31,134 31,757
Statutory fees and charges 4.1.2 817 838 860
User fees and charges 4.1.3 4,742 4,866 4,992
Grants - Operating 4.1.4 10,773 11,564 12,426
Grants - Capital 4.1.4 1,872 1,910 1,949
Contributions - monetary 415 57 57 57
Contributions - non-monetary 415 - - -
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 147 147 147
Fair value adjustments for investment property * - -
Share of net profits/{losses) of associates and joint ventures 35 35 35
Other income 4.1.6 594 596 597
Total income 49,560 51,146 52,820
Expenses
Employee costs 417 19,695 20,187 20,692
Materials and senvices 4.1.8 15,986 16,386 16,796
Bad and doubtful debts 2 2 2
Depreciation and amortisation 419 10,764 11,195 11,642
Borrowing costs 112 53 39
Other expenses 4.1.10 2,067 2,118 2,170
Total expenses 48,626 49,940 51,341
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 934 1,206 1,479
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus/(deficit) in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) - - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures - - -
Items that may be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods - - -
Total comprehensive result 934 1,206 1,479
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3.2 Balance Sheet
For the four years ending 30 June 2022

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Property, infrastructure, plant & equipment
Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Trust funds and deposits

Provisions

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Provisions

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Accumulated surplus
Resenes

Total equity

Colac Otway Shire Draft Budget — 2018/19

Budget Budget
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000

Strategic Resource Plan
Projections

2020121
$'000

13,338 13,883 15,008
4,193 4,277 4,363
169 169 168
#VALUE! #VALUE! HVALUE!
#VALUE! HVALUE! H#VALUE!
380 415 450
297,199 297,815 298,275
#VALUE! HVALUE! HVALUE!
#VALUE! #VALUE! HVALUE!
HVALUE! HVALUE! H#VALUE!
4.21
2,301 2,359 2418
468 468 468
4,417 4,527 4,639
286 142 596
7,473 7,496 8.121
7.7 7.924 8.122
738 596 a
8,469 8.520 8,122
15,941 16,015 16,243
#VALUE! HVALUE! HVALUE!
135,686 136,057 136,681
163,652 164.486 165,342
299,338 300,544 302,023

17
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3.3 Statement of Changes in equity

For the four years ending 30 June 2022

Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000

2017/18 Budget
Balance at beginning of the financial year 287,850 123.041 148,936 15,873
Surplusi{deficit) for the year 7.542 7,542 - -
Net asset ion in t/(d it) - - - -
Transfer to other resenes - (8.847) - 8,847
Transfer from other resenes - 13,931 - (13,931)
Balance at end of the financial year 295,392 135,666 148,936 10,790

2019/20 Strategic Resource Plan

Balance at beginning of the financial year 298,404 135,566 151,254 11,584
Surplus/{deficit) for the year 934 934 - -
Net asset luation ir ti{d ) - - - -
Transfer to other reserves - (11,857) - 11,857
Transfer from other reseres . 11,043 - (11.043)
Balance at end of the financial year 299,338 135,686 151,254 12,399

2020/21 Strategic Resource Plan

Balance at beginning of the financial year 299,338 135,686 151,254 12,399
Surplusi{deficit) for the year 1,206 1,206 - -
Net asset ion ir ti{d ] - - - -
Transfer to other reserves - (12,153) - 12,153
Transfer from other reseres - 11,319 - (11,319)
Balance at end of the financial year 300,544 136,057 151,254 13,233
2021/22 Strategic Resource Plan

Balance at beginning of the financial year 300,544 136,057 151,254 13,233
Surplusi{deficit) for the year 1,479 1,479 - -
Net asset ion ir t/{d it) - - - -
Transfer to other resenes - (12.457) - 12,457
Transfer from other reseres - 11,602 N (11,602)
Balance at end of the financial year 302,023 136,681 151,254 14,088
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3.4 Statement of Cash Flows
For the four years ending 30 June 2022

Strategic Resource Plan
Projections
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

$'000 $'000 $'000

Inflows Inflows Inflows Infiows

(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)

Budget Budget

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges 30,515 31,126 31,749
Statutory fees and fines 817 838 860
User fees 4,742 4,866 4,992
Grants - capital 1,835 1,872 1,910
Grants - operating 10.736 11,526 12,388
Contributions - monetary 57 57 57
Other receipts 594 596 597
Employee costs (19,400) (19,884) (20,381)
Materials and senices (15,932) (16,330) (16,739)
Trust funds and deposits repaid - - -
Other payments (2,067) (2,118) (2,170)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 4.41 11,898 12,548 13,263
Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (11,869) (12,154) (12,445)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 490 490 490
Net cash provided by/ (used in) investing activities 4.4.2 (11.379) (11,664) (11,955)
Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs (112) (53) (39)
Repayment of borrowings (1,697) (286) (142)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 4.43 (1,809) (339) (182)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (1,290) 545 1,126
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 14,627 13,338 13,883
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 13,338 13,883 15,009
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3.5 Statement of Capital Works
For the four years ending 30 June 2022

Strategic Resource Plan
Projections

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Budget Budget

Property

Land - - -
Buildings 1,475 1.511 1,549
Total land & Buildings 1,475 1,511 1,549
Total property 1,475 1,511 1,549
Plant and equipment

Plant, machinery and equipment 1,399 1,434 1,470
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 534 547 561
Computers and telecommunications 216 221 227
Total plant and equipment 2,148 2,202 2,257
Infrastructure

Roeds 5,939 6,087 6,239
Bridges 501 514 527
Footpaths and cycleways a7 483 495
Drainage 451 462 473
Other infrastructure 394 404 414
Total infrastructure 7,756 7,950 8,149
Total capital works expenditure 11,379 11,664 11,955
Represented by:

New asset expenditure 786 805 826
Asset renewal expenditure 8,743 8,962 9,186
Asset upgrade expenditure 1,850 1,896 1,944
Total capital works expenditure 11,379 11,664 11,955
Funding Sources represented by:

Grants 1,872 1,909 1,948
Contributions - - -
Council Cash 9,507 9,754 10,008
Borrowings e = =
Total capital works expenditure 11,379 11,664 11,955
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3.6 Statement of Human Resources

For the four years ending 30 June 2022

Strategic Resource Plan
Projections
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
$'000 $'000

Budget Budget

Staff expenditure
Employee costs - operating
Employee cosls - capital

Total staff expenditure 20,395 20,887 21,392
EFT EFT EFT

Staff numbers

Employees 223.1 223.1 223.1

Total staff numbers 223.1 223.1 223.1

Budget Permanent
2018/19 Full Time Part Time
$'000 $'000 $'000

Temporary

Chief Executive Office

Corporate Services

Dewelopment and Community Serices
Infrastructure and Leisure Senices
Disaster Recovery

Total staff expenditure

Casuals and other expenditure
Capitalised labour costs

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above expenditure is included below:
Budget Permanent
FTE Full Time PartTime

Chief Executive Office
Corporate Senices
Development and Community Services

Infrastructure and Leisure Senices

Disaster Recovery

Total

Casuals and other {inclusive in the above EFT numbers)
Capitalised labour costs

Total staff

320 78 07 -
446 34.9 0.5 0.2
81.2 9.5 6.3 -

162.8 52.5 7.6 0.2

Note the additional FTE in 2018/19 relates to fully funded Home care resources,
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4. Notes to the financial statements

This section presents detailed information on material components of the financial statements.
Council needs to assess which components are material, considering the dollar amounts and nature
of these components.

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement
4.1.1 Rates and charges

Rates and charges are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclesed in Council's annual
budget.

In developing the Strategic Resource Plan, rates and charges were identified as an important source
of revenue. Planning for future rate increases has therefore been an important component of the
Strategic Resource Planning process. The Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) sets out the maximum
amount councils may increase rates in a year. For 2018/19 the FGRS cap has been set at 2.25%.
The cap applies to both general rates and municipal charges and is calculated on the basis of
council’s average rates and charges.

The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to
Council's other sources of income and the planned expenditure on services and works to be
undertaken for the community.

To achieve these objectives while maintaining service levels and a strong capital expenditure
program, the average general rate and the municipal charge will increase by 1.50% which is within
the rate cap.

This will raise total rates and charges for 2018/19 as shown below.

4.1.1(a) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under Section 158 of the Act for
each type or class of land compared with the previous financial year
2017/18 2018/19

Type or class of land Budget Budget

cents/$CIV cents/$CIV

Commercial/lndustrial - BOS
Commercial/lndustrial - Colac
Holiday Rental

Residential - BOS
Residential - Colac ;
Rural Farm 0.003405 0.
NB™ The above decrease is a direct result of this being a revaluation year

4.1.1(b) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates in relation to each type or
class of land, and the estimated total amount to be raised by general rates, compared with the
previous financial year

2017/18 2018/19
Type or class of land Budget Change
$'000
Commercial/Industrial - BOS 1,066
Commercial/lndustrial - Colac
Holiday Rental
Residential - BOS
Residential - Colac
Rural Farm
Total amount to be raised by general rates
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4.1.1(c) The number of assessments in relation to each type or class of land, and the total
number of assessments, compared with the previous financial year.

2017/18 2018/19
Type or class of land Budget Change
Number L

Commercial/lndustrial - BOS
Commercial/industrial - Colac
Holiday Rental

Residential - BOS

Residential - Colac

Rural Farm

Total number of assessments

4.1.1(d) The basis of valuation to be used is the Capital Improved Value (CIV)

4.1.1(e) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the estimated total value of
land, compared with the previous financial year

2018/19
Type or class of land Budget Change
$'000
Commercial/industrial - BOS 75,117
Commercial/lndustrial - Colac
Holiday Rental
Residential - BOS
Residential - Colac
Rural Farm
Total value of land 5
NB* The above increase is a direct result of this being a revaluation year in addrt.lon to property
growth per section 4.1.1(c)

4.1.1(f) The municipal charge under Section 159 of the Act compared with the previous
financial year

Per Rateable Per Rateable

Property Property

Budget Budget

Type of Charge 2017/18 2018119

Municipal 3 .
4.1.1(g) The estimated total amount to be raised by municipal charges compared with the
previous financial year

2017/18 2018119

Type of Charge Budget Budget Change

$'000 %,

Municipal

4.1.1(h) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of service rate or charge under
Section 162 of the Act compared with the previous financial year
Per Rateable Per Rateable
Property Property
Type of Charge Budget Budget
2017/18 2018/19

Weekly Kerbside collection
Fortnightly Kerbside collection
4.1.1(i) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of service rate or charge, and the
estimated total amount to be raised by service rates and charges, compared with the previous
financial year

201718 2018/19
Type of Charge Budget Budget

$'000 $'000

Kerbside collection
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4.1.1(j) The estimated total amount to be raised by all rates and charges compared with the
previous financial year

2017/18 2018/19
Type of Charge Budget Budget Change
$'000

General rales
Municipal charge

Kerbside collection and recycling
Tirengower Drainage Scheme
Rates and charges : 29,979
NB* The above increase is a direct result of this (a) being a revaluation year, (b) growth in properties
per section 4.1.1(b) and the 1.5% average rate increase per the rate capping calculation.

4.1.1(k) Fair go rates Compliance.

Colac Otway Shire is fully compliant with the State Government's Fair Go Rates System.
2017/18

Type of Charge

Total Rates (including supplementary assessments forecast)
Number of rateable properties (including supplementary assessments forecast)
Base average rate

Maximum rate increase (set by the State Government)

Capped Average Rate

Maximum General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue

Budgeted General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue

4.1.1(1) Any significant changes that may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates
and charges

There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by
rates and charges. However, the total amount to be raised by rates and charges may be affected by:

« The making of supplementary valuations;

+ The variation of returned levels of value (i.e. valuation appeals)

« Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice versa;
and

« Changes of use of land such that residential land becomes business land and vice versa.

4.1.1(m) Differential rates

The rate and amount of rates payable in relation to land in each category of differential are listed
above initem 4.1.1(a).

Each differential rate will be determined by multiplying the Capital Improved Value of rateable land
(categorised by the characteristics described below) by the relevant rate in the dollar listed above.

Council believes each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of
council functions. Details of the objectives of each differential rate, the types of classes of land which
are subject to each differential rate and the uses of each differential rate are set out below.

General Rates Charges

Please note, the following categories and differentials are subject to finalisation of the Rating Strategy
2018 to 2021.
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Residential Land — Colac

Any land, whether vacant or built upon, which is located in Colac, Colac East, Colac West and
Elliminyt that is not zoned for commercial or industrial use and which does not have the
characteristics of:

a) Rural Farm Land;
b) Holiday Rental Land; or
c) Commercial/lndustrial Land — Colac, Colac East, Colac West or Elliminyt.

Residential Land — Balance of Shire

Any land, whether vacant or built upon or which is not located in Colac, Colac East, Colac West or
Elliminyt that does not have the characteristics of:

a) Rural Farm Land;

b) Holiday Rental Land; or

¢) Commercial/industrial Land — Colac, Colac East, Colac West or Elliminyt; or
d) Commercial/lndustrial Land — Balance of Shire.

Rural Farm Land

Any land located within the shire which is “Farm Land” within the meaning of section 2 of the
Valuation of Land Act 1960 and is zoned to allow land to be used for rural and/or farming purposes.

Typically, these properties may contain buildings used as a residence and for farm purposes and will
also contain land with no buildings located upon it.

A Rural — Farm property may also be any land located within the shire which:

a) Is greater than 5 hectares in area;

b) Is zoned to allow the land to be used for rural and/or farming purposes;

¢) Has been deemed unviable for the purposes of carrying on a business of primary production
by Council; and

d) Has been deemed unsuitable to allow the construction of a dwelling.

Holiday Rental Land
Any land that contains a dwelling, cabin or house or part of a house that:

a) s used for the provision of holiday accommodation for the purpose of generating income; or
b) Is made generally available for holiday accommodation and is a secondary or supplemental
source of income for the owner.

Note: Typically, the category will include absentee owned holiday houses, owner occupied “Bed and
Breakfast” establishments, farm properties with accommodation cabins, holiday farms and the like.

The category will not include land used to provide tourist/holiday accommodation on an overtly
commercial scale and basis where the provision of accommodation is an integral part of the use of the
property. The types of properties excluded from this category would include motels, resorts, hotels
with accommodation, caravan parks, centrally managed and promoted multi-unit developments and
the like.

Commercial/industrial Land — Colac, Colac East, Colac West, Elliminyt

Any land which is located in Colac, Colac East, Colac West or Elliminyt which does not have the
characteristics of:
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a) Rural Farm Land;
b) Residential Land — Colac, Colac East, Colac West or Elliminyt; or
c) Holiday Rental Land;

And;
d) Is used primarily for:
a. The sale of goods or services;
b. Other commercial purposes; or
c. Industrial purposes or which is vacant but zoned for commercial or industrial use.

Commercial/Industrial Land - Balance of Shire

Any land which is not located in Colac, Colac East, Colac West or Elliminyt which does not have the
characteristics of:

a) Rural Farm Land;
b) Residential Land — Balance of Shire; or
c) Holiday Rental Land;

And;
d) Is used primarily for:
a. The sale of goods or services;
b. Other commercial purposes; or
¢. Industrial purposes or which is vacant but zoned for commercial or industrial use.

Other Charges
Municipal Charge

A Municipal Charge be declared for the budgeted period pertaining to this budget document to cover
some of the administrative costs of the Council.

The Municipal Charge to be as stated in item 4.1.1(f) per annum for each rateable property in respect
of which a municipal charge can be levied.

Annual Service (Waste Management) Charges

An annual service (waste management) charge per 4.1.1(h) for the weekly service provided be
declared for:

a) Allland used primarily for residential or commercial purposes; or
b) Other land in respect of which a weekly waste collection and disposal service is provided, for
the budgeted period pertaining to this budget document.

An annual service (waste management) charge per 4.1.1(h) for the fortnightly service provided be
declared for:

a) Allland used primarily for residential or commercial purposes; or
b) Other land in respect of which a weekly waste collection and disposal service is provided, for
the budgeted period pertaining to this budget document.

Commercial properties can have a maximum of one (1) 240 Litre or two (2) 120 litre bins.
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4.1.2 Statutory fees and fines

2017118 2018/19

Budget

$'000
Infringements & Costs 21

Town Planning Fees
Health Regulations

Building Permits

Engineereing Fees

15.5%

Total Statutory fees and fines 796

28 10.2%
1 6.8%

2 2.0%
(4)  (100.0%)
66 9.0%

There are a number of increases in the infringement and town planning fees which are out of councils

control as they are set by other agencies.

4.1.3 User fees

2017/18 2018/19

Budget Budget
$'000

Aged senices fees
Leisure centre fees

Colac livestock selling centre fees

Colac Otway Performing Arts & Cultural Centre fees
Visitor informaiton centre fees

Parking, animal control & local laws fees

Waste disposal fees

Other fees and charges

Apollo Bay harbour fees

Council properties fees and rental

Town planning and building senices fees

Child care children's programs

Total User fees

4,622

(46)
(34) (5.7%)
9 2.2%
1 0.2%
(16)  (6.0%)
12 6.9%
(51)  (69.0%)
(25)  (21.9%)
(57)  (28.8%)
4 9.4%
29 55.5%
82 1.8%

In the Aged services area there is an increase of fees due to increased numbers using the Home Care
Services that council provides to the community. There is also a forecasted decrease in the income for

the Livestock Selling Centre as throughput is expected to be down.

4.1.4 Grants

Grants are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council’s annual budget.
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Budget
2017/18

a) Operating Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Victorian Grants Commission
Family day care

General home care

Diesel Fuel Rebate

Health & Community Senices
Other

Recurrent - State Government
Aged and disability senices

Port management

Environment and protection senices
Arts and Leisure

Planning, Building & Health

Health & Community Senices
Other

Total recurrent grants

Non-recurrent - State Government
Emvronment and protection senices

Economic development and events

Planning, Building & Health

Emvironment and protection senices

Total non-recurrent grants

Total operating grants

b) Capital Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to Recovery

Recurrent - State Government

Apollo Bay

Total recurrent grants

Non-recurrent - Com ith G t
Recreational, Leisure and Community Facilities
Non-recurrent - State Government

Buildings

Disaster Recovery

Total non-recurrent grants

Total capital grants

There is an increase in the operating grants for the Victorian Grants Commission as the grant for the 2017-18 year was partially
received in the 2016-17 year. The reduction in the Environment and protection services area is related to the Disaster Recovery

operating grant that has been completed.

The Capital grants have had a significant reduction this budget due to the expected completion of the works that relate to the
Wye River Separation Creek Fires. There was also an allocation of the Roads to Recovery Grant that had a year of double

funds which is not in this year's budget.
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4.1.5 Contributions

2017/18 2018119 Change
Budget Budget

$'000 $'000 $'000
; (428)  (88.3%)
(88.3%)

Monetary
Total Contributions 485 57 (428)

The monetary contributions are down as in the previous year there was a large number of contributions that were related to
community projecis like the Biregurra Netball Court Upgrades.

4.1.6 Other income

2017/18 2018/19

Budget Budget
$'000

Interest
Reimbursements
Other Income

Interest on Rates 39
Total Other Income 593 (24)

The reduction in Other Income is related to the interest the council receives from investments. This reduction is due to council not

holding as much cash as in previous years.

4.1.7 Employee costs

201718 2018/19
=T Budget
$'000

Wages & Salaries
Wages & Salaries - Bushfire

Wages & Salaries - Flood (40)  (100.0%)
Employee Leawe (134) (8.0%)
Superannuation 4 0.3%
Casual Staff 97 13.9%
Sick Leave (57)  (12.9%)
Other Employee Benefits (15) (6.4%)
Fringe Benefits Tax ) (3.5%)
WorkCover (30)  (16.1%)
Total Employee Costs 18,982 19,217 235 1.2%

There has been an increase in staff related to the Community Services area which is fully funded. There has also been a

Council decision to employ an additional Governance Officer to assist with Councils compliance with the Local Government Act.

Qverall Employee Costs is significantly less than the current Enterprise Bargaining Agreement mandatory increases.
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4.1.8 Materials and services
2017/18 2018/19
Budget
$'000

Materials
Materials - Bushfire

Contract Payments

Contract Payments - Bushfire
Contract Payments - Flood

Change

§'000

Senices

Consultants (354)
Subscriptions & Memberships 106 10.0%
Utilities 44 4.0%
Plant and Equipment maintenance (218)  (16.7%)
Agency Staff 133 222.3%
Training Costs 34 10.3%
Legal Costs 63 98.1%
Hire Costs 0 0.8%
Permits L {0) {6.5%)
Total Materials and Services 15,596 (853) (5.2%)

This overall has a small increase of around CPI once all non-core business has been removed. The non- core items include disaster

recovery works in 2017/2018 and one-off operational projects not undertaken in 2018/19.

4.1.9 Depreciation and amortisation
2017/18 2018/19
Budget
$'000

Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Depreciation and Amortisation 10,350

4.1.10 Other Expenses

2018/19

Budget
$'000

Auditors Remuneration

Change

Community grants and donations 41

Councillor's allowance 9 (3.4%)
Waste Management charge 5 3.2%
Fire senices lewy 3 4.7%
Animal registration levy 5 25.0%
Royalties and commissions M @1%
Other (308)  (27.7%)
Total Other Expenses (182) (8.3%)

This movement predominantly relates to savings in Public Liability Insurance.

Colac Otway Shire Draft Budget — 2018/19

Attachment 1 - Draft Budget for Public Submission

210



4.2 Balance Sheet

4.2.1 Liabilities

There has been a large increase in the Non-current landfill provision. This is due to a change in
methodolegy used to calculate this during the last year end process. The format provided has been given
to council by the EPA. There is also an increase in the Current Interest Bearing Loans reflecting the large
repayment falling due 2019/20 financial year.

4.2.2 Borrowings

The table below shows information on borrowings specifically required by the Regulations.

2017/18 2018/19

Budget Budget
$'000
Qutstanding borrowings at year end 3,370

Redeemed Bomrowings (45) 7.4%
Closing Borrowings (649)  (19.2%)
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4.3 Statement of changes in Equity

4.3.1 Reserves

Contractual 2017118

rve Name onary/ Resene

Asset Rewaluation Resene Discretionary Shown as the current and probable value of assets that have been revalued

Landfill Rehabilitation (Alvie) Discretionary Funds allocated by Council for future rehabilitation of Alvie Landfill site

Plant Renewal Discretionary Funds allocated from sale of plant and from operational usage of plant for plant renewal

Home Care Packages Resene Discretionary  Retained funds for future uses for home care clients

Colac Livestock Selling Centre Discretionary Funds set aside from the saleyards net surplus for future reinvestment into the Saleyards

Open Space Resere Statutory  Funds collected via developer contributions set aside by region for open space dewvelopment

Port of Apolio Bay Contractual  Unspent port funding required to be set aside under the management agreement with the State Government

Land Rehabilitation Reserve Discretionary Funds allocated by Council for future rehabilitation of Landfill sites {(excluding Alvie)

Kerbside Bin Replacement Discretionary  Surplus funds collected from waste charges and transfer station fees to cover fulure waste management requirements
Tirengower Drainage Scheme Contractual E funds coll under the Tirmeng inage scheme to be spent on Timengower drainage works in the future
Bond Repayment Resene Discretionary Funds set aside for annual surplus to cover future bond repayments (Balloon payments)

Long Senvice Leave Discretionary Setting aside of funds to cover future Long Senice Leave provision

Matching Grants Resene Discretionary Funds set aside to malch any unforeseen grant opportunities that arise post the setting of the budget

Contingent Liability Resere Discretionary Funds set aside by Council to cover future liabilities contingent upon a future event/decision

Asset Renewal Resene Discretionary Funds set aside for Council projects as prioritised by Council

Total Equity Reserves
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4.4 Statement of Cash Flows

4.4.1 Net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities
There is a decrease in cash provided mainly due to the finalisation of the Disaster Recovery works which have been taking place over the past 2 years. These
levels are more indicative of business as usual.

4.4.2 Net cash flows provided by/(used in) investing activities

A smaller capital programme has been produced for the current year; this is highlighted by the decrease in payments for Property, Plant and Infrastructure.

4.4.3 Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities

This area has remained relatively consistent over the past two budgets.
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4.5 Capital works program

This section presents a listing of the capital works projects that will be undertaken for the 2018/19 year, classified by expenditure type and
funding source. Works are also disclosed as current budget or carried forward from prior year.

4.5.1 Summary

Capital Works Area

4.5.1a Summary
PROPERTY

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
INFRASTRUCTURE

2017118
Budget
$'000

2018/19
Budget
$'000

[TOTAL CAPITAL WORKS EXPENDITURE

Capital Works Area

4.5.1b Summary

Project
cost

$'000

Asset expenditure type

New

$'000

Renewal
§'000

Upgrade
$'000

Grants
$'000

$'000

Summary of funding sources

Contrib. Counch

cash
$'000

PROPERTY 765 83 682 - - 765

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2,610 55 1,110 1,445 - 2,610 -
INFRASTRUCTURE 7727 629 6,738 360 1,835 5,892 -
[TOTAL CAPITAL WORKS EXPENDITURE 11,102 767 8,530 1,805 1,835 - 9,266 -

Borrowing
$'000

The reduction in spend in the property area is due to the failure to secure funding for the Apollo Bay Kindergarten relocation project of $3.09M other than that

expense the programme is back to normal levels. Plant and equipment has remained at a constant level for the past two years which is consistent with

previous trends. The infrastructure area is down predominantly due to the expected finalisation of the Wye River Separation Creek Reticulated Drainage

System. The programme has moved back to more normal and achievable levels for the 2018-19 year.

Colac Otway Shire Draft Budget - 2018/19

Attachment 1 - Draft Budget for Public Submission

214



4.5.2 Current Budget

Project Asset expenditure type Summary of funding sources
cost New Renewal Upgrade Grants Contrib. c:‘::" Borrowing
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
4.5.2 Current Budget
Property
Land
Buildings
|Auditorium Stage Replacement 22 - 22 - - 22 -
Building Renewal Programme 660 - 660 = - - 660 =
Barwon Downs Neighbourhod Safer Place 45| 45 - - - - 45 -
Beech Forest Neighbourhood Safer Place 38 38 - - - - 38 -
Total property 765 83 682 - - - 765 -
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Heaw Plant Replacement Programme 1,335 - - 1,335 - - 1,335 -
Light Fleet Vehicles Replacement Programme 530 - 530 - - - 530 -
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Gym Equipment Renewal Programme 60 - 60 - - - 60 -
Colac Regional Saleyards weighing equipment 30 - - 30| - - 30 -
Operations Staff Mobile Amenity Trailer 55| 55 - - - 55 .
[ Township Christmas Decorations 15 - - 15) - 15 -
puters and tel icati
Civica Suite - Major Upgrade 250 - 250 - - - 250 -
GIS Aenial Imagery renewal 50 - 50 - - - 50 -
[Wide Area Nelwork (WAN) Upgrade and Expansion 220 - 220 - - - 220 -
ICT Disaster Recovery capability improvements 65| - - 65 - - 65 -
Total plant and equipment 2,610 55 1,110 1,445 - - 2,610 -
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Asset expenditure type Summary of funding sources
Council

Project

cost New Renewal Upgrade Grants Contrib. s Borrowing

$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000

4.5.2 Current Budget (cont.)

Infrastructure

Roads

Landslip Programme 360 - - 360 - - 360 -
Road Crack Sealing Programme 25 . 25 - - - 25 .
Kerb & Channel Renewal Programme 75 - 75 - - - 75 -
Local Roads Reseal & Major Patch Programme 1,200 - 1,200 - - - 1,200 -
Road Fumniture Programme 190 - 180 - - - 190 -
Sealed Road Reconstruction Programme 1,476 - 1,476 - 1,476 - - -
Unsealed Road Re-Sheet Programme: 1,400 - 1,400 = - - 1,400 -
Road Improvement Programme 555 B 555 il = = 555 B
|Strategic Local Roads Renewal Programme 275 - 275 - - - 275 -
Bridges

Bridge Rehabilitation Programme 650 . 650 - - - 650
Footpaths and cycleways

Footpath Renewal Programme 375 - 375 - - - 375 -
Drainage

Urban Drainage Renewal Programme 300 . 300 - - - 300 .
Forrest Caravan Park Waste Water Upgrade 100 - 100 - - - 100 -
Other infrastructure

[Active Resenes Renewal Programme 67 - 67 - - - &7 -
(Open Space Renewal Programme 50 - 50 - - - 50 -
Lake Colac Foreshore Master Plan Implementation - Stage 1 500 500 - - 250 - 250 -
Memornial Square Masterplan Implementation - Stage 1 129 129 - - 109 - 20 -
Total infrastructure 7,727 629 6,738 360 1,835 - 5,892 -
| Total capital works expenditure 11,102 767 8,530 1,805 1,835 - 9,266 -
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5. Financial performance indicators

The following table highlights Council's current and projected performance across a range of key financial performance indicators. These indicators provide a
useful analysis of Council's financial position and performance and should be interpreted in the context of the organisation’s objectives.

] Strategic Resource Plan
Indicator Measure S Actual Budget Budgst Projections Trend

Z  2016/17  2017/18 01 19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 +fol-
Operating position

Adjusted undertying surplus (deficit) /

o
Adjusted underlying revenue 1 1% 0.3%

Adjusted underlying result 1.1% 1.5% 2.0% +

Liquidity

Working Capital Cument assets / current liabilities 2 197.5% 156.2%  216.8% 236.9% 244.5% 2406% +

Unrestricled cash Unrestricled cash / currentliabilities 123.9% 91.9% ; 178.5% 185.2% 184.8% +

Obligations

Loansandborrowings e vesnnglomns andborowings frale 5 4750, 115% et 34%  24%  19%  +

Loans and borrowings i'msrgsl axid incipal repsyments o interest 33% 2.8% 2.8% 5.9% 1.1% 0.6% +
bearing loans and borrowings / rate revenue

Indebtedness Non-current liabilities / own source revenue 255% 17.8% 23.7% 23.0%  226% 21.2% +

Asselrenewal Assetrenewal expenditure / depreciation 4 976% 122.8% 82.4% 81.2%  80.1% 78.9% -

Stability

Rates concentration Rate revenue [ adjusted underlying revenue 5 60.9% 60.9% 62.7% 62.1%  614% 60.6% -

Rates effort Rato revenue | ClVof rateable properties in 05%  05% | 08%  05% 05% 05% o
the municipality

Efficiency

Expenditure lvel Lo expendiure fno. of property $2983 $3165  $3,102  $3185 $3,233 $3301 .

Revenue level Residential rate revenue f No. of residential $1263  $1262 | $1,209  $1338  $1078 $1419  +
property assessments

Key to Forecast Trend:

+ Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator

o Forecasts that Council's financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady
- Forecasts deterioration in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator
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Notes to indicators

B

Adjusted underlying result
This indicator shows a minor increase over the SRP forecast period. There is a drop during 2017/2018 financial year however post that it remains on
an upward trajectory.

2. Working Capital
This indicator increases over the SRP period due to the forecasted reduction in borrowings.

3. Unrestricted Cash
This shows an increase in the available unrestricted cash for the council. This is due to the reduction in the borrowings over the period.

4. Asset renewal
This shows a decrease in the amount of funds that are being spent on asset renewal in comparison to Depreciation. The consumption of council's
assets (as measured by Depreciation) is higher than the renewal dollars spent for the SRP period.

5. Rates concentration
This period shows a relatively consistent trend for the SRP period reflecting Colac Otway Shire’'s high dependency on Rates. This number will
fluctuate depending on the level of Non-recurrent grant funding obtained.
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6. Fees & Charges Schedule

See separate schedule attached.
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Fees & Charges

Colac Otway Shire Council
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Table Of Contents
Colac Otway Shire,

sasesssssan ssasassrasaas sasssas srsasssssrasranran srssasssssaasaas srssssrasssanannan

Corporate Services

Financial Services

Council Properties (per annum)

Apoilo Bay Newssheet

Land Information Certificate

Replacement Rate Notice

BT T e I I T I L R I T,

Payment Dishonour Fee (All Other)

Payment Dishonour Fee (Direct Debit)

Governance

Freedom of Information

Printing and Photocopying, . , . ’ ’

D e I I I R R P R I I I I

Record Search Fee

Annual Report

Waste Management

Waste Management Additional Service Change/Bin

All waste receival sites

Kerbside Bin Fees

Infrastructure & Leisure Services

Aerodrome Landing Fees 1

Apollo Bay _ _

Colac,

Apollo Bay Harbour

Marina Fees

Slipway Fees _ _ . - - " N

Slipping Fee

Business Hours | L i i iuierasnerisstasssasasssssssssasssssasssssssssasasssssasssasssntassnssnnnannnnss 18

After Hours [3hr Minj 12

Permits 12

Asset Management 12

Asset Protection Permit Fee e A2

Checking of Engineering Plans 12
Design Fee 12

Fee for Legal Point of Discharge Report , _ _ | .12

Special Charge Scheme , | 13

Supervision of Sub-division Works _ _ _, ;13

Local Road (speed at any time is greater than 50 kph) 13

Minor Works 132

Works on Roads (works other than minar works) 13
sssssEssssss s sl E ARt EEE AL E RS ssesasssssssssesssasses

Local Road (speed at any time is not more than 50kph) , 13

DI R I R I IR R I )

Minor Works 13

Works on Roads (works other than minor worksl, .\ s i iesesasasssanssnssssassantssssasssssasanasssanssasssnnannsassesl

Confidential | Page 2 of 40

Attachment 1 - Draft Budget for Public Submission

221



Bluewater Fitness Centre_ ... .. . . . . .. i 14

Aquatic —Daily Charges . ... ... .. ciriiiirereeennnnnaensnnann RO B N S 0 9

Combo Swim Spa Sauna Stadium (SSS3), | , . s s sessssessssssssssssasssstosssssasstasssnsasasssosssassassssssanansel¥
oo o Sim or SUNMR TODIN 0T SRR, . | 0isias S e B S S e e e S A e e s e
Agua Membiership (Aquatiés: OnlY). . ..o ous s imay D sai s e s s i s R S S e s v s
PO i o 0 i AL, T R N e e w1
CHH L L 4 0 e e aseesocseessosssssssssssssssrscsesesssssssssssssnssssssssssssssosscnssssnssssasenssss 14
ConCussion, , ., sussessssssssssssssassssnsssnsssnssnsssssossssasssnsassatesessssnssnssasssssnsssesansssselt
14

Créche

Member - BWFC Tesmesne s ssaasassns ssssrassssansananas

Nonaaember-BWFC, | . eeeersrnresrssnsnnssssarssnsas

Hoalth CluB S Croup MBS, - e conanns s s s dn e S s s s s e

Casull, s o viwiviviaias SRR S TR FEE TR R T R R e e T e 10
15

Persansl Yralnlag o o< 0ol Siiaig s annie she i saaee s i b st e s i paRai e g vk R s R s vale e A s e

Platinum Membership (Full Centre) .. . . ... .0 eeuiuerenrrorassnnrannsasnrsesnesarasesnsesasennareas 19

Youth and Student Membership (14-21 or Student card NOITRT) , | & o v i v oo sssesssssessss

OH-Poak FUIl FAEHY ACCES5 L 4 L s 4 e s s e sasesnnnsesasesnssssssnsnnssas U |
4[!ul-n'-.q--.lllll!'lllllI.I-l.lllllnl-l.!llllll-l.l 18
DTN s o o e e M s S P W S A R e s
PONYYL oo i e S R O e T T e 18

Gold Membarship (Gym Only) , ., ...iiiiuinnens

AU, | . esesssessasssesesascsssenea s
Concesslon, . . .ssassasasasas 1%
16

PO oo i v i w7 i

Membership Fee, , . . ...,

Direct Debit Joining Fee | |

MuMipass, , . ..oeavarrense

Adult, ., ., sssscssasscsscc NN ..o R TR TN P R TP T o A PSP S RO G P R e

17

17

Concession

Other LTS .. o comuee i e T R e BT S R e DR e S R S Sy e o AT S e e

Casunl InfTIRERBIB, | , ;4 o006 60 000006 68 0/88 686606855 0886666688080 06 068 680:86 880808016080 easeesesisesieell
PP PP |
Inatracton el SQUBto SR OY ;& oo v seimaie s B 4 e e E el B R ERSE e e B ees s sa e el e aea s 1T

17

RDOE TN 5o i i e 01 410 504 01, i 600 o i 1 0 4T ) e o G T B o i

17

SN ECIO0, s st it 0 65000 ! o 80 0 5 W A R

Wmintond, . iearass tesren b e S B e tessesssssssss st b et ans D I T I AP -
S0 TNIN GUOUPIREON., . ooiy oy alia o a 6ea e om0 i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e A T
Family Discount, . _ . R e R TR A R BB S B R e R e e e e e e T
MombOrshiD, | oy s s s s s s s e e s s s e eI e a e R IR e snssensIssastseNsassesstORERIERRSRIRRTR IO RROEan VT
SEhooi inntructor ERAFDR, | & iuiiiniiv s Vienae Ue SNSRI A AR S e R R e R S e e e e e S e e 1T

1%

Schools Swim & Survive Program BNy, o 4 cesesasesasssnssasasasssrtesisnsastsasansasasssstatssnisesenssasassnasan

18

POOIHITG, | | . usrsesacssensnessasssnsoessessnnssmsnssssssnasonsssessssnssossesssassansanssnssnsssssss ID
Commercial Room Hire, |, s ausisssassassssssssssssssisisssasissssassassssassnssassasssntssassarsasssssssssass 10
Comenimtty ROOM BN, o 4 oiuw oo o s o Smn m i meme s w60 e e e a6 6 e e b e e e v e wee seeee s T8

18

Stadium Hire

Apollo Bay Leisure Contra CRAGES, ., ., vcocaerassonsssessssssonsossssssssssonsssesssssssssssvessmaesssss 8
18

Lo L
19

MAKEEING, | L L oL u st e sse e sseesae e e e en e e s e ans s e s e e s e s e an e s e e e ba s s e anresbaetnneanes

Pool or spa or sleam room or stadium
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Auditorium 1. 4 Hour Mimimum iMoo 5 coq saiaasaisaanaianssd i inse sasanavas saa v peas asnanasss suaa 19

Commercial Hire | R Y

CU""“‘W‘?Y""’“‘C”'\J:O"‘"“-.-..-----..-.--.--------...--------....--.-.-.-..----.-...---...--.--.-.-.---
Catering. .. .........ccvveennnnnn e . PR, s R .19

CIVICTAN . im0 0 3 A 0 A IR 70 50 0T e i W RS AR e e VD

Commaercial Mire |

EEEEEE fereeas

R TR frse e

20

20

Gt From Gl Y - o e e L e R r s s s i s e d s s e e e s e ae e e e e aas
O Il o e T T e B TRt S T e TS e & s e L

GreenROOM, | ... iieiaiiiiiatarenansiarasninsnasasasasasssanssassassasasssnsasssssssasssssnssss 20

Commarcial Hire sasssessssdl

20

Community FromColac DIWaY, | | i uucssesssssunssaissiasssssasutsarssiasidsstasasssstasataandsdassansadnsans

WIEhan HOURVIREME, . ..o covnninmois s dvms v e i s esanien v sed s ve 5os o S i e s i ee s as s,

Commercial Hire 20
I I I I I I I

D I

Community From Colac Otway

LADOUrCHRTGeS - - - o e s oo R A e S P e A e P U s e Db s s R R e e RS i 2T
n

Hourly Rate
B I T I

B R R e L R

Moating Roomie HOWHY R, .. o, o viaimaisinndanasilsvie s s 5w e n sas s s i s s/sn s do s abins s sajsalemar a1

Comm | M
Commercial Hire, | | i uavsvnsosssrsosnsnssnossssnssnrarsssssnsnnnnse

Community From Colaz OWay,, , . 4 ueuses PR 1
OtherCharges, .. ... . ... ....cccvereeeenennaneenceneeeoalPP. ... N - oo eeeeannnannannnn 21
21

Commercial Hift, | , . i vesesasssasssasscnrasarasnansasnses

Community From Colac Otway _

Public Gallery Exhibition & Display Hire Charges _, , .,

Exhibition

Public Gallery Hourly Rate For Meeting &

Commerclal Hire , | . .\ 0 vvunss

Community From Colac Otway

Rehearsal Room Hourly Rate’

Commorclal Hin, | . i eussaenns

Community From Colac Otway

Roll Over (pre event set up)

22

Commerchal Hite | | | | it iicriesnuossonasasanenssanasessensanesasosnassasssnssnnscntassssssnasesansas

Development & Community SErviCes, . ... ... ... ... .. .iiiiiiieiiiieieieierierarrienieraenaenan 23
Econiomic Development S BV, . ... ouvinmvmiee s v s s s e vl slai e e s sl s s ey sl v 23

ColacLivestock Selllng Contra, .. ooy iiivais van sivivnins Sai v ia s s s wan s Wi Vne i S mvian mawa vias d S el wninn®s

Agents (with leased office space) special sale

Agents (with leased office spacej woakly 188, , | , . L e eeuessassscsssetaesssssesasssosstessassesssatosstasasassenansass

ressens srasease

Agents (without office space) per sale fee

BHIEIED & v 0 T 0 T e 1 0 T 0 S

AHUIJ‘(:’GJ“W"_"‘_"___'..“"‘__""."‘.._.'__."'.'.'."'_'.'.'_"'.'.‘...""‘__..""'_"'...

Annual licence andrental, , . s uueesssscssssssrsstassessassiassossssssssstsesssscsstasrssasescssssnssaresas

23

i r
Bulls flat rate | sesasan R

R sasessssssasa s

R

23

Command Ol WBIGNIE., | o o o\o/'s /el 6046 45816 waliia nin 0160 din a1 e 6is o old 00 w505 @i e nai lbiam nie/e e 01610 60 e e R e

Dairy cattle tesiassansserenae

tasssmessssasassaninan

Private waigh | casrans sesianen

24

S““é‘j'-,.‘llldlnbs-vov.vvuU-'v.r-vv‘11-1-'-".'-.--'-.'..'1'-'--'-"101.-'--'.1'1Iu.v---‘!-l!o'--v.v.cu

Stud calfle
B I I S

24

WIS it o 0 e T 0 6 0 i e 8 i i e o v

Othermiscellanedus fees, , | @ . vcvesonsssnsnosssssesrassssrsssnasssainsssssussesssssenstasasssnnustsnssssss
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Environment & Community Safety ... ... ............... ceeeeea...24

Animal Control — Effective from 10 April 2015, P e . 24

Pound Rolaass FROR',.. | o iyl yid o ati o H oS B B R v e SR R R A RS R R R A A AR

Events

Other

Fire Prevention

asean Casrassessseserataranse tratassinsaanas caen tierasanasana
Administrative fee blocik stashing . ..., .. P sesarrssssenrans feeen IR
Local Law Infringemant foe — burning of offensive matarinl (2 ponally UnitSh, | . . v e sevasssasssssssssssssssssssnsassassasssssnsnsadd

25

Statutory Panalty fee ~ Falling to comply with fire pravention notice (10 penalty unitS] | | & . v et vesesasronnesesssatnansssssetsenssnsess

Standpipe water fee

Local Laws

25

B I o i 5 ol BB B, B B m T BB (B8 o BT B TS e e 1 B s Bt R B ) S B P B e B s B B B s B B o s B i - Bl i oy S

26

LOGRILAWNO 2, |y h s a0 s s s b A aE s 64 S e e A it AR R e e et S R T e SRR e s e T

OIRT, 4o s P D e R s SIS h 4o e R ey e T s R M S R e e gD

Abandoned or derelict vehicles sasssssssssesasnsensne sseresssssasasasens sesssssasses s .26
All other permits, |, -
Clreus, s enissnsnssssssissssnsasssssussisssssassssnsnanissss shssesesasssssasatasisn s nasns s etl

26

URPONOUEMNETR , | o iy ion aowaiein o wino o e o ate o o 000 00 o AL a0 #i o alin e a e

Public protection (hording permit}, | . . . . ... YT, sessesaensann s

Spart Event |

PARRING. < i inle e i S s s

All day parking permit (Payable in & monthly blocks - Johnatone’s Car essessectssssasisasasssasesaanesesanennns
Building site on street P — rrraesaaraae e 2T
Carparkingfines, | |, .. ciaeescnsass L S L e e L e T e R
Statutory Car parkingfines, , | ... ennnn o L A A o o ] T R e
27

Disabled parking, | . . veeees
Planning & Building, , .

Bonds

Bond for Demolition or Removal of Bulld

Bond for Re-erection of Bullding (Reg 3230, | . ... v eese

Building Control Charges, | .. .....ccveeeeens

Application for Place of Public Entertalnment [PoPE) Permit of Temporary SUUCIUMG . | . . .. covesesssssssssassasnssssnsssasnsnsssenssssadl
ITRURAMON CMIIDIEC, . . . i s 0 S . o o 0 ) O 015 060 ) i 0
Praperty information Certficate , _ _ . . . g SR R e 26

28

LOTROMWINE BOOR. -y il e e e e e R e e e e e T T B e e e B e e T T el e el e

28

Bullding: EnTOrcEMBNL. .. ... . wiveai o b g e e e rmlens e fels v sein o s DR e e o e

Building Permit Amendments

sessasaanrane e

seasae D

sessassane s

Building Permit Application Fee

All other classes of Occupancy 2-9 Inclusive (constructon andlar damMOUTION] , 4 o v « s s s s s s s o ssssessssesssnssnsasssssnsessssesasnsssss

Domestic - class 1a Dwallings {construction and domolition), where the value of bullding worki | | & . . i eessssessasssassansasssassssssssss

Minor Works ~ Class 10a, 10b & 1al: Garages, carports, poollspas & fence where value of work

Statutory charge on DUITEING PEIIE | o L o o e e et s e e s e e e e s m e e e s s o ssasesee e e e e e
URBDRCIONE ooy o e e e W e e P e e F R R R S e s
29

Additional Inspection (charged where additional Inspections are requifed) , | | . ... cevensssssssssnsassssncssssssasssansssssssasisan

Easontial Satotl Moasures ASSREBIMOIE . oo e i v i Smiiid e s 5o s ae e s sus e s5easie ies auiasa s 89

29

BRI DATOAT MOPBIEN TR o 2.0 0000w w0 5 8 0 i 7 S

ROPOIt ADU CONBOMFRON, , .00 ouiainas wiviore winre siase simimnrecniivaiiie wiis oca s ali/araiocsioass b s e aTi Wi B Th B e 0 1w w T e a6 40

Demaolition fee (s. 20A)

30

Report & Consent Applicalion, , , i i uuussavsesssesssssssnessssssnssansasssstssssssstossssnssnsasssssssssssssssn
Plonning Feos & Chargos —ORNOT. , ... e s i Ui e 6w e 60 S WA S 6AE O Sl sl a e M@ s s i e s a

a
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Application for approval of amended plans Under SECONdANY CONBEN . | L . .. s s s esssosasssssassssessnsssesassnssasnsansssnsensansses J0

Applicalion for P ol BoamaIIRIEIY ;o oo i s, i e S o e T S L T L e e S e T SR L L 30
Application for Recertiication of PLan of SUDANISION, . . s & i s susesasaasesesssiosassanssssnssnassssnssosasasssisssasess 30
Check Engineering Plans, | _ _ .. .. cccecnreonecsacanensacsesasssonssesanssessssssessosnssesesnssesessssssss I
Enginesring Plan prapared by COMRGIL, .5 4 oo s's o s sioe s s v'sss oo sss s os wyiiassssesEasssesssevesssssesssssdsesssesstd

Extonsion of time 1o plannIng PEMIt, | ., . c.cccnsmensnsnasenasansnassasassssssasssnsssssansnsnsnsnsnassasanssassdl
Properiy Bnquley . C i a i e e e G e e e e R e e e S A e A g B e e e R e A & e DT
Satisfaction Matters | |, , ., ... sesdanasa sassassass sasssssasetEseasaasadess sassans P T T IR T TR sses¥
SUPRIVIRION OFVWORKE . . oo o gm im0 oo o e O o T o, D
Section 1TIAQrOamENtS, , . | s uessesasssossasasnsiosssnasstosssssssssssiatassissscsssssanisasasasssannsaas 3
Certificates of compliance L)

DI I T T I I I T T I T I

Permitfor usBoEIan: ... .o i e A R SR TR SR AR S e T B8
To develop land or to use and develop land for a single dwelling per lot or to undertake development ancillary to the
use of the land for a single dwelling per lot if the estimated cost of development included in the application is:

sissssesenn

in plications
Excluding VicSman application®s, |, sy assessasssassssisssssanssrsssssrasssastnsvassssarssnasssssrssnsstnnssnasdl

NEW FEEVIc SMmartanploutiong, ., . o o o s oomn oim o n e e a0 a8 e o8 e e e 8 se o s a5 e e 6n e 4000 a0 ok
To develop land (other than for a single dwelling per lot) if the estimated cost of development included in the
application is: 32

(b) Amendments to Permits — Set by Statute

B S I R

1 32
S P S sessssssntsssssssssaarassesna st
Z----------------.-------------------a- ------------------------------3:
Ysarsdniensvsasenisinsmsssnbasinssnssesronsasanis N g ;.. N i s vassanasiaissaaedessseeasess 3z
".l.'.lll"ill|DllIlI."!ll"lIl'll'.' I.l.lUl".vll'l'll.."".'l'.'Jz
5'--I---------l-‘--l---------l l.l"ll-l-..‘.lllIlI‘.‘llllIle‘
6 33
T I I I

nl.l.lllll.lll.lllllll.l.llll I.l.lllllIl.l.l‘lllllll.l.llllllhIAIIIIIIII!E
]l.l' R no.---l-.----n-----o-n--u-----i"‘

33

B R I S

(c) Planning Scheme Amen

33
i--.-------.----------- -----.-----n---.----.----.---!1
I'vAI-----.-I-vv'v-l--l-' l-l.lllIIl"IllllIlIll'llllll]3
v 33

I R R T T R R T I T I A A

Community Services — Family Day Care & Maternal & Child Health 34

Family Day Care Administration LeVY, . . . ... .uiieiainiensnsusiansssnesssnsnssssssasssssnssnanssssssnsnssssdd

Carers Lovy 34

PO TTRRY TP O ¢ 4 s 00010000000 00007810900 0100870500 00100 80,800 W, L0, B850 015 8166 AL 85K 88 40 000 0 B b e P

Family Day Care Charges 34

Sam 1o Bpm Monday 16Friday , , , uessssssstsssessssssaseessonaasssstsssassssaessssssssssenasnsatossentanneas 38

Before 8 am and after 6 pm 34

I DO NI it i 000 0 1 T T 0 0 1 W W e e BB et e O

Saturday, Sunday and Public Holldays 14

Trips 34

Community Services — Older Persons Ability Support Service (OPASS) 34

OPASS 34

Domestic Assistance 34

R e I R R I T I R e S I S I S

Overnight Respite (per night] a5

Personal Care s

Praparly Maintenance 35

Resplte Care 1

Veterans Home Care (T8INF], | | | L. . icueurenseossnsssssassssassnssasssssssssosasssssanssasasnssssassanssnansss 39

Community Transport 35

BirregurralF orrestiBeeac/Warrion 35

Colac, , ve 35
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Colac Gtway Shire — Apolio Bay, Lavers Hill, _ . .. .0 vuvesanasesss
Colac 10 Geelong 0rBallart, |\ 4 v oenvense - e 35
35
36

Colac toMelbourne, , |, vuvssensnanasss

OO A WBTIINBIOOL, . e v o 107 T A T ol o 3L 4 O B e
a5

1

Community Bus Transport for Group Activities
B T R I T L I

Full Cost Service
B T T L L L T
16

Contracted Services
36

Case Management |

R R R e R R R R R R R R
k-

Contracted Services, |, L @ i cesnonase
B I T I I I I
38

Food Sailoms, Lo u'ali alemd eiiaae

Domestic Assistance . | . .. ...eees

ParsonaiCare, ... .cvearesarresrrnanss
D

Property Maintenance , . . .., .,

Raspte Care, , . . .sseaesnecencs

Meals to Agency clients | _

7

M\mnals‘._.‘______.‘..____
Al S

Dellvered meals

Public Health .. ....
Health Protection Administration (Registration Fees)

trssssrarsssranann

CLASS fFood Premises, _ _ ., ...

B R

CLASS 2 Major Food Premises , _ .,

CLASS 2 Minar Food Promises

CLASS 3 Major Food Pramisas

CLASS 3 Minor Food Premises_ _ _ |
a8

Additional Temporary/Mobile Food Registration | |
Community Group Support, | . & v easeas e

Personal Appearance Services
B"’Eu'v]’“ﬁ’a“ms--------u R R T I T I R I Y
"JH:}’:’:A!CV&_.-.._._._.._ -------.-------.-.-----------.--.-------.-.-.--------------JB
Skin Ponetration {acupunciure, ear pie! 38

39

Skin Penetration {Tattooists, body plercing

Miscellaneous

Conveyance Enquiries for regulated businesses
m and Coffes Vans) Under the Victonan Food Act term “Streatrader”
B T R R R

%

Streot Traders (Food, Ice-c:

Water Sampling, , . o ovuvssasasuasnssasasssssnsa
ceae
k5]

Srsassssisasseass s st ss s At et e

immunisation |

39

Late Renewal Penalty Fee per Manth ,

39

Replacement Cartificate

40

Express Service

Professional Service ]

Prescribed Accommodmton . oo ooy il SR TR SRR T SR e e S R SR s e
40

40

up 16 6 persons _ , _ . .
40

610 10 persons , , _ , ,
P T T S S g A N S SR P S

srssssemsserEEEsEsse eI s IR RN BB LS

" to 20 persons , , , ,

srssrassre

204 POTRORR, - 4 i wo v oo o w ol w60 W R R R

CaravanParke petsile, . . .. .uertsenansnesnssesssnsns

Public Health - Septic Tanks

B R I IR I I P I

40

R R P

EERE

Additional Inspections
40

Septic tank alterations

Septic tanks system
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

Colac Otway Shire

Corporate Services

Financial Services

Council Properties (per annum)

Apollo Bay Newssheet

Fee & $885.00 $910.00 2.82%

Land Information Certificate

Fee S $25.40 $25.40 0.00%
Replacement Rate Notice

Fee (5 $25.00 $25.00 0.00%
Payment Dishonour Fee (All Other)

Admin Fee (& $26.00 $26.00 0.00%
Payment Dishonour Fee (Dire

Admin Fee c $10.49 $10.60 1.05%
Governance

Freedom of Information

Per application S $27.90 §28.40 1.79%
Printing and Photocopying

A3 sheet e $0.40 $0.40 0.00%
Ad sheet € $0.20 $0.20 0.00%
Coloured copy — A3 sheet C $2.00 $2.00 0.00%
Coloured copy — A4 sheet (5 $1.00 $1.00 0.00%
Record Search Fee

Discovery Fee — Per Hour € $65.00 $65.00 0.00%
Annual Report

Cost per copy C $20.00 $20.00 0.00%
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Waste Management

Waste Management Additional Service Change/Bin

240 litre garbage additional service charge/bin
240 litre organic additional service charge/bin
240 litre recycle additional service charge/bin
Upgrade to 240 litre Garbage Bin

Upgrade to 360 litre Recycling bin

All waste receival sites

Car bodies

Chemical drums (each)

Commercial fully co-mingled recyclables (per m3)
Commercial fully co-mingled recyclables (per tonne)
Mattresses each

Putrescibles (incl mixed rubbish) per m3

Putrescibles (incl mixed rubbish) 1st 240 litre bin or less
Putrescibles (incl mixed rubbish) 2nd 240 litre bin
Putrescibles (incl mixed rubbish) per tonne
Steel scrap (per m3)

Steel scrap (per tonne)

Tree pruning's (per m3)

Tree pruning's (per tonne)

TV & Monitors

Car

Car on rim

Commercial batteries each (more than 2)
Light truck

Tractor 1 —2m

Tractor up to 1m

Truck

10 tickets (up to 240 litre bin)

25 tickets (up to 240 litre bin)

Kerbside Bin Fees

120 litre garbage (bin only)

120 litre organic (bin only)

120 litre recycle (bin only)

240 litre garbage (bin only)

240 litre organic (bin only)

240 litre recycle (bin only)

Bin change over fee (all bins)
Lost or stolen bins — 120/240 litre

$271.00
$130.50
$78.50
$209.00
$39.25

(el " el (= (o)

(9]

$68.00
$1.10
$14.50
$61.00
$24.50
$61.00
$10.20
$15.50
$285.00
$11.50
$41.50
$38.50
$134.50
$10.49
$8.00
$14.50
$6.50
$16.50
$215.00
$102.00
$46.00
$70.00
$150.00

(@l

QB O O A O O M O [ O &) O 6 O 6

$75.50
$75.50
$75.50
$80.00
$80.00
$80.00
$32.00
$55.00

@ O O N O D) O

Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

Year 18/19
Fee

(incl. GST)

$271.00
$130.50
§78.50
$209.00
§39.25

$68.00
$1.10
$15.00
$61.00
$25.00
$62.00
$11.00
$16.00
$285.00
$12.00
$42.00
$40.00
$135.00
$11.00
$9.00
$15.00
$7.00
$17.00
$215.00
$102.00
§46.00
$70.00
$150.00

§75.50
$75.50
§75.50
$80.00
$80.00
$80.00
§32.00
$55.00
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Increase

%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
3.45%
0.00%
2.04%
1.64%
7.84%
3.23%
0.00%
4.35%
1.20%
3.90%
0.37%
4.86%
12.50%
3.45%
7.69%
3.03%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19

Fee Fee Increase
(incl. GST) (incl. GST)
Other
Safe waste bin locks (e $6.50 $6.50 0.00%
Tourist Bags (red and yellow) per pair C $10.00 $10.00 0.00%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

Infrastructure & Leisure Services

Aerodrome Landing Fees

Apollo Bay

Per landing C $11.00 $11.00 0.00%
Colac

Per landing C $11.00 $11.00 0.00%

Apollo Bay Harbour

Marina Fees
Dinghy Mooring Permit Cc $0.00 §75.00 -
Waiting List Application Fee $0.00 $250.00 -
Marina Berth — Annual c $1,916.00 $2,555.00 33.35%
Short Term Berth (Per Day) — <15 c $27.00 $35.00 29.63%
Short Term Berth (Per Day) — 15 to 20m Cc $32.00 $41.00 28.13%
Short Term Berth (Per Day) — 20 to 25m C $39.00 $48.50 24.36%
Short Term Berth (Per Day) — 25 to 30m c $64.00 $75.00 17.19%
Short Term Berth (Per Day) — >30m C $128.00 $143.00 11.72%
Marina Key Replacement Cc $27.00 $51.00 88.89%
Swing Mooring — Annual Fee (03 $127.00 $505.00 297.64%
Swing Mooring — Establishment Cc $205.00 $351.00 71.22%

Slipway Fees

Slipping Fees
Slipping Fee — 15.1 to 20m Cc $0.00 $585.00 -
Slipping Fee <10m C $0.00 $200.00 -
Slipping Fee >20m C $0.00 $1,000.00 -
Slipping Fee 10.1 to 15m C $0.00 $285.00 -
Slipping Fee 15.1 to 20m C $0.00 $585.00 -

Slip Yard Occupancy (Per Day)
Slip Yard Occupancy (Per Day) — <10m $0.00 $50.00 -
Slip Yard Occupancy (Per Day) — 10.1 to 15m C $0.00 $95.00 -
Slip Yard Occupancy (Per Day) — 15.1 to 20m C $0.00 $220.00 -
Slipyard Ocupancy (Day Rate) >20m C $0.00 $265.00 -
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

Ancillary Services

Business Hours

Crane Truck with Operator and Dogman per hour (o] $0.00 $200.00 -
Crew (Additional, Attend V/L or Mooring) per hour $0.00 $60.00 -
Hire "Barrum" Inc Coxswain per hour $0.00 $200.00 -
Hire "Urchin" inc. Master and Deckhand per hour C $0.00 $499.00 -
Pressure Cleaner Hire per hour $0.00 $35.00 -

After Hours (3hr Min)

Crane Truck with Operator and Dogman per hour c $0.00 $450.00 -

Crew (Additional, Attend V/L or Morring) per hour C $0.00 $120.00 -

Hire "Barrum" inc Coxwain per hour (o] $0.00 $450.00 -

Hire "Urchin" Inc Master and Deckhand per hour $0.00 $750.00 -
Permits

(o]

Equipment Storage Licence — Annual per Bay
Wharf Parking Permit — Annual

$0.00 $500.00 -
$0.00 $500.00 -

Asset Management
Asset Protection Permit Fee
Permit Fee (o3 $145.00 $150.00 3.45%

Checking of Engineering

R/

Fee S 0.75%
Fee
0.75%
Design Fee
In house c 10.00%
Fee
10.00%
External design — Supervision fee (o] 20.00%
Fee
20.00%
External design work Cc At Cost
Fee
At Cost
Fee for Legal Point of Discharge Report
As per Section 312(3) Building Regulations 2006
Fee s $65.40 $65.40 0.00%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

Special Charge Scheme

Contract administration (o7 2.50%

Fee

2.50%
Scheme administration C 3.00%

Fee
3.00%

Supervision of Sub-division Works

% of estimated cost of constructing works proposed S 2.50%

Fee
2.50%

Local Road (speed at any time is greater than 50 kph)
Minor Works

Cost per fee unit

Conducted on any part of the roadway, shoulder or pathway (11.5 $163.53 $163.53 0.00%
units)
Nort.s o)onducted on any part of the roadway, shoulder or path $71.10 §71.10 0.00%
un

Works on Roads (works other than rks

Cost per fee unit
Conducted on any part of the roadia ol way (25 units) S $355.50 $355.50 0.00%
Noiiso)onducied on any part of the ro der or pathway (25 S $355.50 $355.50 0.00%
un

Local Road (speed at any time is not more than 50kph)

Minor Works

Cost per fee unit
an:d)ucted on any part of the roadway, shoulder or pathway (11.5 S $163.53 $163.53 0.00%
units
No_:s ca)onducted on any part of the roadway, shoulder or pathway (5 S $71.10 $71.10 0.00%
uni

Works on Roads (works other than minor works)

Cost per fee unit

Conducted on any part of the roadway, shoulder or pathway (20 units) S $284.40 $284.40 0.00%
No‘rﬁs o)onducted on any part of the roadway, should or pathway (5 $71.10 $71.10 0.00%
un

(7]
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Bluewater Fitness Centre
Aquatic — Daily Charges

Combo Swim Spa Sauna Stadium (SSSS)

Year 17/18

Fee

(incl. GST)

Year 18/19
Fee

(incl. GST)

Increase

Adult C $11.50 $12.10 5.22%

Concession C $9.50 $10.00 5.26%
Pool or spa or steam room or stadium

Adult Cc $6.50 $6.80 4.62%

Child C $4.50 $4.65 3.33%

Competitor Entry Adult Cc $3.00 $3.15 5.00%

Competitor Entry Child C $2.00 $2.10 5.00%

Concession Cc $5.30 $5.50 3.77%

Family $19.50 $20.50 5.13%

Parent/Toddler C $5.30 $5.50 3.77%

School Group C $4.50 $4.65 3.33%
Aqua Membership (Aquatics Only)
Adult

12 months C $555.00 $575.00 3.60%

Direct Debit c $21.50 $22.50 4.65%
Child

12 months C $390.00 $404.00 3.59%

Direct Debit C $15.00 $15.60 4.00%
Concession

12 months (o3 $455.00 $471.00 3.52%
Direct Debit c $17.60 $18.30 3.98%
Family

12 months C $825.00 $855.00 3.64%
Direct Debit (o] $32.00 $33.50 4.69%
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Créche

Member - BWFC

10 Multi Visit Pass (Visit per Hour)
30 Multi Visit Pass (Visit per Hour)
Creche Direct Debit

Child 1 hr (per hour)

Family 1 hr (per hour)

10 Multi Visit Pass (Visit per Hour)
30 Multi Visit Pass (Visit per Hour)

Non-member — BWFC

Child 1 hr

Family 1 hr

Health Club & Group Fitness

Casual

Fitness Assessment (45 min) i
Casual Entry
Adult

Concession
Group entry (schools)
Senior Programs

Personal Training

1 session group training

1 session personal training (45 min)
10 ticket group training

10 ticket personal training

5 ticket group training

5 ticket personal training

Platinum Membership (Full Centre)

Youth and Student Membership (14-21 or Student card holder)

12 months
Direct Debit (Fortnightly)

Off-Peak Full Facility Access

12 months
Direct Debit

Q lieH © B O 6 O

(9]

Q00 o0

000000

Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

$0.00
$0.00
$30.91
$5.50
$10.00
$50.00
$140.00

$10.00
$18.00

$55.00

$12.80
$10.49
$7.00
$7.00

$75.00
$55.00
$635.00
$470.00
$340.00
$250.00

$515.00
$19.90

$515.00
$19.90

Year 18/19
Fee

(incl. GST)

$51.50
$145.00
§31.00
$5.70
$10.40
$55.00
$154.00

$11.00
$19.80

$57.00

$14.80
$12.20
$7.40
$7.30

$75.00
$55.00
$635.00
$470.00
$340.00
$250.00

$515.00
$19.90

$515.00
$19.90
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Increase

%

0.29%
3.64%
4.00%
10.00%
10.00%

10.00%
10.00%

3.64%

15.63%
16.30%
571%
4.29%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
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Adult

12 months
Direct Debit

Concession

12 months
Direct Debit

Family

12 months

Direct Debit

Gold Membership (Gym Only)
Adult

12 months

Direct Debit

Concession

12 months

Direct Debit

Family

12 months

Direct Debit
Membership Fee
Direct Debit Joining Fee

Adult
Congcession
Family

Swim Schoeol

Multipass
Adult

10 ticket platinum
10 ticket aqua
30 ticket platinum
30 ticket aqua

(2 le)

a O

QO

0O o000

0000

Year 17/18
Fee

Year 18/19
Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %

$820.00 $865.00 5.49%
$31.50 $33.00 4.76%
$680.00 $715.00 5.15%
$26.20 $27.50 4.96%
$1,24000  $1,300.00 4.84%
$48.00 $50.00 4.17%
$730.00 $770.00 5.48%
$28.30 $30.00 6.01%
$605.00 $640.00 5.79%
$23.10 $24.50 6.06%
$1,100.00 $1,155.00 5.00%
$42.50 $44.50 4.71%
$48.00 $49.50 3.13%
$40.00 $41.50 3.75%
$72.00 $75.00 4.17%
$15.00 $2000  33.33%
$115.00 $141.00 22.61%
$58.00 $65.00 12.07%
$325.00 $399.00  22.77%
$165.00 $183.00 10.91%
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Concession

10 ticket aqua
10 ticket platinum
30 ticket platinum
30 ticket aqua

Other Charges
Casual Inflatable

Family Pass
Single Pass
Upgrade from Swim

Inflatable Hire

Hire Fee

Instructor hire/hr aquatic or dry
Instructor Hire

Pool party

Per Child

Swim School

30 min1on1

Swim School

30 min group lesson

Swim School — Concession

Swim School = Concession Express Program
Swim School — Express Program

Swim School

Family Discount

Discount for 3 or more children enrolled
Membership

Direct Debit dishonour

Schools Instructor Charge

Instructor Charge

(9} O 000

O

(9]

9]

Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

$48.00
$95.00
$270.00
$135.00

$22.00
$6.80
$3.10

$95.00

$60.00

$12.50

$43.00

$12.00
$24.00
$28.50
$12.80

$18.00

$21.50

$60.00

Year 18/19

Fee
(incl. GST)

$53.00
$116.00
$328.00
$149.00

§23.50
$7.10
$2.35

$100.00

$63.00

§13.00

$47.50

§12.00
$24.00
$28.50
$14.80

$36.00

$21.50

$66.00
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Increase

%

10.42%
22.11%
21.48%
10.37%

6.82%
4.41%
-24.19%

5.26%

5.00%

4.00%

10.47%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
15.63%

100.00%

0.00%

10.00%
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Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

Schools Swim & Survive Program Entr
y

Program Entry C $3.40
Venue Hire
Pool Hire
Lane hire/hr (during normal operating hrs) (& $23.50
Whole pool ¥z day < 4 hrs (during normal operating hours) C $350.00
Whole pool full day 4+ hrs (during normal operating hours) (] $525.00
Program Pool Hire — half pool per hr Cc $34.00
Program Pool Hire — full pool per hr C $57.00
Additional Lifeguard Hire (per hour) c $42.00
Commercial Room Hire
Program Room Single $38.00
Program Room Double (o3 $57.00
Meeting Room c $38.00
Community Room Hire
Program Room Single c $26.50
Program Room Double C $40.00
Meeting Room (& $26.50
Stadium Hire
All day hire o) $600.00
Off Peak court hire/hr Cc $38.00
Peak court hire/hr Cc $45.00
Apollo Bay Leisure Centre Charges
Pool or spa or steam room or stadium
Adult C $6.00
Concession (o] $5.10
Child C $4.30
Family c $18.90
Season Pass Adult Cc $169.99
Season Pass Concession c $128.00
Season Pass Family (o $275.00
Stadium Casual Entry c $5.10
Stadium Hire C $36.80

Year 18/19
Fee Increase

(incl. GST) %

$4.00 17.65%
§24.50 4.26%
$363.00 3.71%
$545.00 3.81%
$35.50 4.41%
$59.00 3.51%
$46.50 10.71%
$38.50 1.32%
§57.00 0.00%
§38.50 1.32%
$26.50 0.00%
$40.00 0.00%
$26.50 0.00%
$660.00 10.00%
$39.50 3.95%
$47.00 4.44%
$6.20 3.33%
$5.30 3.92%
$4.50 4.65%
$19.40 2.65%
$176.00 3.54%
$133.00 3.91%
$285.00 3.64%
$5.30 3.92%
$38.50 4.62%

Confidential | Page 18 of 40

Attachment 1 - Draft Budget for Public Submission

237



Year 17/18 Year 18/19

Fee Fee Increase
(incl. GST)] (incl. GST) %
COPACC
Marketing
A1 Poster print & display c $0.00 $30.00 -
A4 Poster Distribution around town/surrounding towns Cc $0.00 $30.00 -
DL Flyer Distribution to Database as part of Newsletter $0.00 $100.00 -
Facebook Banner for 10 days prior to show/event $0.00 $30.00 -
Facebook Post (with boost) (e $5 plus boosted amount
Fee
Facebook Post (without boost) Cc $0.00 $10.00 -
Listing on Arts Atlas Geelong & Southwest (&) $15 each or both for $25
Fee
Metal Sign $0.00 $100.00 -
Newspaper ad $0.00 $160.00 =
Standalone EDM C $0.00 $50.00 -
Auditorium 1 — 4 Hour Minimum Hire
Commercial Hire
4 Hour Hire Cc $1,000.00 $1,020.00 2.00%
8 Hour Hire C $1,480.00 $1,510.00 2.03%
Additional Hour c $132.00 $135.00 2.27%
Hourly penalty c $200.00 $205.00 2.50%
Community From Colac Otwa
4 Hour Hire c $740.00 $755.00 2.03%
8 Hour Hire Cc $1,100.00 $1,125.00 2.27%
Additional Hour (2 $107.00 $110.00 2.80%
Hourly penalty Cc $150.00 $153.00 2.00%
Catering
Tablecloth Hire — COPACC Black — per cloth (0 $11.00 $11.30 2.73%
Tea, Coffee & Mints — All Day — per head C $3.50 $3.60 2.86%
Juice — Apple/Orange per Jug Cc $6.50 $6.70 3.08%
Civic Hall
Commercial Hire
4 Hour Hire Cc $480.00 $490.00 2.08%
8 Hour Hire c $740.00 $755.00 2.03%
Additional Hour c $87.00 $89.00 2.30%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase
(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %
Community From Colac Otway
4 Hour Hire c $405.00 $414.00 2.22%
8 Hour Hire c $630.00 $645.00 2.38%
Additional Hour c $77.00 §79.00 2.60%

Equipment Hire

Projector Hire Epson 7.5K — per week $0.00 $250.00 -
Projector Hire Epson 7.5K- per day $0.00 $110.00 -

(9]

Projector Hire — Epson 11K (per day) Cc $200.00 $205.00 2.50%
Projector Hire — Epson 11K (per week) Cc $500.00 $510.00 2.00%
Projector Hire — NEC 4.5K (per day) C $85.00 $87.00 2.35%
Projector Hire — Meeting Rooms per unit (per day) C $27.00 §28.00 3.70%
Haze Machine — Daily C $40.00 $41.00 2.50%
Haze Machine — Weekly $100.00 $102.00 2.00%
Mirror Ball (o] $80.00 $82.00 2.50%
PA System — Advanced Cc $255.00 $261.00 2.35%
PA System — Basic (o] 105.00 $108.00 2.86%
PA System — Meeting Room (Fixed) Cc $26.00 $27.00 3.85%
Portable Stage — Flat Stage c $210.00 $215.00 2.38%
Portable Stage — Large Tiered Seating Cc $1,200.00 $1,225.00 2.08%
Portable Stage — Small Tiered Seating Cc $800.00 $820.00 2.50%
Wireless Microphone — per additi d Cc $26.00 $27.00 3.85%
Wireless Microphone — per day (0] $51.00 $53.00 3.92%
Green Room
Commercial Hire
After Hours Cc $68.00 §70.00 2.94%
Hourly Rate (o] $42.00 $43.00 2.38%
Community From Colac Otway
After Hours Cc $58.00 $60.00 3.45%
Hourly Rate Cc $29.00 $30.00 3.45%
Kitchen Hourly Rate
Commercial Hire
After Hours & Weekends (03 $68.00 $70.00 2.94%
Between 8:30 & 5pm (Mon-Fri) c $53.00 $55.00 3.77%
Community From Colac Otway
After Hours & Weekends C $60.00 $62.00 3.33%
Between 8:30 & 5pm (Mon-Fri) C $29.00 $30.00 3.45%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

Labour Charges

Hourly Rate
Public Holiday Surcharge (Staffing) Cc Additional 25% on standard rates
Fee
Event staff — First 8 Hours (per hour) (o] $63.50 $65.00 2.36%
Event staff — Additional Hour (per hour) (o3 $85.00 $87.00 2.35%
Technical staff — First 8 Hours (per hour) C $63.50 $65.00 2.36%
Technical staff — Additional Hour (per hour) Cc $85.00 $87.00 2.35%
Meeting Room/s Hourly Rate
Commercial Hire
Double Room (After Hours) $90.00 §92.00 2.22%
Double Room (Between 8:30 & 5pm) $68.00 $70.00 2.94%
Single Room (After Hours) c $68.00 $70.00 2.94%
Single Room (Between 8:30 & 5pm) c $47.00 $48.00 2.13%
Community From Colac Otway
Double Room (After Hours) Cc $80.00 $82.00 2.50%
Double Room (Between 8:30 & 5pm) Cc $58.00 $60.00 3.45%
Single Room (After Hours) Cc $58.00 §60.00 3.45%
Single Room (Between 8:30 & 5 G $37.00 $38.00 2.70%
Other Charges
Commercial Hire
Admin Fee Cc $180.00 $184.00 2.22%
Grand Piano Cc $102.00 $105.00 2.94%
Major Cleaning (o] $215.00 $220.00 2.33%
Minor Cleaning C $160.00 $164.00 2.50%
Piano Tuning C $260.00 $266.00 231%
Test & Tag Services — per item Cc $10.00 $10.20 2.00%
Community From Colac Otway
Admin Fee Cc $180.00 $184.00 2.22%
Major Cleaning C $215.00 $220.00 2.33%
Minor Cleaning C $160.00 $164.00 2.50%
Piano Tuning c $260.00 $266.00 2.31%
Test & Tag Services — per item C $10.00 $10.20 2.00%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

Public Gallery Exhibition & Display Hire Charges

Exhibition
Exhibition — % Commission c 10.00%
Fee
10.00%
Public Gallery Hourly Rate For Meeting & Convention
Commercial Hire
After Hours (o] $68.00 $70.00 2.94%
Between 8:30 & 5pm (0} $47.00 $48.00 2.13%
Community From Colac Otway
After Hours $58.00 $60.00 3.45%
Between 8:30 & 5pm $37.00 $38.00 2.70%
Rehearsal Room Hourly Rate
Commercial Hire
After Hours c $68.00 §70.00 2.94%
Between 8.30 & 5pm c $47.00 $48.00 2.13%
Community From Colac Oty
After Hours C $58.00 $60.00 3.45%
Between 8.30 & 5pm Cc $37.00 $38.00 2.70%
Roll Over (pre event set u
Commercial Hire
All Day Prior C $169.99 $174.00 2.36%
Evening Prior (o} $110.00 $113.00 2.73%
Community From Colac Otway
All Day Prior {5 $140.00 $143.00 2.14%
Evening Prior c $85.00 $87.00 2.35%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19

Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

Development & Community Services
Economic Development & Events
Colac Livestock Selling Centre

Agents (with leased office space) special sale

Fee

Agents (with leased office space) weekly fee

Fee

Agents (without office space) per sale fee

Fee

All horses

Fee

Bobby calves

Fee

Bulls flat rate

Fee

Cows and calves weigh fee

More than 5 animals
1 animal
2 —4 animals

Dairy cattle
Fee
Pigs

Fee

(o]

All other cattle

Fee

Annual licence and rental
Fee

$200.00 $200.00 0.00%
$200.00 $200.00 0.00%
$500.00 $500.00 0.00%
$17.60 $17.60 0.00%
$13.50 $13.50 0.00%
$2,377.60 $2,377.60 0.00%
$5.90 $5.90 0.00%
$18.60 §18.60 0.00%
$3.50 $3.50 0.00%
$4.80 $4.80 0.00%
$4.10 $4.10 0.00%
$13.50 $13.50 0.00%
$3.50 $3.50 0.00%
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Private weigh

Fee

Sheep and lambs

Fee

Stud cattle

Fee

Weighed cattle

Fee

Other miscellaneous fees

Truck wash per minute

Small bale of Hay

Office rental

Adjustment for cattle per day per beast

Environment & Community Safety

Animal Control — Effective fro
Registration

All other (refer Sch 2 of Domestic
Cat registration — full

Cat registration — micro chipped and dé
Cat registration — micro chipped only
Reduced fee for microchipping only applies to cats registered prior to 2014
Dog registration — full

Dog registration — micro chipped and de-sexed

Dog registration — micro chipped only

Reduced fee for microchipping only applies to dogs registered prior to 2014

Pensioner discount of registration fee

Working farm dog
Declared Dangerous & Menacing Dogs
Pet Shop — Breeding/Boarding Facility Audit Fee

(61 $5.90
C $2.20
c $18.60
& $13.50
$1.10
$10.00
(¢] $385.00
G $4.00
G $40.00
(&) $110.00
G $20.00
G $35.00
C $125.00
G $25.00
(63 $40.00
(&)
(6] $25.00
c $125.00
(o} $200.00

Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

Year 18/19
Fee

(incl. GST)

$5.90

$2.20

$18.60

$13.50

$1.10
$10.00
$385.00
$4.00

$42.00
$115.00
$20.00
$36.00

$130.00
$25.00
$41.00

§25.00
$130.00
$220.00
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Increase

%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

5.00%
4.55%
0.00%
2.86%

4.00%
0.00%
2.50%

50.00%
Fee
50.00%
0.00%
4.00%
10.00%
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Pound Release Fees

Cats — Initial impoundment plus Cc $40.00
Cats — per head per day (o] $5.00
Cattle/horses — Initial impoundment plus (] $80.00
Cattle/horses — per head per day C $15.00
Dogs — Initial impoundment plus C $60.00
Dogs - per head per day Cc $15.00
Sheep/pigs — Initial impoundment plus Cc $41.00
Sheepl/pigs — per head per day Cc $10.00
All other — Initial impoundment plus Cc $30.00
All other — per head per day C $10.00
Events
Other
Wedding on Council controlled/managed land C $80.00
Other activity per event (o] 200.00
Fire Prevention
Administrative fee block slashing
Fee (plus cost of slashing) C $175.00

Local Law Infringement fe ensive material (2 penalty units)
Infringement fee — burning of offens ial(2 penalty units) S $200.00
Statutory Penalty fee — Failing

Infringement fee — failing to comply with fire prevention notice (10 S $1,585.70
penalty units)

Standpipe water fee

Per kilolitre c $4.70
Local Laws

Local Law No 1

Alcohol permit c $150.00

Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

Year 18/19
Fee

(incl. GST)

$42.00

$7.00
$85.00
§15.00
$65.00
§17.00
$43.00
§10.00
$30.00
$10.00

$85.00
$200.00

$175.00

$200.00

comply with fire prevention notice (10 penalty units)

$1,585.70

$5.50

$160.00
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Increase

5.00%
40.00%
6.25%
0.00%
8.33%
13.33%
4.88%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

6.25%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

17.02%

6.67%
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Local Law No 2

Alcohol infringement fee (2 penalty unit)
Goods for sale per m2

Signs (A frame) — Charitable Organisations
Signs (A frame) — Other

Street party/festival per event

Tables and chairs — 1st table and 4 chairs
Tables and chairs — then per seat thereafter
Using Council land — Permit /admin fee
Plus Cost Per Week

0O 0000000

Using Council land — Cost per week
Vegetation C

s

d Temporary Cc

O

Abandoned or derelict vehicles

Pickup fee
Plus Transport and Storage Costs

Transport and storage costs

(9]

All other permits

Spruiking & Busking, Weddings, Do
Dwellinggs Permit

Circus

Fee c
Impoundment Fee

Fee C
Public protection (hording permit)

Application fee s
Plus Per m2 fee

Per m2 fee Cc
Work Zone Parking Permit (per bay per week) Cc

Sport Event

Fee C

Year 17/18

(incl. GST)

Year 18/19

Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) %

$200.00 $200.00 0.00%
$65.00 $67.00 3.08%
$65.00 $65.00 0.00%

$125.00 $128.00 2.40%

$200.00 $210.00 5.00%

$120.00 $125.00 4.17%
$35.00 $37.00 5.71%
$60.00 $62.00 3.33%
$30.00 $32.00 6.67%

$100.00 $105.00 5.00%
250.00 $275.00 10.00%

At Cost

Fee

At Cost

$85.00 $90.00 5.88%

$160.00 $165.00 3.13%

$150.00 $160.00 6.67%
$35.00 $35.00 0.00%
$15.00 §16.00 6.67%
$40.00 $43.00 7.50%
$70.00 $75.00 7.14%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %

Parking

All day parking permit (Payable in 6 monthly blocks — Johnstone's Carpark only)

Per week (o} $22.00 $24.00 9.09%
Building site on street

Parking space charge/permit — per bay per week or part there of C $40.00 $43.00 7.50%
Car parking fines

Fine Cc $78.00 $78.00 0.00%
Statutory Car parking fines

Car parking fines (.6 Statutory penalty Unit) S $95.00 $96.00 1.05%
Car parking fines (1 Statutory penalty Unit) S $158.57 $160.00 0.90%

Disabled parking

These fees are set under the provisions of the Road Safe eneral) lations 2009 — Schedule 6. The
fees will be reset by the Victorian Treasurer and announce | 201 Ajer the 2017-2018 financial year.
Disabled Persons Permit Issue Fee c $10.00 $12.00 20.00%
Permit replacement fee Cc $5.00 $7.00 40.00%
Planning & Building
Bonds
Bond for Demolition or Rem 1ilding (Reg 323)
Bond for Demolition or Removal of Buil Reg 323) — per sqm of S $100.00 $100.00 0.00%
floor area; OR — cost of works, whichever is the lesser
Bond for Re-erection of Building (Reg 323)
Bond for Re-erection of Building (Reg 323) — Fee; OR — cost of works S $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

Building Control Charges

Application for Place of Public Entertainment (PoPE) Permit or Temporary Structure

Application for Place of Public Entertainment (PoPE) Permit; plus C $600.00 $855.00 42.50%
Application for Place of Public Entertainment (PoPE) Permit — per C $40.00 $250.00 525.00%
year for multiple year permits
Application for Temporary Structure Siting Permit; plus (o $480.00 $500.00 4.17%
Application for Temporary Structure Siting Permit — per year for c $35.00 $251.00 617.14%
multiple year permits
Application for Place of Public Entertainment (PoPE) Permit & c $840.00 $865.00 2.98%
Temporary Structure Siting Permit; plus

C $40.00 $249.00 522.50%

Application for Place of Public Entertainment (fPoPE Permit &
Temporary Structure Siting Permit — per year for multiple year permits

Application for Place of Public Entertainment Permit or Temporary {6 $245.00 $500.00 104.08%
Structure Siting Permit Priority Fee (in addition to application fee)
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %

Information charges

Building plans, plan search c $100.00 $110.00 10.00%
Building plans/plan search (archival search) (o] $200.00 $220.00 10.00%

Property Information Certificate
Property information Application S $52.20 $52.20 0.00%

Lodgement fees

Class 1 & 10 S $39.10 §39.10 0.00%

Building Enforcement

Administration of Building Notice (o $950.00 $969.00 2.00%
Administration of Building Order (o] $600.00 $612.00 2.00%

Building Permit Amendments

Permit Amendments c $195.00 $199.00 2.05%
Extensions of Time (] 195.00 $199.00 2.05%

Building Permit Application Fee

All other classes of Occupancy 2-9 n and/or demolition

Does not exceed $5,000 (& $450.00 $459.00 2.00%
Does not exceed $10,000 (o] $630.00 $645.00 2.38%
Does not exceed $20,000 C $960.00 $980.00 2.08%
Does not exceed $50,000 (0] $1,380.00 $1,410.00 2.17%
Does not exceed $100,000 c $2,149.99 $2,195.00 2.09%
Does not exceed $200,000 (e $2,750.00 $2,805.00 2.00%
Does not exceed $500,000 C $3,410.00 $3,480.00 2.05%
Does not exceed $600,000 (a2 $4,092.00 $4,175.00 2.03%
2016/17: 0.62%

Does not exceed $700,000 C $4,774.00 $4,870.00 2.01%
2016/17: 0.62%

Does not exceed $800,000 (o] $4,760.00 $4,860.00 2.10%
2016/17: 0.62%

Does not exceed $900,000 C $6,138.00 $6,270.00 2.15%
2016/17: 0.62%

Does not exceed $1,000,000 C $6,270.00 $6,400.00 2.07%
2016/17: 0.57%

Does not exceed $1,500,000 (63 $9,350.00 $9,540.00 2.03%

2016/17: 0.52%

continued on next page ..
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Year 18/19
Fee Increase

Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

All other classes of Occupancy 2-9 inclusive (construction and/or demolition)

Does not exceed $2,000,000 C  §$11,440.00 $11,670.00 2.01%
2016/17: 0.52%
Does exceed $2,000,000 C  $13,860.00  $14,140.00 2.02%

2016/17: 0.41%

Domestic — class 1a Dwellings (construction and demolition), where the value of building work:

Does not exceed $5,000 Cc $350.00 $357.00 2.00%
Does not exceed $10,000 Cc $475.00 $485.00 2.11%
Does not exceed $15,000 c $650.00 $665.00 2.31%
Does not exceed $25,000 (03 $800.00 $820.00 2.50%
Does not exceed $50,000 c $1,262.00 $1,290.00 2.22%
Does not exceed $75,000 $1,462.00 $1,495.00 2.26%
Does not exceed $100,000 $1,768.00 $1,805.00 2.09%
Does not exceed $150,000 $1,890.00 $1,930.00 2.12%
Does not exceed $200,000 ,318.00 $2,365.00 2.03%
Does not exceed $250,000 2,500.00 $2,550.00 2.00%
Does not exceed $300,000 $2,750.00 $2,805.00 2.00%
Does exceed $300,000 $3,249.99 $3,315.00 2.00%

Minor Works — Class 10a, 10t rts, pool/spas & fence where value of work:

Less than $5000 Cc $350.00 $357.00 2.00%
Between $5,000 to $10,000 C $475.00 $485.00 2.11%
Between $10,001 to $20,000 (03 $780.00 $800.00 2.56%
More than $20,000 c $900.00 $920.00 2.22%
Minor works — Class 10b: Safety Barrier (without pool/spa) & C $250.00 $255.00 2.00%
Alterations to Safety Barrier.
Statutory charge on building permits
Building permit levy (cost of building over $10,000) S 0.128%

Fee
0.128%
Inspections

Additional Inspection (charged where additional inspections are required)

Additional Inspection (Domestic) — within 20km radius of Colac (e $224.99 $230.00 2.23%
Additional Inspection (Commercial) © $280.00 $286.00 2.14%
Additional Travel km (in addition to additional inspection fee) — C $1.00 $1.10 10.00%

more than 20km from Colac

Essential Safety Measures Assessments
Essential Safety Measures Determination

Fee C $650.00 $663.00 2.00%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %

Report and Consent Fees

Demolition fee (s. 29A)
Fee S $65.40 $65.40 0.00%

Report & Consent Application

Report & Consent Application S $262.10 $262.10 0.00%
Report & Consent Application — Charge per notice sent to adjoining C $25.00 $25.00 0.00%
properties

Planning Fees & Charges — Other

Advertising
Advertising notice sent to individual property owners per letter C $7.00 $7.50 7.14%
Advertising sign erected on site $300.00 $330.00 10.00%

Application for approval of amended plans under secon

Fee c 175.00 $179.00 2.29%
Application for Certification of subdivision und A
Application for Certification of subdivision unde: ion S $167.80 $167.80 0.00%
Application for Certification of subdivision un ion S $20.00 $20.00 0.00%
cost per lot
Required alteration of plan S $106.65 $106.65 0.00%
Application for Plan of Cons g
Fee S $167.80 $167.80 0.00%
Application for Recertification of Plan of Subdivision
Fee S $135.09 $135.09 0.00%
Check Engineering Plans
Fee S 0.75%
Fee
0.75%
Engineering Plan prepared by Council
Fee S 3.50%
Fee
3.50%
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Extension of time to planning permits

1st Extension of time to planning permits
2nd Extension of time to planning permits
Each additional extension of time to planning permits

Property Enquiry

Does not require extensive research
Extensive research

Satisfaction Matters
Satisfaction matters as specified by planning scheme
Supervision of Works

Fee

Section 173 Agreements

Certificates of compliance
Fee
Permit for use of land

Application where only the land use is changed.

Amendment to an existing agreement "
Removal of an existing agreement
Written consent to vary something registered €

O u n

s

Year 17/18 Year 18/19

Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %

$100.00 $102.00 2.00%
$150.00 $153.00 2.00%
$200.00 $204.00 2.00%
$50.00 $11000  120.00%
$160.00 $22000  37.50%
$312.84 $312.84 0.00%
2.50%

Fee

2.50%

$632.79 $632.79 0.00%
$632.79 $632.79 0.00%
$620.30 $620.30 0.00%
$312.84 $312.84 0.00%
$1,26558  $1,265.58 0.00%

To develop land or to use and develop land for a single dwelling per lot or to
undertake development ancillary to the use of the land for a single dwelling per lot if
the estimated cost of development included in the application is:

Excluding VicSmart applications

$100,000 to $500,000
$10,000 or less

$10,000 - $100,000
$500,000 — $1,000,000
$1,000,000 - $2,000,000

w nu onoonon

$0.00 $1,237.10 -

$191.97 $191.97 0.00%
$1,237.14 $604.40 -51.15%
$1,336.68 $1,336.68 0.00%
$1,436.22 $1,436.22 0.00%
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NEW FEE Vic smart applications

Single dwelling

$10,000 or less
More than S10,000
Subdivision or consolidation

(incl. GST)

S $191.97
S $412.38
S $191.97

Year 17/18
Fee

Year 18/19
Fee Increase

(incl. GST) %

$191.97 0.00%
$412.38 0.00%
$191.97 0.00%

To develop land (other than for a single dwelling per lot) if the estimated cost of

development included in the application is:

Less than $100,000

$100,000 — $1,000,000
$1.000,000 — $5,000,000
$5,000,000 - $15,000,000
$10,000,001 — $50,000,000
More than $50,000,000

To subdivide an existing building
To subdivide land into two lots

To effect a realignment of a common boundary between lots gito
consolidate two or more lots

All other subdivisions per 100 lots created

An application to remove a restriction (within
Subdivision Act 1988) in the circumstances d
of the Planning and Environment Act 198

An application to create, vary or rg
meaning of the Subdivision
way.

To create, vary or remove an easeme
to vary or remove a condition in the na
a right of way in a Crown.

A permit not otherwise provided for in the Fee regulations

ef tian a right of way, or
an easement other than

(b) Amendments to Permits — Set by Statute
1

Change of use only

2

To amend a permit other than a single dwelling to change the
statement of what the permit allows or to change any or all of the
conditions which apply to the permit
3
Single dwelling ($10,000 or less) Changed from $10,00-$100,000)
4

Single dwelling ($10,000 — $100,000)
Single dwelling ($100,000 — $500,000)
Single dwelling ($500,000 — $2,000,000)

S $1,102.05
S $1,485.99
S $3,277.71
S $8,354.25
S _a$24,636.15

$55,372.68
S $1,265.58
S 1,265.58
S ,265.58
S $1,265.58
S $1,265.58
S $1,265.58
S $1,265.58
S $1,265.58
S $1,265.58
S $1,265.58
S $191.97
S $604.35
S $1,237.14
S $1,336.68

$1,102.05 0.00%
$1,485.99 0.00%
$3,277.71 0.00%
$8,354.25 0.00%
$24,636.15 0.00%
$65,372.68 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$1,265.58 0.00%
$191.97 0.00%
$604.35 0.00%
$1,237.14 0.00%
$1,336.68 0.00%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19

Fee Fee Increase
(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %
5
VicSmart — $10,000 or less S $191.97 $191.97 0.00%
VicSmart — development more than $10,000 S $412.38 $412.38 0.00%
VicSmart — subdivision or consolidation S $191.97 $191.97 0.00%
6
Other developments (less than $100,000) S $1,102.05 $1,102.05 0.00%
8
Other developments ($100,00 — $1,000,000) S $1,485.99
Fee
$1.485.99
Other developments ($1,000,000 — $50,000,000) S $3,273.10 $3,273.10 0.00%
9

Amendment to a permit not otherwise provided for in the fee $1,265.58 $1,265.58 0.00%
regulation

Subdivision — common boundary realignment, consolidation ,265.58 $1,265.58 0.00%
more lots, existing buildings and two lot subdivisions (other

VicSmart)

Subdivision (other than VicSmart, two lot subdivisi $1,265.58 $1,265.58 0.00%
realignments)

C'reation. variation and removal of restrictions, S $1,265.58 $1,265.58 0.00%
of way
(c) Planning Scheme AWie s — Set by Statute
i

Considering a request for an Amendment S $2,920.32 $2,929.32 0.00%
I.

For considering up to 10 submissions S $14,518.62 $14,518.62 0.00%
For considering 11-20 submissions S  $29,00880  $29,008.80 0.00%
For considering in excess of 20 submissions S $38,777.94 $38,777.94 0.00%
iii.

Adoption of Amendment by Responsible Authority S $462.15 $462.15 0.00%
.

Consideration of a request to approve an Amendment (by the Minister S $462.15 $462.15 0.00%

for Planning)
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Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

Year 18/19

Fee
(incl. GST)

Community Services — Family Day Care & Maternal & Child Health

Family Day Care Administration Levy

Carers Levy

Carers Levy per week c
Per family per week

Child's hourly rate for a family per week c
Family Day Care Charges

8am to 6pm Monday to Friday

Per hour per child (o4

Before 8 am and after 6 pm

Man ~ Fri (per hour per child) Q C
Meals (per meal) v
Breakfast

Evening Meal
Lunch
Snack

Q000

Saturday, Sunday and Public Holidays

Per hour per child (03

Trips

Fee Cc

$11.80

$0.55

$3.65
$6.25
$4.70
$1.65

$4.90

$12.00

$1.10

$3.80
$6.40
$4.85
$1.70

$5.05

Increase

1.69%

100.00%

$8.10 to $8.60

Fee
$7.60 to $8.10

$9.10 to $9.60

Fee
$8.60 10 $9.10

4.11%
2.40%
3.19%
3.03%

$9.10 to $9.60

Fee
$8.60 to $9.10

3.06%

Community Services — Older Persons Ability Support Service (OPASS)

OPASS
Domestic Assistance

Per Hour C

$4.70 to $48.00

Fee
$4.60 to $46.00
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Overnight Respite (per night)

Respite Care

Personal Care

Per Hour

Property Maintenance

Per hr plus cost of materials

Respite Care

Per Hour

Veterans Home Care (1st hr)

One way
Return

Colac

Return

Colac Otway Shire — Apollo Bay, Lavers Hill
Return

Colac to Geelong or Ballarat

One way — single passenger
One way — two or more passengers
Return

Colac to Melbourne

Return

Minimum service fee
Community Transport
Birregurra/Forrest/Beeac ’

O

Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

$37.00

$5.50

$8.20
$16.50

$9.20

$31.00

$20.50
$15.50
$31.00

$56.00

Year 18/19
Fee Increase

(incl. GST)

$40.00 8.11%

$4.70 to $48.00

Fee
$4.60 to $46.00

$15.00 to $60.00
Min. Fee: $15.00

Fee
$12.50 to $49.00

$4.70 to $48.00

Fee

$4.60 to $46.00
$5.50 0.00%
$8.20 0.00%
$16.60 0.61%
$9.30 1.09%
$32.00 3.23%
$21.50 4.88%
$16.50 6.45%
$32.00 3.23%
$57.00 1.79%
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Colac to Warrnambool

Return Cc

Community Bus Transport for Group Activities

Community Bus Transport for Group Activities C
Full Cost Service

Per km (0]
Contracted Services

Case Management

Assessments, reassessments, reviews, set up arrangements. C
Contracted Services

Rate Cc

Food Services

Per hour
Meal Cc
Domestic Assistance
Per kilometre
7:30am to 7:30pm — Sat./Sun./Pub! C
7:30am to 7:30pm Mon. to Fri. c
Personal Care
Per meal
7:30am to 7:30pm = Sat./Sun./Public Holiday c
7:30am to 7:30pm Mon. to Fri. Cc
7:30pm to 7:30am Mon. to Fri. c
Property Maintenance
Per hour
7:30am to 7:30pm Sat./Sun./Public Holiday (o3
7:30am to 7:30pm Mon. to Fri. C
7:30pm to 7:30am Mon. to Fri. C

Year 17/18
Fee

(incl. GST)

$36.00

$5.80

$1.20

$92.00

$1.18

$15.99

$87.00
$47.00

$87.00
$48.00
$87.00

$97.00
$54.00
$97.00

Year 18/19
Fee Increase

(incl. GST) %

$37.00 2.78%
$6.00 3.45%
$1.30 8.33%

$92.00 0.00%
$1.20 1.69%

$23.00 43.84%

$90.00 3.45%

$49.50 5.32%

$90.00 3.45%

$51.00 6.25%

$90.00 3.45%

$108.00 11.34%

$61.00 12.96%

$108.00 11.34%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %

Respite Care

Per hour
7:30am to 7:30pm Sat./Sun./Public Holiday (o $87.00 $90.00 3.45%
7:30am to 7:30pm Mon. to Fri. (63 $48.00 $51.00 6.25%
7:30pm to 7:30am Mon. to Fri. (2] $87.00 $90.00 3.45%
Meals to Agency clients
Per hour plus cost of materials
All meals
Per meal C $10.60 to $22.00
Fee
$10.50 to $16.00
Delivered meals

Per meal Cc $10.60 to $22.00
Fee
$10.50 to $16.00
Public Health
Health Protection Administrati is n Fees)
CLASS 1 Food Premises
New $580.00 $595.00 2.59%

G
Renewal c $450.00 $462.00 2.67%
Transfer of Registration c $225.00 $231.00 2.67%
Large / Complex Site New Cc $870.00 $895.00 2.87%
Large / Complex Site Renewal C $675.00 $695.00 2.96%
Large / Complex Site Transfer c $435.00 $446.00 2.53%
CLASS 2 Major Food Premises
New Cc $480.00 $492.00 2.50%
Renewal Cc $330.00 $339.00 2.73%
Transfer of Registration Cc $165.00 $170.00 3.03%
Large / Complex Site New c $720.00 $740.00 2.78%
Large / Complex Site Renewal C $495.00 $510.00 3.03%
Large / Complex Site Transfer c $360.00 $369.00 2.50%
CLASS 2 Minor Food Premises
New (& $285.00 $293.00 2.81%
Renewal C $200.00 $205.00 2.50%
Transfer of Registration Cc $100.00 $103.00 3.00%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST) %

CLASS 3 Major Food Premises

New C $285.00 $293.00 2.81%
Renewal (o] $165.00 $170.00 3.03%
Large / Complex Site New C $430.00 $441.00 2.56%
Large / Complex Site Renewal Cc $250.00 $257.00 2.80%
Large / Complex Site Transfer C $215.00 $221.00 2.79%
Transfer of Registration Cc $82.50 $85.00 3.03%
CLASS 3 Minor Food Premises
New (0 $210.00 $216.00 2.86%
Renewal C $110.00 $113.00 2.73%
Transfer of Registration C $55.00 $57.00 3.64%
Additional Temporary/Mobile Food Registration
Class 2 $120.00 $123.00 2.50%
Class 3 C $65.00 $67.00 3.08%
Community Group Support
Class 2 Cc $70.00 §72.00 2.86%
Class 3 C $40.00 $41.00 2.50%
Personal Appearance
Beauty Therapies
New premises registration fee + pro- registration fee & $150.00 $154.00 2.67%
Pro-rata new premises registration fee r month Cc $12.50 $12.90 3.20%
Registration/renewal Cc $150.00 $154.00 2.67%
Transfer of registration C $75.00 §77.00 2.67%
Hairdressers
New premises registration fee (o] $200.00 $205.00 2.50%
Transfer of registration Cc $100.00 $103.00 3.00%
Skin Penetration (acupuncture, ear piercing)
New premises registration fee + pro-rata annual registration fee c $150.00 $154.00 2.67%
Pro-rata new premises registration fee — per month c $11.70 $12.00 2.56%
Registration/renewal C $140.00 $144.00 2.86%
Transfer of registration C $70.00 $72.00 2.86%
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Year 17/18 Year 18/19
Fee Fee Increase

(incl. GST) (incl. GST)

Skin Penetration (Tattooists, body piercing)

New premises registration fee + pro-rata annual registration fee C $150.00 $154.00 2.67%
Pro-rata new premises registration fee — per month c $16.70 $17.20 2.99%
Registration/renewal c $200.00 $205.00 2.50%
Transfer of registration c $100.00 $103.00 3.00%
Miscellaneous
Conveyance Enquiries for regulated businesses
Enquiry Fee (03 $220.00 $226.00 2.73%

Street Traders (Food, Ice-cream and Coffee Vans) Under the Victorian Food Act term "Streatrader”
Administration Assistance G $40.00 $41.00 2.50%
Water Sampling

Professional service fee $140.00 $144.00 2.86%
Actual testing fee Actual cost

Fee
Actual cost

Immunisation
Fee $23.00 $24.00 4.35%

Q) O

5

Late Renewal Penalty Fee

Fee (o] $140.00 $144.00 2.86%
Replacement Certificate

Fee c $40.00 $41.00 2.50%
Express Service

Within 5 days Cc $200.00 $205.00 2.50%
Professional Service

Additional compliance inspection (o $0.00 $144.00 -
Food Safety Program Template c $0.00 $80.00 -
Historic document Search fee C $0.00 $220.00 -
Historic Document Search Fee (Basic) (63 $140.00 $110.00 -21.43%
Additional hour c $50.00 $52.00 4.00%
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(incl. GST)

Prescribed Accommodation

up to 6 persons

New premises design fee Cc $150.00
New premises pro rata registration C $12.50
Registration/renewal c $160.00
Transfer of Registration c $80.00
6 to 10 persons

New premises design fee (o3 $150.00
New premises pro rata registration (o] $12.50
Registration/renewal C $200.00
Transfer of Registration C $100.00
11 to 20 persons

New premises design fee C $150.00
New premises pro rata registration Cc $12.50
Registration/renewal C $240.00
Transfer of Registration Cc $120.00
20+ persons

New premises design fee (& $150.00
New premises pro rata registrati Cc $12.50
Registration/renewal Cc $290.00
Transfer of Registration c $145.00
Caravan Parks per site

Fee S $14.22
Public Health — Septic Tanks
Additional inspections

Fee c $140.00
Septic tank alterations

Fee Cc $300.00
Septic tanks system

Fee c $750.00

Year 17/18
Fee

Year 18/19
Fee

(incl. GST)

$154.00
$12.90
$164.00
$82.00

$154.00

$12.90
$205.00
$103.00

$154.00

§12.90
$246.00
$123.00

$154.00

$12.90
$298.00
$149.00

$14.22

$144.00

$308.00

$770.00
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%

267%
3.20%
2.50%
2.50%

2.67%
3.20%
2.50%
3.00%

2.67%
3.20%
2.50%
2.50%

2.67%
3.20%
2.76%
2.76%

0.00%

2.86%

2.67%

267%

Attachment 1 - Draft Budget for Public Submission

259



	CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT ‐ CONTRACT 1805 ‐ CONSTRUCTION OF LANDSLIP STABILISATION WORKS, DRAINAGE AND ASSOCIATED ROADWORKS, STANWAY DRIVE, SEPARATION CREEK
	Attachment 1 ‐ CMW Geosciences Summary Report

	PROPOSED REDISTRIBUTION OF FEDERAL ELECTORAL DIVISIONS IN VICTORIA
	Attachment 1 ‐ Public Meeting presentation ‐ 19 April 2018

	QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT 2017‐2018
	Attachment 1 ‐ Quarterly Performance Report 2017‐2018 ‐ 20180502

	RATING STRATEGY 2018 ‐ 2020
	Attachment 1 ‐ Rating Strategy 2018‐2020
	Attachment 2 ‐ "From Coastal Communities to Tourist Towns"
	Attachment 3 ‐ Rates Modelling Options

	2018/19 DRAFT BUDGET FOR PUBLIC SUBMISSIONS
	Attachment 1 ‐ Draft Budget for Public Submission




